
City of Prosser, WA 
601 7th Street 

Prosser, WA 99350 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
WORK SESSION AGENDA 

7:00 P.M. 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2014 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 

a.) Veterans Day Proclamation ............................................................................................. Page 2 
 

b.) Historic Downtown Prosser Association (HDPA) Quarterly Report (Deb 
Heintz, Executive Director) 

 
c.) Prosser Chamber of Commerce Quarterly Report (Humberto Rodriguez, 

Executive Director) 
 
5. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

a.) Review Draft Contract with Prosser Chamber of Commerce for Visitor 
Information and Tourism Services.................................................................................. Page 3 

 
b.) Review Ordinance Increasing Salaries for Non-Union Employees by a Cost 

of Living Allowance in the Amount of 2% Effective January 1, 2015 ....................... Page 24 
 

c.) Review Ordinances Regarding the Setting of Property Taxes and Ad 
Valorem Taxes for the City of Prosser for Fiscal Year 2015 ...................................... Page 66 

 
d.) Review Proposed Amendment to the 2014 Budget for the Criminal Justice 

Fund, Transportation Benefit District Fund (103) and for the Water Fund 
(403) .................................................................................................................................. Page 82 

 
e.) September 2014 Quarterly Financial Report ............................................................... Page 88 

 
f.) 2015 Budget (Regina Mauras, Finance Director) ........................................................... Page 98 

 
6. ADD ON ITEMS 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 



WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

an Act approved by Congress in 1938, made the l 11
h of 

November a legal holiday, a day to be dedicated to the cause of 
world peace; and, 

November 11th was thereafter to be celebrated and known as 
"Armistice Day"; and, 

on June 1, 1954, legislation approved November 11 tli as a day to 
honor American veterans of all wars and it came to be known as 
"Veterans Day"; and, 

the U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs describes Veterans Day 
as "a celebration to honor American veterans for their patriotism, 
love of country, and willingness to serve and sacrifice for the 
common good"; and, 

City of Prosser employees John Beck, Michael Buck, L. J. 
DaCorsi, John Markus, Raul Sabalza, Matt Shanafelt, Will 
Spurgeon, and Stephen Zetz have heroically served in the armed 
forces; and, 

the City of Prosser would like to thank these employees and all 
veterans for their brave and honorable service; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that I, Paul Warden, Mayor of the City 
of Prosser, Washington, and the City Council and citizens of Prosser acknowledge 
and celebrate the outstanding achievements and contributions of these valuable 
Americans and their families. 

Mayor, Paul Warden 

City Clerk, Rachel Shaw 

This 4111 day of November, 2014 

2



I CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
I AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Title: Meeting Date: 
Review the recommendations of the November 4, 2014 
Hotel/Motel and TBA boards and Provide Work Session 
staff with direction regarding whether to 
bring back the Contract with Prosser 
Chamber of Commerce for Tourist 
Information and Promotion Services for the 
term of January 1, 2015 through December 

' 31, 2015, for approval at a future meeting. 

Dej:1artment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Administration Paul Warden Elia Belmares (509) 786-2332 

i 

Cost of Proj:1osal: Account Number: 
$132,000.00 130-573-XX-XX 

131-573-XX-XX 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
$132,000.00 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 

• $110,000- From Hotel/Motel #130 

• $22,000- Tourism Promotion Area (TPA) 

I 
Tourisms Promotion Area 
#131 

Reviewed by Finance Department: · 

'R ~ Ot»J.._eel 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Hotel/Motel 9.30.14 Draft Meeting Min. 
i 2. Contract for Tourist Information and Tourist Promotion Services 

Summary Statement: 

Review the recommendations of the Hotel/Motel and TBA boards and provide staff with 
! direction wheth.er to bring b13ck the contract with the Prosser Chamber of Commerce for 

I 
the period of January 1, 2015, through December 31, 2015, in an amo1,mt ot $132,000.00 
for visitor information and tourism promotion services. . 

I 
Consistent with or Comparison to·. 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

I 

I 

I 
' 

3



! 
Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Provide staff with direction regarding whether to bring back the Contract with Prosser 

I 
Chamber of Commerce for Tourist Information and Promotion Services for the term of 
January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015, for approval at a future meeting. 

Reviewed by De12artment Reviewed by Ci!ll Attorney: Ao12roved by Mayor: 
Director: 

fcJ!cJ~ UtJ~ ~ 
: 

Date:/ 0-Jf--l'i Date: /W<-7 J JI Y Date:/ 0 -3 ~-/l.{ 
Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

October 31, 2014 

4



CALL TO ORDER 

CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

HOTEL/MOTEL COMMITTEE MINUTES 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 

Committee Chair Everett called the meeting of the Hotel/Motel Committee to order at 6:02 p.m. 

PRESENT 

Committee Members Morgan Everett, Tom Denlea, Fred Lamb, Rob Siemens, Rob Steelman, Marilyn 

Dalstra, Assistant Finance Manager Elia Belmares, Public Works Director U Dacorsi for the City of Prosser 

and Executive Director Humberto Rodriguez for the Prosser Chamber of Commerce were present. 

APPROVE AUGUST 28, 2014 MINUTES 

A motion was made by Tom Denlea, seconded by Rob Steelman to approve the August 28, 2014 

minutes. The motion passed unanimously. 

CITY OF PROSSER APPLICATION FOR FUNDING 

Public Works Director U DaCorsi presented to the Hotel/Motel Committee, the City of.Presser's request for 

funding. They City of Prosser put forth an application request for $5,000 for the purpose of renovating the 

public restrooms at Presser's City Park. Tue new restrooms would be ADA Accessibility Compliant, as well as 

allow for the restrooms to be available year round. While the renoyation would not increase the number of 

stalls available in each restroom, it would update the plLlmbing, electrical wiring and include a mechanical 

room which would aid in the ability to maintainthe restrooms better to prevent failures during high use days. 

[Secretary's note: Marilyn l;)ais_tra arrived at,6:25pm] 
<'. 

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE APPLICATION FOR FUNDING 

Humberto Rodriguez presented to tlie Hotelf{Vlotel Committee, the Prosser Chamber of Commerce's 

proposed 2015 Marketing Plan in the amount of $132,000. The Chamber's proposal included funds for 

additiohalevents for the year; a.stronger push for a larger social media platform; and most notably the hiring 

of an additional individual to specifically target the business market and bring business conferences to the 

community. This new position would a contracted position shared between the Chamber of Commerce and 

the Walter Clore' -Center. The purpose of the new position would be to focus on bringing business to fill the 

hotels during the weekday because the weekend market is currently somewhat saturated. Also some 

advisement was given by Mr. Den lea that when choosing dates for new events to consider which weekends 

the hotels are not already at capacity due to other events or family holidays. 

2015 Funding Decision 

After each presentation the committee discussed each presentation and whether or not to fund each 

application. A few of the concerns with regard to funding of the City Park restrooms were if the committee 

agreed to fund the requested $5,000, if the City would return the following year and request additional 

funding. Especially since the project is still in its initial phases at the moment and may not begin construction 

in 2015. Another concern was whether or not funding this project would be the best use of funds due to the 

fact that many of the events held at the City Park are mainly attended by locals and not tourist. 

5



With regard to the Chamber of Commerce there were a few concerns with regard to the new position. One 

concern being that ·in order to fund this new position the Hotel/Motel would need to use a portion of its 

reserves, in conjunction with the fact that in order to see a positive turn around a minimum of 2 years would 

need to be committed to funding this position, using Hotel/Motel reserves for both years. However it was 

pointed out that if this position is successful it would mean huge revenue for Hotel/Motel as the weekday 

market is a market that has yet to be tapped into for the City of Prosser. Committee Chair Everett also 

expressed concern over the possibility of bringing on an additional person only to leave them jobless after 

two years or less. Mr. Se is mans made the point that this position would be hired as a contracted position and 

therefore that individual would know that they would need to prove their validity and would know that if 

they were not successful their contract would not be renewed. 

The Hotel/Motel Committee voted to approve the Chamber of Commerce funding request for $132,000 for 

2015, with $110,000 to be funded by Hotel/Motel funds and $22,000to be funded by Prosser Tourism 

Promotion Area (TPA), and to fund the City of Prosser's requ~stin the amount of $0.00. Motion was made by 

Tom Denlea, seconded by Rob Steelman. Motion passed unanimously 

ADD ON ITEMS 

Assistant Finance Manager Elia Bel mares presented each committee member with information regarding 

required new training requirements for all open meeting appointed off\cials with instruqions to either attend 

a live training or to take an on line trainirig course. 

It was also announced that Committee Member Becky Yea men had requested to be removed from the 

TPA/Hotel/Motel committees and that there was a vacancy available if any members new of an acceptable 

candidate to inform the Mayor. 

NEXT MEETING 

TBD 

ADJOURNMENT 

At 8:00 p.m., Council Member Morgan Everett adjourned the meeting of the Hotel/Motel Committee as 

there was no further business to discuss. 

Elia Belmares 

Assistant Finance Manager 

Council Member Morgan Everett 

Hotel/Motel Committee Chair 

6



CONTRACT FOR TOURIST INFORMATION AND 

TOURIST PROMOTION SERVICES 

THIS CONTRACT is entered into this day of 2014, by and 
between the City of Prosser, Washington, hereinafter called "City'', and the Prosser 
Chamber of Commerce, a non-profit corporation, hereinafter called "Contractor". 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, City imposes a tax pursuant to Chapter 67.28 of the Revised Code 
of Washington, commonly known as the Hotel Motel Tax, and 

WHEREAS, the City formed the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee pursuant to 
Ordinance 2758, and 

WHEREAS, the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee has recommended to the City 
Council that the City contract for tourist information and promotion services with 
Contractor, and 

WHEREAS, RCW 67 .28.1816 authorizes Agreements with marketing 
organizations for marketing and operations of special events and festivals, and 

WHEREAS, the RCW 67.28 was amended by ESHB 1253 to allow the city to use 
tax proceeds to pay for the operation of special events not owned by the City of Prosser; 
and 

WHEREAS, RCW 67.28, as amended does not allow for the funding of facilities 
not owned by the City of Prosser or owned by a 501 (c)(3)(6) organization; and 

WHREAS, by passage of Ordinance Number 13-2810 the City formed a Tourist 
Promotion Area in accordance with RCW Chapter 35.101; and 

WHEREAS, PMC 3.94.040 provides that the funds collected by the Tourist 
Promotion (TPA)are must be used as follows: 

The revenues from the special assessments levied on the operators of lodging 
businesses within the PTPA shall be used for the following purposes: 

A. Advertising campaigns; 

B. Public relations campaigns; and 

C. Group tour, leisure, and sports tourism sales and marketing. 

1 

7



WHEREAS, Contractor submitted an application requesting the use of 
Hotel/Motel Tax funds and TPA funds which application was recommended for approval 
by the City's Lodging Tax Advisory Committee; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 42.24.080 allows for advance payments due and payable in 
accordance with a contractual obligation, and 

WHEREAS, City and Contractor desire to enter into a new agreement to replace 
the 2014 Tourist Information and Promotion Services Agreement, 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above representations and the 
payments, covenants and agreements hereinafter mentioned, to be made and 
performed by the parties hereto, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 

1. It is in the public interest for hotel/motel tax funds in the amount of eighty thousand 
dollars ($110,000) and Tourist Promotion Area (TPA) funds in the amount twenty-two 
thousand dollars ($22,000) to be expended for tourist promotion services in the City 
of Prosser. 

2. All terms herein shall be interpreted to be consistent with RCW Chapter 67.28, RCW 
35.101 and PMC Chapter 3.94. 

3. The contractor desires to provide tourist promotion services by: 

3.1. providing tourism promotion services; 

3.2. advertising, publicizing, or otherwise distributing information for the purpose of 
attracting and welcoming tourists and otherwise providing tourism promotion 
services; 

3 .3. marketing of or operation of special events and festivals designed to attract 
tourists provided, however, no TPA funds shall be used for this purpose; and 

3.4. provide visitor information services 

4. Services. The contractor will provide the following services for the benefit of the City: 

4.1. Provide Tourist Promotion Services. 
The Contractor will provide tourist promotion services for the distribution of 
tourist-related information as follows: 

4.1.1. The Contractor will furnish the following services: 

4.1.1. 1. Services generally considered to be of an informational and 
assistance nature to tourists or visitors to the community, including 
travel directions, directions to points of interest, lodging 

2 

8



accommodations and other hospitality services, recreational activities, 
cultural events, emergency services, and other referral services. 

4.1.1.2. Interpretive displays, audio-visual programs, or other media 
designed at promoting the City and County tourist attractions. 

4.1.1.3. Services to attract conventions, shows, or other entertainment 
events likely to result in overnight stays in the city of Prosser. 

4.1.2. Hours of Operation: The contractor, to the maximum extent feasible, shall 
maintain hours of operation for the Visitor Information Center (VIC) sufficient 
to keep it open and available to the public year around, but particularly, will 
adjust hours of operation to best cover the peak tourist months. The Tl F 
shall be open not less than the following times: Peak Season - (April -
September) Monday - Friday 9 am - 5 pm, Saturday 10 am - 2 pm, and 
Sunday 12 pm - 2 pm. Off Season (October- March) Monday- Friday 9 am 
-4 pm. 

The City is not paying for the operational costs of the VIC herein, rather all 
contract payments are for tourist information services including, have a 
facility open to provide such services. 

4.1.3. Staffing: The Contractor will provide qualified, trained staff to operate the 
tourist information facility in a professional and competent manner. 

4.2. Other Tourist Promotion Activities. The Contractor will perform tourist promotion 
services in the form of advertising and publicity programs and tourism marketing 
cooperative of organization in accordance with the funding outline and media 
plan set forth in the attached Exhibits "A" and "B" provided, however, no TPA 
funds shall be used to fund events. 

4.3.Additional Services. Subject to other restrictions in this agreement and within the 
amount of the existing funding in this agreement, the Contractor may provide 
additional services consistent with the those services described in the Section 
and consistent with the tourism promotion activities authorized by RCW 
67.28.1815 and 67.28.080(6) and ESHB 1253 of the Laws of 2013, RCW 
Chapter 35.101, and PMC Chapter 3.98, provided that the City will compensate 
the Contractor for each additional service only to the extent that all services 
described within this Section have been satisfactorily performed and to the 
extent that funds remain under the total payment amount set forth in Section 7 
provided that however, TPA funds shall not be used to fund special events. 

3 

9



4.4. No funds provided for under this contract shall be used to pay for the operation 
of a facility not owned by the City of Prosser, or not owned by a 501(c)(3)(6) 
organization. 

5. Restrictions on the Use of Funds. The special excise lodging tax funds received by 
the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement, which funds do not include other revenue 
generated by the Contractor such as income from any advertisements, shall not be 
used for the following: 

5.1. To purchase, construct, or improve capital facilities or equipment. 

5.2. To fund activities that target the generation of business for any single specific 
private for profit business entity. 

5.3. For any purpose that would violate the following as the same exist now or may 
be hereafter amended: 

5.3.1. RCW Chapter 67.28; 

5.3.2. Article 8, Section 7 of the Washington State Constitution. 

5.3.3. PMC Chapter 3.98. 

5.3.4. RCW Chapter 35.101. 

5.4. For promotional hosting, including but not limited to the payment of lodging for 
individuals within a fifty mile radius of the City of Prosser. 

5.5. For cash bonuses or gifts. 

5.6. For reimbursement of the following travel business expenses: 

5.6.1. For lodging that exceeds the nightly rate of $90 per night; 

5.6.2. For any room service expenses; 

5.6.3. For alcoholic beverages; 

5.6.4. For meals of the family members of Contractor's employees, consultants, 
or volunteers. 

6. Duration of Contract. The performance of the Contractor shall commence on the 1st 
day of January 2015, and shall terminate at Midnight on December 31, 2015. 

7. Compensation and Method of Payment. The City shall reimburse the Contractor for 
services rendered as follows: 

7.1. Provision of Tourist Information Services and Tourist Promotion Activities. 

4 

10



In consideration of the services to be performed with respect to the tourist 
information services and other tourist promotion activities, and upon receipt and 
acceptance by the Mayor or designee of the Contractor's invoices for 
maintenance and operation expenses and invoices for expenses for advertising 
and for marketing special events, or other activities authorized by Exhibit "A", the 
City will reimburse the Contractor for services rendered in amounts stated in 
Exhibit "B" for each calendar year. Contractor shall submit an invoice for the 
services rendered as provided for on Exhibit "B", and shall also submit a detailed 
report of the contractor's activities for the previous month, each month. 
Contractor shall provide supporting documentation for all expenses they report to 
the City including, but not limited to, invoices. 

8. Record Keeping and Reporting. 

8.1. The Contractor shall provide the City with the budget of the Prosser Chamber of 
Commerce, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "C". 

8.2. The Contractor shall maintain accounts and records, which accurately reflect the 
revenues and costs for the operation of the Prosser Chamber of Commerce and 
Tourist Information Facility. Accounting for maintenance and operation of the 
Prosser Chamber of Commerce Tourist Information Facility, as a separate cost 
center, shall be maintained by the Contractor. Contractor hereby certifies that it 
is a recognized 26 USC 501(c)(6) corporation. 

8.3. The Contractor shall submit reports as follows: 

Describing the actual number of people traveling for business or pleasure on a 
trip: 

8.3.1. Away from their place of residence or business and staying overnight in 
paid accommodations; 

8.3.2. To a place fifty miles or more one way from their place of residence or 
business for the day or staying overnight; and 

8.3.3. From another country or state outside of their place of residence or their 
business. 

8.4. The Contractor shall use its best efforts to economize on overhead expenses to 
the maximum extent feasible in providing the services to be performed pursuant 
to this Contract. 

8.5. Contractor shall prepare and deliver the above report to City on or before the 
31st day of December 2014. In addition the Contractor shall provide a report, 
which, at a minimum, must include: 

5 

11



8.5.1. the total revenue received from the City for each year; 

8.5.2. the list of festivals, special events, or nonprofit 501{c)(3) or 501(c)(6) 
organizations that received funds under this Agreement; 

8.5.3. the amount of revenue expended on each festival, special event, or 
tourism-related facility owned by a nonprofit 501 (c)(3) or 501 (c)(6) 
organization; 

8.5.4. the estimated number of tourists, persons traveling over fifty miles to the 
destination, persons remaining at the destination overnight, and lodging 
stays generated per festival, special event, or tourism-related facility owned 
by a nonprofit 501 (c)(3) or 501 (c)(6) organization; 

8.5.5. an estimated increase in sales and use tax revenues attributable to the 
special event, festival, or tourism-related facility owned by a nonprofit 501 
(c)(3) or 501 (c)(6) organization; and 

8.5.6. any other measurements the Contractor finds that demonstrate the impact 
of the increased tourism attributable to the festival, special event, or tourism
related facility owned by a nonprofit 501 (c)(3) or 501 (c)(6) organization. 

8.5.7. any other supporting documentation or other information required by the 
State of Washington to be reported by the city of Prosser. 

9. Independent Contractor Status. The relation created by this Contract is that of 
independent contracting entities. The Contractor is not an employee of the City and 
is not entitled to the benefits provided by the City to its employees. The Contractor, 
as an independent contractor, has the authority to control and direct the performance 
of the details of the services to be provided. The Contractor shall assume full 
responsibility for payment of all Federal, State, and local taxes or contributions 
imposed or required, including, but not limited to, unemployment insurance, Social 
Security, and income tax. 

1 O. Insurance. The Contractor shall provide a Certificate of Insurance evidencing 
occurrence-based Commercial General Liability insurance with limits of no less than 
$5,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence, with the City shown as a named 
additional insured. Such certificate shall contain the language required by the City of 
Contractors in its standard specifications. 

11. Breach. 

11.1. In the event of either party's material breach of the terms or conditions of 
this Contract, the non-breaching party reserves the right to withhold payments or 
services until corrective action has been taken or completed. However, the party 

6 

12



shall not exercise this right until they have given written notice of such material 
breach to the breaching party and ten days have passed since the receipt of 
such notice. This option is in additional to and not in lieu of the parties' right to 
terminate this Contract or any other right which State law offers for breach of 
contract. 

11.2. If either party shall materially breach any of the covenants undertaken 
herein or any of the duties imposed upon it by this contract, such material breach 
shall entitle the other party to terminate this Contract, provided that the party 
desiring to terminate for such cause shall give the offending party at least twenty 
days written notice, specifying the particulars wherein it is claimed that there has 
been a violation hereof, and if at the end of such time, the party notified has not 
removed the cause of complaint, or remedied the purported violation, then the 
termination of this Contract shall be deemed complete. 

12. Non-Discrimination. The Contractor shall conduct its business in a manner which 
assures fair, equal and non-discriminating treatment of all persons, without respect 
to race, creed or national origin, and, in particular: 

12. 1. The Contractor shall maintain open hiring and employment practices and 
will welcome applications for employment in all positions, from qualified 
individuals who are members of minorities protected by federal equal 
opportunity/affirmative action requirements; and, 

12.2. NON-DISCRIMINATION. Each party agrees that it shall not discriminate 
against any person on the grounds of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, 
sex, age, marital status, political affiliation or belief, sexual orientation as defined 
in RCW 49.60.040, status as a veteran, or the presence of any sensory, mental 
or physical handicap in violation of any applicable federal or state law or 
regulation and each party agrees to be an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

13. Entire Contract. The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression of 
the terms hereto and any oral representation or understanding not incorporated 
herein is excluded. Further, any modification of this Contract shall be in writing and 
signed by both parties. 

14. General Provisions. 

14.1. WAIVER. Failure by either party at any time to require performance by the 
other of any of the provisions hereof shall in no way affect the party's rights 
hereunder to enforce the same, nor shall waiver by him of any breach hereof be 
held to be a waiver of any succeeding breach, nor a waiver of this non-waiver 
clause. 

7 

13



14.2. BINDING EFFECT. The covenants, terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall extend to, be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
Contractor and City and to City's successors and assigns. 

14.3. ASSIGNMENT. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to 
permit the assignment by Contractor of any right or obligations hereunder, and 
such assignment is expressly prohibited without the prior written approval of City. 

14.4. INTERPRETATION. This Agreement shall be interpreted according to, and 
enforced under, the Laws of the State of Washington. Venue for any legal action 
under this Agreement shall be in Benton County, State of Washington. 

14.5. SEVERABILITY. If anyone or more of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in 
any respect, such circumstances shall not affect any other provision(s) hereof, 
and this Agreement shall be construed as if such provisions had never been 
contained here·1n. 

14.6. AMENDMENTS. This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument 
reduced to writing and signed by the parties hereto. 

14.7. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall 
indemnify and hold the City and its agents, employees, and/or officers, harmless 
from and shall process and defend at its own expense any and all claims, 
demands, suits, at law or equity, actions, penalties, loss, damages, or costs, 
including attorneys' fees, of whatsoever kind or nature, brought against the City 
arising out of, or in connection With, or incident to, the execution of this 
Agreement and/or the Contractor's performance or failure to perform any aspect 
of this Agreement; provided, however, that if such claims are caused by or result 
from the concurrent negligence of the City, its agents, employees, and/or 
officers, this indemnity provisions shall be valid and enforceable only to the 
extent of the negligence of the Contractor; and provided further, that nothing 
herein shall require the Contractor to hold harmless or defend the City, its 
agents, employees, and/or officers for damages or loss caused by the City's sole 
negligence. The Contractor expressly agrees that the indemnification provided 
herein constitutes the contractor's waiver of immunity' under Title 51 R.C.W., for 
the purposes of this Agreement. The parties have mutually negotiated this 
waiver. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination 
of this Agreement. 

14.8. NOTICE. All notices, requests, demands and other communications 
required by or permitted under this Agreement shall be reduced to writing and 
deemed to have been duly given when received by the party to whom directed: 

8 

14



Provided however, that notice shall be deemed conclusively given at the time of 
its deposit when sent by Certified or Registered mail, Return Receipt Requested, 
at the address as set forth below, or such other address as is hereafter 
designated by either party by written notice thereof to the other party. 

CITY: 

CONTRACTOR: 

City of Prosser 
601 7th Street 
Prosser, Washington 99350 
Attn: City Clerk 
(509) 786-2332 

Prosser Chamber of Commerce 
1230 Bennett 
Prosser, Washington 99350 
( 509) 786-3177 

14.9. NUMBER. GENDER AND CAPTION. In construing this Agreement, it is 
understood that if the context so requires, the singular shall include the plural 
and the plural the singular. The masculine and neuter shall include the 
masculine, feminine and neuter as the context requires. All captions used herein 
are intended solely for convenience for reference, shall in no way limit any 
provision(s) of this Agreement and are not to be considered in the interpretation 
of its terms. 

14.10. CONFLICT OF PROVISIONS. In case of conflict, the more specific 
provision of this Agreement shall control. 

14.11. TIME. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

14.12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This document is the entire, final and complete 
Agreement of the parties pertaining to the engagement of Contractor for 
professional services and supersedes and replaces all written and oral 
agreements heretofore made or existing by and between the parties insofar as 
the engagement hereinabove described is concerned. 

14.13. DUPLICATE ORIGINALS. At the time of signing this Agreement, the 
parties acknowledged that two (2) copies were signed and each shall be treated 
as a duplicate original. 

15. Public Records Act Compliance. In the event the City or Contractor receives a 
request for public records maintained or used by Contractor pursuant to this 
agreement, Contractor shall provide copies of all records responsive to such request 

9 

15



16



EXHIBIT "A" 

MEDIA PLAN/SCOPE OF SERVICES 

1. Provide Tourist Information Services in accordance with paragraph 4 (A) of this 
agreement, as a tourist promoting agency. 

2. Update and maintain the attractions directory. 

3. Maintain a website as customary in the industry for tourist promotion agencies. 

4. Market Prosser at conventions, conferences, and trade shows which specifically 

target tourists (minimum 5 shows outside a 50-mile radius of City limits). 

5. Produce weekly E-Zines and send them to all interested parties. 

6. Contractor shall conduct Bureau Advertising: Visitor and Information Guides and 
Memberships not limited to: 

Washington State Visitor Guide; 
Yakima Visitor & Convention Bureau Visitors Guide and membership 
Tri-Cities Visitor & Convention Bureau Visitors Guide and membership 

7. Participate in HAR (Highway Advisory Radio) Site, when possible. 

8. Conduct regional advertising as follows: 

Promote Prosser as an overnight destination especially targeting the Portland, 
Seattle, and Spokane areas, as well as other areas, using radio, cable television, 

and print as advertising mediums to reach the cities mentioned above. 

Using regional advertising funds in a consistent, distinctive, and unified way. Prosser 
will be marketed by the tourism committee for its prominence in the Washington 

Wine Industry and.for its many popular annual community events which include but 
are not limited to: 

• Red Wine & Chocolate 

• Spring Barrel Tasting 

• Spring/Fall City Wide Yard Sale 

• Scottish Fest 

• Prosser Sportsfest 

• Old Fashioned 4th of July 

• Art Walk & Wine Gala 

• Prosser Wine & Food Fair 

• States Day Parade & Celebration 

• A Night Out 

11 

17



• Great Prosser Balloon Rally 

• Harvest Festival 

• Street Painting Festival 

• Family Christmas Festival 

• Prosser Beer & Whiskey Festival 

• NW Preparedness Expo 

• Uncommon Threads (Fiber Arts) 

9. Promote or fund new events as allowed by Law, at the discretion of Contractor. 

12 

18



EXHIBIT"B" 
FUNDING OUTLINE FOR THE YEAR 2015 

HOTEL/MOTEL FUNDS: OPERATION OF THE VISITOR INFORMATION CENTER 
(INCLUDING WEBSITES) MARKETING & OPERATION OF SPECIFIC EVENTS & 
TOURISM PROMOTION ACTIVITIES: 

THIS SHALL BE PAYABLE AS FOLLOWS: $110,000 
January 2014 $25,000 
February 2014 $15,000 
March 2014 $10,000 
April 2014 $8,000 
May 2014 $8,000 
June 2014 $8,000 
July 2014 $8,000 
August 2014 $8,000 
September 2014 $5,000 
October 2014 $5,000 
November 2014 $5,000 
December 2014 $5,000 

TOURISM PROMOTION AREA FUNDS: TOURISM PROMOTION ADVERTISING AND 
MARKETING: 
THIS SHALL BE PAYABLE AS FOLLOWS: $22,000 

January 2014 
February 2014 
March 2014 
April 2014 
May 2014 
June 2014 
July 2014 
August 2014 
September 2014 
October 2014 
November 2014 
December 2014 

$6,000 
$4,000 
$2,000 
$2,000 
$1,000 
$1,000 
$1,000 
$1,000 
$1,000 
$1,000 
$1,000 
$1,000 

UPON EARLY TERMINATION ALL PAYMENTS SHALL BE PRORATED BY THE 
MONTH. FOR THE TOURIST INFORMATION FACILITY THE COST SHALL BE 
PRORATED BY THE NUMBER OF DAYS THE CENTER IS SCHEDULED TO BE 
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC. 

13 

19



EXHIBIT "C" 

2015 Proposed Expenditures 

Prosser Chamber of Commerce 

Administration 

Depot Rent 

Bank Fees 

Casual Labor 

Office Equipment 

Dues & Subscriptions 

Van 

Truck 

Licenses & Permits 

Insurance 

Miscellaneous 

Office Supplies 

Printing 

Telephone/ Internet 

Payroll Expenses 

Travel/ Meals 

Website 

Postage 

Equipment Rental 

VIC Operations H/M Tax 

Membership 

Chamber Event Cost 

Chamber Banquet 

Community Yard Sale 

Easter/Christmas/Halloween 

Tri Chamber Social 

Street Painting Festival 

NW Preparedness Expo 

4th of July 

Prosser Sports Fest 

Art Walk & Wine Gala 

Sage Rat Run 

Scottish fest 

States Day 

Valleys Got Talent 

Subtotal: 

October Fest (Craft Beer & Whiskey Fes1 

Harvest Festival 

Budgeted Expense 

4200.00 
1500.00 

300.00 
1000.00 

500.00 
300.00 
700.00 
150.00 

8000.00 
400.00 

1300.00 
4000.00 
1200.00 

47500.00 
400.00 

1500.00 
1800.00 
3800.00 

78550.00 

Budgeted Expense 

7100.00 
200.00 

1300.00 

14 

100.00 
3000.00 
1000.00 
2000.00 

5000.00 
11000.00 

500.00 
13000.00 

4500.00 
300.00 

18000.00 
2500.00 

20



Miss Prosser 

Subtotal: 

Total Projected Expenses: 

10000.00 

79500.00 

158050.00 

2.015 Marketing Plan Proposed Expenditures 

Attractions Directories 
Printing & Distribution 

Editing- Design and Map Update 

Subtotal: 

Tradeshows 

Taste Washington - March 

Oregon Trade Show 

Taste 208 - Boise - April 

Vintage Spokane - June 

RV Shows - partnership - 6 shows 

Subtotal: 

Website Expenses 

Upgrade and Mobile Enhancement 

Balloon Rally Micro Page 

Subtotal: 

HAR Radio 

Announcement production costs 

Subtotal: 

Social Media 

Face Book, Twitter and Blogger Event Pr 

E-Blast 
Annual usage fee 

E-Blast Production 

Bureau Memberships 

Subtotal: 

Subtotal: 

Budgeted Expense 

6700.00 
1500.00 
8200.00 

Budgeted Expense 

805.00 

695.00 
125.00 
275.00 

3200.00 
5100.00 

Budgeted Expense 

7000.00 
1500.00 
8500.00 

Budgeted Expense 

350.00 

350.00 

Budgeted Expense 

10000.00 

10000.00 

Budgeted Expense 

750.00 
3500.00 
4250.00 

15 

21



Yakima Valley VCB 
Tri-Cities VCB 

Subtotal: 

0.00* 
200.00 

200.00 

Bureau Advertising 
Yakima Valley Visitors Guide 2800.00 

Tri-Cities Visitors Guide 2300.00 
Washington Tourism Alliance (experienc 500.00 

Subtotal: 5600.00 

Regional Advertising Budgeted Expense 

Tasting Room Magazine 1640.00 

Wine Press NW 1840.00 
NW Journeys - TV advertising 2500.00 

The Grape Vine 1000.00 
RV Life 1595.00 

Washington Wine Guide 1900.00 
Missoula Media Package 1500.00 

Tri-Cities Airport Brochure Display 300.00 

subtotal: 12275.00 

Web Advertising Budgeted Expense 

Yakima Valley VCB - Visit Yakima - incluc 6000.00 

Face Book Ads 

subtotal: 

New Events 
Beer & Whiskey Festival 
Uncommon Threads (fiber arts show) 

NW Preparedness EXPO 

Branding 
Product Building 

Search Engine Lodging 
JackRabbit Systems 

subtotal: 

subtotal: 

16 

3000.00 

9000.00 

2000.00 

2000.00 
2000.00 

6000.00 

2500.00 

2500.00 

2000.00 

22



subtotal: 2000.00 

Contracted Conference Sales Position 

Clore Center 20000.00 

subtotal: 20000.00 

Prosser Visitors Center Operation Budgeted Expense 
40000.00 

subtotal 40000.00 

Tota! of all marketing categories: 133975.00 

Chamber & Marketing Budget Total: 292025.00 

17 

23



I CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

I AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Review Ordinance Meeting Date: 
Increasing Salaries for Non-Union November 4, 2014 

, Employees by a Cost of Living Allowance Work Session 
j in the amount of 2% effective January 1, 

2015 

Department: Director: Contact Person: 
Finance Regina Mauras Toni Yost 

Cost of Proposal: 
$12,854 (Non-Union Positions Only) 

Amount Budgeted: 
Amount is budgeted in the 2015 proposed salaries 

General Fund= $10,762 
Streets = $319 
Water= $844 
Sewer= $869 

-

1 

Garbage - $61 

Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 
1. Ordinance adjusting salaries 

I Phone Number: 
' (509) 786-2332 

Account Number: 
(10) Wages 
(20) Benefits 

Name and Fund#: 
(001) General Fund 
(102) Streets 

I (403) Water 
(407) Sewer 

I (448) Garbage 
\ 

2. Consumer Price Index: June 2014 for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers 
(CPl-W) 

Summarv Statement: 
This ordinance adjusts salaries of non-union employees to be consistent with the COLA 
given to union employees with negotiated and approved contracts for 2013. The 100% 

I 

US All Cities Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPl
W) was 2% higher than in June 2013. The City normally sets a ceiling of 4% and a floor 

.. of 2% for COLA. Therefore, the ordinance contains a 2% COLA. 

I --
1 Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 
Review Ordinance Increasing Salaries for Non-Union Employees by a Cost of Living 
Allowance in the amount of 2% effective January 1, 2015. 

' 

\ 

' 

I 

Reviewed by Department 
Director: 11 
~o.. /"\QJ.JJ,PS·r 

!I Reviewed by City Attorney: 
~) 

1c~ 
I, Date: //) }JJ" )J f 

, 1!72{or: L_ ~v 
I Date: / {) - J (- { t-( I Date: IO \-;>t \-:u:n4 

? 

24



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR A 2% INCREASE IN THE SALARIES FOR 
THE FINANCE DIRECTOR, POLICE CIDEF, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR, 
CITY CLERK, BUILDING OFFICIAL, FINANCE MANGER, ASSISTANT 
FINANCE MANAGER, AND PLANNER EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015. THIS 
AMOUNT OF THIS INCREASE WAS DETERMINED BY A COST OF LIVING 
ALLOWANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 100% U. S. ALL-CITIES 
CONSUMER PRICE INDEX FOR WAGE EARNERS AND CLERICAL 
WORKERS (CPI-W), JUNE TO JUNE, WITH AN INCREASE LIMITED TO 2% 
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015, MAKING THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
ORDINANCE SEVERABLE, AND SETTING FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE 
OF THE ORDINANCE. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON, DO 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City has the following non-union positions: Finance Director, 
Police Chief, Public Works Director, City Clerk, Building Official, Finance Manager, 
Assistant Finance Manager, and Planner. 

Section 2. The City Council desires to provide its non-union employees with an 
increase in salary similar to the amount provided to its union employees by contract. 
Most union employees will be entitled to a cost of living increase in their salary in 
accordance with the 100% U. S. All-Cities Consumer Price Index for Wage Earners and 
Clerical Workers (CPI-W), June to June with a minimum increase of2% and a maximum 
increase of 4%. 

Section 3. The CPI-W, June to June, increased hy less than 2%. 

Section 4. The salaries for non-union positions referenced in Section One of this 
Ordinance are hereby increased by 2% effective January 1, 2015. 

Section 5. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby 
declared to be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
ordinance or its application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase be held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 6. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be January 1, 2015. The 
City Clerk shall publish a summary of this Ordinance in the City's Official Newspaper. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this __ day of 
2014. ------

25



Mayor Paul Warden 

Attest: 

Rachel Shaw, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Howard Saxton, City Attorney 

Publication Date: ---

26



Sl.JMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14----

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the __ day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, 
passed Ordinance No. A sunnnary of the content of said ordinance, 
consisting of the title, provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR A 2% INCREASE IN THE SALARIES FOR 
THE FINANCE DIRECTOR, POLICE CHIEF, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR, CITY 
CLERK, BUILDING OFFICIAL, FINANCE MAc"JGER, ASSISTANT FINANCE 
MANAGER, AND PLANNER EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015. THIS AMOUNT OF 
THIS INCREASE WAS DETERMINED BY A COST OF LIVING ALLOWANCE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE 100% U.S. ALL-CITIES CONSUMER PRICE INDEX 
FOR WAGE EARNERS AND CLERICAL WORKERS (CPI-W), JUNE TO JUNE, 
WITH A_N INCREASE LIMITED TO 2% EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015,. MAKING 
THE PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE SEVERABLE, AND SETTING FORTH 
THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE. 

The full text ofthis Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this __ day of ______ , 2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

27



BLS 
BUREAU Of LABOR S'r:1'f!STJCS 
U.S. DEPARTMENT or LABOR 

NEWS RELEASE 

Transmission of material in this release is embargoed until 
8:30 a.m. (EDT) Tuesday, July 22, 2014 

Technical information: (202) 691-7000 • Rccd.Stcvc@bls.gov • www.bls.gov/cpi 
Media Contact: (202) 69 I -5902 • PrcssOfficc@bls.gov 

CONSUMER PRICE INDEX - JUNE 2014 

14-1345 

The Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) increased 0.3 percent in June on a 
seasonally adjusted basis, the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics reported today. Over the last 12 months, 
the all items index increased 2. 1 percent before seasonal adjustment. 

contrast lo the broad-based increase last month, the June seasonally adjusted increase in the all items 
index was primarily driven by the gasoline index. It rose 3.3 percent and accounted for two-thirds of the 
all items increase. Other energy indexes were mixed, with the electricity index rising, but the indexes for 
natural gas and fuel oil declining. Tbc food index decelerated in June, rising only slightly, with the food 
at home index flat after recent increases. 

The index for all items less food and energy also decelerated in June, increasing 0. 1 percent after a 0.3 
percent increase in May. The indexes for shelter. apparel, medical care, and tobacco all increased in 
June, and the index for household furnishings and operations rose for the first time in a year. However, 
the index for new vehicles declined after recent increases. and the index for used cars and trucks al.so 
foll. 

The al! items index increased 2. l percent over the last 12 months, t11e same figure as for the months 
ending May. The index for all items less food and energy rose 1.9 percent over the last 12 months. a 
slight decline from the 2.0 percent figure last month. The index for energy increased 3.2 percent over the 
span, and the food index rose 2.3 percent. 

Chart 1. One-month percent change in CPI for All Urban Consumers (CPl-U), seasonally adjusted, June 2013 -June 2014 
Percent change 

0.4 
0.4 

0.3 
0.3 

0.2 0.2 0.2 

0. 1 

0.0 _,-

0.2 

0.0 

... , ... 
0.1 0. 1 

..•. ---'~ 
0. 1 

Jun'13 Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun'14 

28



Chart 2. 12-month percent change in CPI for AJI Urban Consumers (CPJMU}, not seasonally adjusted, June 2013 m June 2014 
Percent change 
2.2·-·--·-·--------------·-------·---------~----------------------------------------------------- -·------

2.0 

1.4 

1.2 

1.0 

Jun'13 Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun'14 

~- AJ!items ~ .All items less food and energy 

Table A. Percent changes in CPI for All Urban Consumers (CPl-U): U.S. city average 

Seasonally adjusted changes from preceding month i Un-

f----Dec-. --1 -~---~-----------01: ~~-~~ 
Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. i May : June ended 

-------!----2_0_1_3_, __ 20_1_4_!---_2_01_4_+-__ 2_0_14_+--_2_0_14----i:~ 2014 June 2014 

A~~~~·~~h~~~ ·: : : : ::: : ::I g 1 -~ :~ 1 ! :~ ! H 
Food away from home 1 ! .1 .1 .3 .3 .3 .2 .2 2.2 

Energy··-·--------·------------------------------ 1.6 .6 -.5 -.1 .3 .9 1.6 3.2 
Energy commodities -------------------------< 2.6 -.5 -1.3 -2.0 1.9 .6 3.0 2.3 
Gasoline (all types) --------------------------' 2.6 -1.0 -1.7 -1.7 2.3 .7 3.3 2.0 
Fueloil1 2.4 3.7 4.1 -2.9 -3.0 -1.4 -1.7 4.0 

Energy services----------------------------------! .1 2.2 .7 2.6 -1.9 1.4 -.4 4.4 
Electricity----------------------------------------; .4 1.8 -.2 1.1 -2.6 2.3 ! .2 4.2 
Utility (piped) gas service ----------------! -1.0 3.5 3.6 7.5 .3 -1.7 -2.6 5.1 

All items less food and energy .1 . i .1 .2 .2 .3 .1 1.9 
Commodities less food and energy 

commodities .......... .. .. .0 ~ .1 - .1 .0 
New vehicles ......... .0 -.3 . i .0 
Used cars and trucks ....................... .0 -.5 -.1 .4 
Apparel -------------------------------- .4 -.3 -.3 .3 
Medical care commodities.............. -.6 .5 .6 -.3 

Services less. energy services .1 .2 .2 .3 
Shelter -·--------------------------------------·-·--! .2 .3 .2 .3 
Transportation services -------------------: -.4 .1 .3 .2 
Medical care services ----------------------, .2 .2 .2 .3 

i Not seasonally adjusted. 

.1 

.3 

.5 

.0 

.3 

.3 

.2 

.7 

.3 

.1 

.2 
-. 1 
.3 
.5 
.3 
.3 

1.0 
.3 

.1 
-.3 
-.4 
.5 
.7 
.1 
.2 
.1 
.0 

-.2 
.0 
.1 
.9 

2.8 
2.7 
2.8 
3.2 
2.6 

29



Consumer Price Index Data for June 2014 

Food 

The food index rose 0.1 percent in June; this compares to a 0.5 percent increase in May and is its 
smallest monthly increase since January. The index for food at home was unchanged in June after 
increasing 2.2 percent over the first five months of the year. Major grocery store food groups were 
mixed in June. The index for dairy and related products tnmcd down in June, falling OA percent after 
nsmg each of the previous seven months. fruits and vegetables index also turned down, falling 
0.3 percent after a l. l percent increase in May. The index for cereals and bakery products fell for the 
second month in a row, declining 0.2 percent. In contrast to these declines, the index for meats, poultiy, 
fish, and eggs increased in June, though its 0.2 percent increase was its smallest since December. The 
index for other food at home increased 0.1 percent in June, while the index for nonalcoholic beverages 
was unchanged. The index for food at home has increased 2.4 percent over the past year, with the index 
for meats, poultiy, fish, and eggs up 7.5 percent, but the indexes for nonalcoholic beverages and for 
cereals and bakery products both declining. The index for food away from home rose 0.2 percent in JU11e 
and has risen 2.2 percent over the past 12 months. 

Energy 

The energy index increased 1.6 percent in June, its third increase in a row and largest since December. 
The gasoline index rose for the third month in a row, increasing 3.3 percent. (Before seasonal 
adjustment, gasoline prices increased 0.3 percent.) The electricity index also increased in June, rising 0.2 
percent. In contras!, the fuel oil index fell l. 7 percent, its fourth consecutive decline. The index for 
natural gas also decreased, falling 2.6 percent. Over the past 12 months, the energy index has increased 
3.2 percent, with its major components increasing from a low of2.0 percent (gasoline) to a high of 5.1 
percent (natural gas). 

All items less food and energy 

The index f:or all items less food and energy increased 0.1 percent in June after a 0.3 percent increase in 
May. The shelter index dccckratcd, increasing 0.2 percent in June after a 0.3 percent increase the prior 
month. The indexes for rent and owners' equivalent rent repeated their May increases of OJ percent and 
0.2 percent, respectively. However, the for lodging away from home turned down in June, falling 
1.9 percent after rising 2.0 percent in May. The apparel index rose 0.5 percent in June, its largest 
increase since last July. The medical care index rose 0. J percent in June; the index for medical care 
services was unchanged, but the index for prescription drugs increased 1.0 percent The index for 
household furnishings and operations rose 0.2 percent in June, its first increase since June 2013. The 
index for airline fares, which rose 5.8 percent in May, increased 0.4 percent in June. The tobacco index 
also rose, increasing 1.0 percent, and the recreation index advanced 0.1percent1n contrast, the new 
vehicles index fell in June; its 0.3 percent decrease was its first decline since January. The index for used 
cars and trucks also decreased, declining 0.4 percent. 

The index for all items less food and energy has risen l .9 percent over the last 12 months; this is slightly 
lower than the 2.0 percent figure in May, but higher than the 1. 7 percent average annualized increase 
over the past five years. shelter index has increased 2.8 percent over the last 12 months, while the 
medical care index has risen 2.6 percent The index for new vehicles was U11changed over the span. 

- 3 -

30



Not seasonally adjusted CPI measures 

The Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPl-U) increased 2.1 percent over the last 12 
months to an index level of 238.343 (1982-84=100). For the month, the index rose 0.2 percent prior to 
seasonal adjustment. 

The Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPT-W) increased 2.0 
percent over the last 12 months to an index level of 234. 702 (l 982-84= IOO). For the month, the index 
rose 0.2 percent prior to seasonal adjustment. 

The Chained Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (C-CPI-U) increased l .9 percent over the 
last 12 months. For the month, the index rose 0.2 percent on a not seasonally adjusted basis. Please note 
that the indexes for the post-2012 period arc subject to revision. 

The Consumer Price Index for July 
at 8:30 a.m. (EDT). 

is scheduled to be released 011 Tuesday, August 

- 4 -

2014, 

31



Facilities for Sensory Impaired 

Infonnation from this release will be made available to sensory impaired individuals upon request. 
Voice phone: 202-691-5200, Federal Relay Services: 1-800-877-8339. 

Brief Explanation of the CPI 

The Consumer Price Index (CPI) is a measure of the average change in prices over time of goods and 
services purchased by households. The Bureau of Labor Statistics publishes CPis for two population 
groups: (1) the CPI for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPJ-W), which covers households of 
wage earners and clerical workers that comprise approximately 28 percent of the total population and (2) 
the CPI for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) and the Chained CPI for All Urban Consumers (C-CPI-U), 
which covers approximately 89 percent of the total population and inclttdes, in addition to wage earners 
and clerical worker households, f;Toups such as professional, managerial, and technical workers, the self
employed, short-term workers, the unemployed, and retirees and others not in the labor force. 

The CP!s arc based on prices of food, clothing, shcitcr, and fuels, transportation fares, charges for 
doctors' and dentists' services, drugs, and other goods and services that people buy day-to-day 
living. Prices are collected each month 87 urban areas across the country from about 4,000 housing 
units and approximately 26,000 retail establishments-department stores, supem1arkets, hospitals, filling 
stations, and other types of stores and service establishments. All taxes directly associated with the 
purchase and use of items arc included in the index. Prices of fuels and a few other items arc obtained 
every montl1 in all 87 locations. Prices of most other commodities and services are collected every 
month in the three largest geographic areas and every other month in other areas. Prices of most goods 
and services are obtained by personal visits or telephone calls of the Bureau's trained representatives. 

Jn calculating the index, price changes for the vaiious items in each location arc averaged together with 
weights, which represent their importance in the spending of the appropriate population group. Local 
data arc then combined to obtain a U.S. city average. For the CPI-U and CPI-W separate indexes arc 
also published by size of city, by region of the country, for cross-classifications of regions and 
population-size cl.asses, and for 27 local areas. Arca indexes do not measure differences in the level of 
prices among cities; they only measure the average change in prices for area since the base period. 
For the C-CP!-U data are issued only at the national level. It is important to note that the CP!-U and 
CPl-W arc considered final when released, but the C-CPI-U is issued in preliminary form and subject to 
two annual revisions. 

The index measures change from a designed reference date. For the CPJ-U and the CPI-W the 
reference base is 1982-84 equais 100. The reference base for the C-CPI-U is December 1999 equals 100. 
An increase of 16.5 percent from the reference base, for example, is shown as 116.500. This change can 
also be expressed in dollars as follows: the price of a base period market basket of goods and services in 
the CPI has risen from $ l 0 in 1982-84 to $11.65. 

For further details visit lhe CPI home page on the Internet at http://www.bls.gov/cpi/ or contact our CPI 
Infonnation and Analysis Section on (202) 691-7000. 

- 5 •" 

32



on Sampling in the Consumer Price Index 

The CPI is a statistical estimate that is subject to sampling cnor because it is based upon a sample of 
retail prices and not the complete universe of all prices. BLS calculates and publishes estimates of the 1-
month, 2-month, 6-month and 12-month percent change standard errors annually, for the CPl-U. These 
standard error estimates can be used to construe! confidence intervals for hypothesis testing. For 
example, the estimated standard enor of the l month percent change is 0.04 percent for the U.S. All 
Items Consumer Price Index. This means that if we repeatedly sample from the universe all retail 
prices using the same methodology, and estimate a percentage change for each sample, then 95% of 
these estimates would be within 0.08 percent of the 1 month percentage change based on all retail 
prices. For example, for a I-month change of0.2 percent in the All Items CPI for All Urban 
Consumers, we arc 95 percent confident that the actual percent change based on at! retail prices would 
fall between O. l 2 and 0.28 percent. For tbe latest data, including info1111ation on how to use the estimates 
of standard error, sec "Variance Estimates for Price Changes in the Consumer Price Index, January
Dcccmbcr 2013". These data arc available on the CPI home page (http://www.bls.gov/cpi), or by using 
the following link: http://www,bls.gov/cpi/cpivar2013.pdf 

Calculating Index Changes 

Movements of the indexes from one month to another are usually expressed as percent changes rather 
than changes in index points, because index point changes arc affected by the level of the index in 
relation to its base period while percent changes arc not. The example below illustrates the computation 
of index point and percent changes. 

Percent changes for 3-month and 6-rnontb periods are expressed as annual rates and are computed 
according to the standard formula for compound growth rates. These data indicate what the percent 
change would be if the cuJTcnt rate were maintained a 12-month period. 

Index Point Change 

CPI 
Less previous index 
Equals index point change 

Percent Change 

Index point difference 
Divided by the previous index 
Equals 
Results multiplied one hundred 
Eqnals percent ~""""·''v 

6 -

202.416 
201.800 

.616 

.616 
201.800 

0.003 
0.003xl 00 

0.3 

33



Note on Seasonally Ad.justed and Unadjusted Data 

Because price data arc used for different purposes by different groups, the Bureau of Labor Statistics 
publishes seasonally adjusted as well as unadjusted changes each month. 

For analyzing general price trends in the economy, seasonally adjusted changes arc usually prefeITed, 
since they eliminate the effect of changes that normally occur at the same time and in about the same 
magnitude every ycar--such as price movements resulting from changing climatic conditions, production 
cycles, model changeovers, holidays, and sales. 

The unadjusted data are of primary interest to consumers concerned about the prices they actually pay. 
Unadjusted data also are used extensively for escalation purposes. Many collective bargaining contract 
agreements and pension plans, for example, tie compensation changes to the Consumer Price Index 
before adjustment for seasonal variation. 

Seasonal factors used in the seasonally adjusted indexes are derived by the X-l3ARIMA-
SEA TS Seasonal Adjustment Method. Seasonally adjusted indexes seasonal factors are computed 
annually. Each year, the last five years of seasonally adjusted data are revised. Data from January 2009 
through December 2013 were replaced in January 2014. Exceptions to the usual revision schedule were: 
the updated seasonal data at the end of 1977 replaced data from 1967 through 1977; and, in January 
2002, dcpcndcntiy seasonally adjusted series were revised for January 1987-Dcccmbcr 2001 as a result 
of a change in the aggregation weights for dependently adjusted series. For further information, please 
see "Aggregation of Dependently Adjusted Seasonally Adjusted Series," in the October 200! issue of 
the CPI Detailed Report. 

Effective with the publication of data from January 2006 through December 20 I 0 in January 201 l, the 
Video and audio series and the Information technology, hardware and services series were changed from 
independently adjusted to dependently adjusted. This resulted in an increase in the number of seasonal 
components used in deriving seasonal movement of the All items and 64 other lower level aggregations, 
from 73 for the publication of January l 998 throngh December 2005 data to 82 for the publication of 
seasonally adjusted data for January 2006 and later. Each year the seasonal statns of every series is 
reevaluated based upon certain statistical criteria. If any 82 components change their seasonal 
adjustment status from seasonally adjusted to not seasonally adjusted, not seasonally adjusted data will 
be used in the aggregation of the dependent series for the last five years, but the seasonally adjusted 
indexes before that period not be changed. Note: 35 of the 82 components are not seasonally 
adjusted for 2014. 

Seasonally adjusted data. including the all items index levels, arc subject to revision for up to five years 
after their original rc!casc. this reason, advises against the use of these data in escalation 
agreements. 

Effective with the calculation of the seasonal factors for l 990, the Bureau of Labor Statistics has used an 
enhanced seasonal adjustment procedure called Intervention Analysis Seasonal Adjustment for some 
CPI series. Intervention Analysis Seasonal Adjustment allows for better estimates of seasonally adjusted 
data. Extreme values and/or sharp movements which might distort the seasonal pattern arc estimated 
and removed the data prior to calculation of seasonal factors. Beginning with the calculation of 
seasonal factors l 996. X-12-ARIMA sotlware was used for Intervention Analysis ::,eas•:m:11 
Adjustment. 2014, for the 2009-2013 the Burcan of Statistics X-

34



I 3ARIMA-SEATS to perform the seasonal adjustment CPI series, including Intervention Analysis 
Seasonal Adjustment for certain series. 

For the seasonal factors introduced in January 2014, BLS adjusted 31 series using Intervention Analysis 
Seasonal Adjustment, including selected food and beverage items, motor fuels, electricity and vehicles. 
For example, this procedure was used for the Motor fuel series to offset the effects of events such as the 
response in crude oil markets to the worldwide economic downturn in 2008. 

For a complete list of Intervention Analysis Seasonal Adjustment series and explanations, please refer to 
the article "llltcrvention Analysis Seasonal Adjustment", located on our website at 
http://www.bls.gov/cpi/cpisapage.htm. 

For additional information on seasonal adjustment in the please write to the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, Division of Consumer Prices and Price Indexes, Washington, DC 20212 or contact Chris 
Graci at (202) 691-5826, or hy e-mail at graci.christophcr@bls.gov, or contact Carlyle Jackson at (202) 
691 or by e-mail atjackson.carlyle@bls.gov.lfyou have general questions about the please 
call our information staff at (202) 691-7000. 

35



Table 1. Consumer Price Index lor All Urban Consumers (CPl-U): U.S. city average, 
June 2014 

[1982-84-100 unless otherwise noted] -

Expenditure category 

All !terns .. 
Food .. 

Food at home .. 

Cereals and bakery products .. 

Meats, poultry, fi?h, and eggs .. 

Dairy and related products 1 
•• 

Fruits and vegetables .. 

Nonalcoholic beverages and beverage 
materials .. 

Other food at home.. . 

Food away from home 1 
.. 

Energy .. 
Energy commodities ... 

Fuel oil 1 
•• 

Motor fuel .. 

Gasoline (all types) .. 

Energy services:' .. 

E!ectricity2 
•. 

Utility (piped) gas service2 •. 

A!I items less food and energy .. 

Commodities less food and energy 
commodities .. 

AppareL. 

New vehicles .. 
Used cars and trucks .. 

Medical care commodities .. 

A!coholic beverages ... 

Tobacco and smoking products1
• 

Services less energy services., 

Shelter .... 

Ren! of primary residence 2 
.• 

Owners' equivalent rent of 
resldences

2
• 

3 
..•..•••....•.. 

Medical care services .. 

Physicians' services2 
.• 

Hospital services?, 4 
.. 

Transportation services .. 

Motor vehicle maintenance and 
repair1 

.. 

Motor vehide insurance .. 

Airline tare .. 

1 Not seasonally adjusted. 

. . . . . . I 

. . . . . . I 

. . . . . . ! 

I 
. . ' . . . i 

··.··••I 

I 

Relative ' 
'1mpor-
tance 
May 
2014 

100.000 
13.864 

8.216 
1.126 
1.9i 8 
0.870 

1.366 

0.929 
2.007 
5.648 

9.671 
5.827 
0.170 
5.562 
5.475 
3.844 
2.936 
0.908 

76465 

19463 
3.434 
3.509 
1.675 
i.708 
0.994 
0.694 

57.001 
31.835 

6.911 

23.635 
5.824 
1.560 
1.803 
5.592 

1.\38 
2.200 
0.825 

Unadjusted percent 
Unadjusted indexes 

change 

I 
I Jun. 

I 
May 

,Jun. May I Jun. 2013- 2014-
2013 2014 I 2014 Jun. Jun. 

I I 2014 I 2014 

233.504 237.900 238.343 2.1 0.2 
236.792 242.344 242.326 2.3 0.0 
233.499 239.504 239.147 2.4 -0.i 
27'L7i6 271 .362 270.860 -0.3 ·0.2 
235.277 251.825 252.865 7.5 0.4 
216.062 225.491 224.522 3.9 -04 

286.643 298.626 295.139 3.0 -i .2 

166.287 164.640 164.700 ·1.0 0.0 
205.789 205.866 205.996 0.1 0.1 
243.0!6 247.952 248.445 2.2 0.2 

251.921 255.982 259.858 3.2 i .5 
315.529 322.394 322.920 2.3 0.2 
355.966 376.855 370.317 4.0 -1.7 

313.058 318.840 319.692 2.1 0.3 
312.212 317.434 318.334 2.0 0.3 
202.075 203.781 211.038 4.4 3.6 
208.737 206.715 217.529 4.2 5.2 
179.557 192.303 188.769 5.1 · 1.8 

233.640 238.029 238.157 1.9 0.1 

147.385 147.454 147.087 -0.2 -0.2 
126.205 128.963 127.302 0.9 -1.3 
146.076 146.708 146.067 0.0 -0.4 
151.760 151.441 151.978 0.1 0.4 
333.837 341.432 343.224 2.8 0.5 
234.460 236.894 236.569 0.9 ·0.1 
869.824 898.143 907.216 4.3 1.0 
286.024 293.208 293.668 2.7 0.2 
262.907 269.766 270.314 2.8 0.2 
266.905 274.710 275.321 3.2 0.2 

270.126 276.748 277.256 2.6 0.2 
453.325 465.014 464.960 2.6 0.0 
355.105 359.547 359.056 1. i -0.1 
263.287 278.568 278.695 5.9 0.0 
280.184 288.627 289.018 3.2 0 1 

261.360 265.013 265.656 1.6 0.2 
4i5.353 434.934 435.654 4.9 0.2 
325.321 341.947 342.697 5.3 0.2 

expenditure category, 

Seasonally adjusted percent 
change 

I 
ApL 

I 
May Mar. 

2014· 2014- 2014· 

i Apr. 

I 

May Jun. 

! 2014 2014 2014 

0.3 0.4 0.3 
0.4 0.5 0.1 

0.4 0.7 0.0 
0.0 -0.1 -0.2 
1.5 1.4 0.2 
0.5 0.6 -04 
0.7 1. i ·0.3 

·0.1 04 0.0 
·0.2 0.3 0.1 
0.3 0.2 0.2 

0.3 0.9 i.6 
1.9 0.6 3.0 

-3.0 -1.4 -1.7 
2.3 0.8 3.3 
2.3 0.7 3.3 

·1.9 1.4 -0.4 
·2.6 2.3 0.2 
0.3 -1.7 -2.6 

0.2 0.3 0.1 

0.1 0:1 0.1 
o.o 0.3 0.5 
0.3 0.2 -0.3 
05 -0.1 -0.4 
0.3 0.5 0.7 
0.1 0.0 -0.1 
0.1 0.2 1.0 
0.3 0.3 0.1 
0.2 0.3 0.2 
0.3 0.3 0.3 

0.2 0.2 0.2 
0.3 0.3 0.0 
0.3 0.4 -0.3 
0.5 0.3 0.2 
o.7 1.0 0.1 

0.1 02 0.2 
0.9 0.6 0.2 
2.6 5.8 0.4 

"'This index series was calcuiated using a Laspeyres estimator. All othe1· item stratum index series were calculated using a geometric means 
estimator. 

3 Indexes on a December 1982=100 base. 
0 Indexes on a December ·1996:::::100 base. 
NOTE: index applies to a month as a whole. not to any specific date. 

36



Table 2. Consumer Price index !or All Urban Consumers (CPi-U): U.S. city average, by detailed expenditure 
category, June 2014 

[1982-84=100 unless otherNise noted] . 
I 

Expenditure category 

All Items .. 

Food .. 

Food at home .. 

Cereals and bakery products .. 

Cereals and cereal products .. 

Flour and prepared flour mixes .. 

Breakfast cereal 1• 

Rice, pasta, cornmeal 1
• 

Rice,· 2, 3 .. 

Bakery products .. 
Bread2 

.. 

White breadi. 3 

Bread other than white 1 · 8 

Fresh b\scu'its, rolls, muff:ns1 
· 

2 

Cakes. cupcakes, and cookies .. 

Cookies 1 
· '

1 
.• 

Fresh cakes and cupcakes 1
· 

3 
.. 

Other bakery products .. 

Fresh sweetroHs, coffeecakes. doughnuts1
• 

3 

Crackers, bread, and cracker products3 
.. 

Frozen and refrigerated bakery products, pies. 
tarts, turnovers3 

.. 

Meats, poultry, fish, and eggs .. 

···.·-····························.1 Meats, poultry, and fish .. 
Meats .. 

Beet and veal'1 
•• 

Uncooked ground beef1 
.. . 

Uncooked beef roasts 1
· 

2 
.. . 

Uncooked beef steaks 1 2 
.. 

Uncooked other beef and ve-a\1
· 

2 

Pork .. 

Bacon. breakfast sausage, and related 
products2

. . . ................. . 

Bacon and related products~'. 
Breakfast sausage and related products2

· 
3 
.. 

Ham .. 

Ham, excluding canned8 
.. 

Pork chops .. 

Other pork including roasts and picnics2 
.. 

Other meats .. 
Frankturters3 .. 

Lunch meats 1· 2 · 

Lamb and organ meats 1 · ~; 

Larnb and rnutton 1. 2 3 

Poultry .. 

Chicken" .. 
Fresh whole chicken 1• 

Fresh and frozen chicken parts;· 3 

Other poultry including turkey2 
.. 

Fish and seafood1
. 

Fresh fish and seafood·1
• 

2 
.• 

Processed fish and seafood2 
.. 

Shelf stable fish and seafood 1 3 

See footnotes at end of table. 

. . . . . . . . . 1· 

....... 

. . . . . . . . . I 

Relative 
importance 

May 
2014 

100.000 
13.864 
8216 
1.126 
0.371 
0.050 
0.192 
0.129 

0.755 
0.223 

0. i ~12 

0.185 

0.235 

1.918 
1.798 
1.157 
0.528 
0.214 
0.076 
0.192 
0.046 
0.371 

0.147 

0.072 

0.064 
0.088 
0.257 

0.353 
0.285 

0.068 
0.288 
0.148 
0.140 

I 
Unad.justed percent 

Seasonally adjusted percent change change 

Jun. May Mar. 

I 
Apr. May 

2013- 2014- 2014- 2014- 2014-
Jun. Jun. Apr. May Jun. 
2014 2014 2014 I 2014 2014 

2.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.3 
2.3 0.0 0.4 0.5 0.1 
2.4 -0.1 0.4 0.7 0.0 

-0.3 -0.2 0.0 -0.1 -0.2 

-0.4 0.1 -0.8 -0.1 0.2 
-1.4 1.0 -1.6 -0.3 0.6 
0.0 0.8 0.2 -0.1 0.8 

-1.1 -1.2 -1.2 1 .4 -1.2 
0.8 -1.0 -0.4 1.4 -1.0 

-0.2 -0.3 0.5 -0.2 -0.2 
-1.4 -0.1 1.3 -1.2 0.0 
-2.8 -0.6 2.2 -1.7 -0.6 
-0.1 0.0 1.3 -0.8 0.0 
-1.6 -1.1 -0.9 0.4 -0.6 
1.4 -0.1 -0.4 1.1 -0.4 
1.3 -0.5 -1.3 0.9 -0.3 
1.8 -0.1 0.1 i.2 -0.1 
0.4 -0.3 0.8 -0.3 0.1 

-1.2 0.1 0.8 -0.9 0.1 
3.0 -0.9 0.7 1.8 0.0 

-0.9 -0.9 -1.2 0.4 -0.6 
7.5 0.4 1.5 1.4 0.2 
7.5 0.5 1.5 1.3 0.2 
9.4 0.5 2.9 1.1 0.3 

10.4 0.1 3.0 0.1 0.1 
11.1 0.2 2.6 0.1 0.2 
11.0 -0.7 3.3 0.2 -0.7 

9.4 0.4 3.3 -0.3 0.4 
10.7 0.1 2.6 1.4 0.1 
12.0 0.5 4.1 2.4 0.1 

12.2 -0.1 3.0 36 -0.2 
11.3 -0.9 4.9 5.1 -2.1 
12.4 0.9 0.3 3.2 1.1 
3.7 2.5 0.1 1.2 0.2 
3.7 3.2 -0.4 u 1.1 

14.3 -1.9 6.5 1.1 -1.5 

18.I 1.8 6.6 1.7 2.5 
3.9 1.1 1.1 1.3 1.1 
7.1 2.0 4.5 1.4 1.6 
4.0 0.9 1.6 0.5 0.9 

-3.4 -2.\ ·3A 4.5 -2.1 
-13.2 -3.4 -6.1 5.8 -3.4 

1.7 0.5 -1.6 1.6 -0.1 
1.5 0.5 -1.6 1.7 -0.2 
0.9 -2.7 -1.2 3.3 -2.7 
0.7 1.5 -0.9 0.3 1.5 
2.6 0.7 -1.6 1.3 0.5 
7.2 0.3 0.0 1.9 0.1 
9.1 0.4 1.0 20 .L 0.4 
5.2 0.3 0.1 1.1 0.0 
0.5 0.6 2.i -0.2 0.6 

37



Table 2. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-LI): U.S. 
category, June 2014 - Continued 

f1982-84=100 unless otherwise noted] 

average, by detailed expenditure 

Unadjusted percent 
Seasonally adjusted percent change 

Expenditure category 

Frozen fish and seafood3 
•• 

Eggs ... 

Dairy and related products 1 . 

Milk1- 2 .. 

Fresh whoie milk1
· 

3 
.. 

Fresh milk other than whole 1
• 

2, 3 

Cheese and related products 1. 

Ice cream and related products ... 
Other dairy and re!ated products2 

•• 

Fruits and vegetables .. 

Fresh fruits and vegetables .. 
Fresh trufts .. 

Apples .. 
Bananas .. 
Citrus truits2 ... 

Oranges, including tangerines3 
.• 

Other fresh fruits2 .. 

Fresh vegetables .. 

Potatoes .. 
Lettuce .. 

' Tomatoes . 

Other fresh vegetables .. 

Processed fruits and vegetables2 
.. 

Canned fruits and vegetables2 
.. 

Canned fruits2
· 3 .. 

Canned vegetables2
· 

3 
..• 

Frozen fruits and vegetables2 
•• 

Frozen vegetables3 
.. 

. . . . . . . I 
... " 

Other processed fruits and vegetables including 
dded2 .. 

Dried beans, peas, and lentils 1
· ?., 

3 
.. 

Nonalcoholic beverages and beverage materials .. 

Juices and nonalcoholic drinks2 ,. 

Carbonated drinks .. 
Frozen noncarbonated juices and drinks 1 

· ? 

Nonfrozen noncarbonated juices and dr!nks1
• 

2 

Beverage materials induding coffee and tea2 .. 

Coffee ... 

Roasted coffee3 
.. 

Instant and freeze dried coffee1
· 

3 

Other beverage materiais including tea2 .. 

Other food at home" 

Sugar and sweets 1 
•• 

Sugar and artfficiaf sweeteners .. 

Candy and chewing gum 1 2 

Other sweets2 
•. 

Fats and oils .. 

Butter and margarine2 
•• 

Butter~'.. 

Margarine~1 .. 

Salad dressing 1 
" 

Other fats and oils including peanut butter''. .. 
Peanut butter1 2 · ;i 

Other foods .. 

See footnotes ai end oi iab!e. 

Relative 
importance 

May 
2014 

0.119 
0.870 
0.278 

0.279 
0.117 
0.196 
1.366 
i .061 
0.593 
0.092 
0.086 
0.166 

0.249 
0.468 
0.080 
0.065 

0.242 
0.305 
0.160 

0.088 

0.057 

0.929 
0.679 
0.281 
0.014 
0.384 
0.250 
O.i53 

0.098 
2.007 
0.292 
0.054 
0.178 
0.060 
0.242 
0.072 

0.061 
0.109 

1.473 

change 

Jun. May Mar. 

I 
Apr. May 

2013- 2014- 2014- 2014· 2014· 
Jun. Jun. Apr. May Jun. 
2014 2014 i 2014 i 2014 2014 

10.2 0.2 ·0.1 2.5 0.0 
8.6 -0.3 0.7 2.7 -0.1 
3.9 ·DA 0.5 0.6 ·OA 
5.0 ·0.8 0.3 0.4 ·0.8 
6.1 ·0.8 0.2 0.5 -0.8 
4.5 ·0.4 0.1 0.3 ·0.4 
7.4 ·0.3 1.6 2.0 0.7 

·1.6 ·0.7 0.0 ·0.9 ·0.7 
0.9 0.1 0.1 0.9 0.4 
3.0 ·1.2 0.7 1.1 -0.3 

4.0 ·1.5 1.3 1.2 -0.3 
5.8 ·4.1 1.4 0.1 ·2.3 
3.1 4.5 0.9 2.5 1.4 

·0.9 0.8 0.4 0.0 0.6 
12.2 ·4.4 3.9 0.9 ·7.7 

7.5 -1.5 0.3 ·0.2 ·7.7 
5.0 -8.7 -0.2 ·1.4 ·1.0 
2.0 1.8 1.1 2.6 2.2 
6.6 1.9 0.7 0.1 0.8 
4.6 5.7 5.0 2.0 7.9 

1.9 

0.4 0.7 2.8 1.1 
-0.3 0.0 0.6 ·0.3 
0.9 -0.4 1.1 ·0.9 

-0.7 0.3 0.2 0.2 
1.8 ·1.2 1.8 · 1.8 

·24 0.2 -0.8 0.3 
·2.8 0.1 ·1.2 ·0.4 

0.2 0.7 0.4 0.0 
4.6 0.4 1.6 0.4 

·1.0 0.0 0.4 0.0 
·0.9 0.1 0.2 0.2 
-0.5 -0.2 0.0 -0.3 
0.5 -1 .1 ·0.2 · 1.1 

·1.3 0.4 -0.B 0.4 
-1.3 ·0.2 0.6 0.0 
-2.7 0.3 0.4 0.8 
-3.4 0.0 0.4 0.5 
1.2 2.6 -LS 2.6 
0.5 ·1.0 0.7 ·0.8 
0.1 0.1 0.3 0.1 

-1.7 0.4 -0.5 0.4 
·3.6 1.3 0.1 1.7 
-1.7 -0.1 -0.8 ·0.1 
0.2 0.7 -0.3 0.9 
0.0 0.1 0.1 0.4 
5.6 0.7 0.7 1.6 

11.2 3.1 0 1 4.i 
0.1 -1.3 -i.4 1.8 -0.5 

·2.3 0.2 -0. i -2.5 0.2 
-2.2 -0.4 0.9 -0.6 
-3,8 ·0.5 0.1 -0.5 
0.4 0.0 0.6 0.0 

38



Table 2. Consumer Price Index lor All Urban Consumers (CPl-U): U.S. 
category, June 2014 - Continued 
[1982-84~100. unless otherwise noted] 

Unadjusted percent 

Expenditure category 

Soups .. 

Frozen and freeze dried prepared foods 1 . 

Snacks 1
. 

Spices, seasonings, condiments, sauces .. 

Salt and other seasonings and spices2
' 

3 

Olives, pickles, relishes 1 
· 

2
· 

3 

Sauces and gravies2
· 3 , . 

Other condiments3 
.. 

Babyfood1
·

2 
.•. 

Other miscellaneous foods 1 
· 

2 

Prepared salads 1 
· 

3
· 

4 
.. 

. . . . . . . . I 

. . . . . . . . I 

. I 

Food away from home 1 
.. 

Full service mea!s and snacks 1
· 

2 

············.·.·.·.·.·•····•••··• 1 Limited service meals and snacks 1' 
2 

• , , .......... · I 
Food at employee sites and schools2

... ' 

Food at elementary and secondary schools3 · 5 , . · 1 

Food from vending machines and mobile vendors 1 · 2 , ... 

Other food away from home 1 2 

Energy .. 

Energy commodities .. 

Fuel oil and other fue!s 1• 

Fuel 0H 1 
•• 

Propane, kerosene, and firewood·1
· 

6 

Motor fuel.. 

Gasoline (all types) ... 

Gasoline, unleaded regular3 
.. 

Gasoline, unleaded mldgrade3 · ·
1 

Gasoline, unleaded premium 3 ... 

Other motor fuels2 
.. 

Energy services8 
.. 

Electricity8 
.. 

UtHlty (piped) gas service8 
... 

All items less food and energy ... 

Commodities iess food and energy commodities .. 

Household furnishings and supplies 1· 
8 
.. 

Window and floor coverings and other linens 1 ' 
2 

Floor coverings 1 , 
2 

•. 

\Nindow coverings·1
• 

2 
.. 

Other linenS1
' 

2 
.. 

Furniture and bedding 1 • 

Bedroom furniture 1 , I 
Uving room, kitchen, and dining room furniture 1 2 

: : 

Other turniture2 
.. 

Infants' furniture 1
· 

8
· 

5 

App!iances2
, , 

Major appliances2 
.. 

Laundry equipment3 
.. 

Ott1er appliances 1
· 

2
. 

Other household equipment and furnishings 2
• 

Clocks, lamps, and decorator items 1 • 

Indoor piants and flowers 10 
.. 

Dishes and flatware 1 
· 

2 
, 

Nonelectric cookware and tab!eware2
. 

See footnotes ai end of table. 

Relative 
importance 

May 
2014 

0.100 
0.276 
0.322 
0.291 

0.054 
0.430 

5.648 

2735 

2.332 
0.206 

0.062 
0.313 

9.671 
5.827 
0.265 
0.170 
0.095 
5.562 
5.475 

0.087 
3.844 
2.936 
0.908 

76.465 
19.463 

3.352 
0.273 
0.046 

0.054 
0.173 
0.769 
0.271 
0.361 
0.129 

0.275 
O,i53 

O,i 19 

0.487 
0.264 
0.106 
0.042 
0.075 

Jun. 
2013-
Jun. 
2014 

-1.1 
-0.2 
0.5 
1.4 
3.9 

-1.1 

2.0 
-3.8 

1.8 
0.1 
1.4 
2.2 

2.2 

2.2 

2.2 

2.0 
-0.8 

3.1 

3.2 

2.3 
4.2 

4.0 
5.5 
2.1 

2.0 
2.0 
2.2 
2.1 

1.6 
4.4 

4.2 
5.1 

1.8 
-0.2 

-2.5 
-2.1 

0.7 
0.2 

-4.1 
-2.5 
-0.4 
-3.3 
-3.9 

-54 
-7.9 

-8.6 

"2.1 

-4.8 
-6.9 
i .2 

-6.3 
-4.7 

change 

May 
2014-
Jun. 
2014 

0.7 
0.5 

-0.7 
-0.7 
-0.1 
-1.1 
-1.3 
-5.0 
-1.0 

06 
0.8 
0.2 
0.2 
0.2 

0.0 
0.0 
0.2 
0.3 

1 5 

0.2 
-2.0 
-1.7 

-2.5 
0.3 
0.3 
0.3 
0.6 
0.1 

-0.8 

3.6 
5.2 

-1.8 

0.1 
-0.2 

0.0 
0.5 
0.2 
0.2 
0.7 
0.2 
0.3 
0.6 

-1.0 

-0.2 
-1.0 
-1.1 

0.9 
0.3 
0.0 

0.2 
3.4 

-0.4 

' 
I 

detailed expemmure 

Seasonally adjusted percent change 

Mar. 
2014-
Apr. 
2014 

0.0 
0.9 
0.0 

-1.2. 
-1.0 
1.5 

-i.7 

·1.5 
0.2 
0.5 
0.2 
0.3 
0.1 
0.4 
1.1 
0.4 

-0.4 

0.3 

0.3 
1.9 

-5.4 
-3.0 
-7.7 

2.3 
2.3 
2.2 
1.9 

2.2 

-0.9 
-1.9 

-2.6 

0.3 

0.2 
0.1 

-0.3 
-0.8 

0.5 
-0.4 
-1.3 

0.7 
0.8 
1.0 
0.3 

-1.3 
-1.9 
-2.0 
-0.7 
-0.9 

0.0 
-0.9 
-4.0 

"'1.5 

Apr. 
2014-
May 
2014 

1.2 
0.5 
0.5 
1.2 
1 .5 

-4.9 

3.1 
5.4 
0.5 

-0.4 
-0.7 

0.2 
0.2 
0.1 

0.3 

0.3 
-0.6 
0.3 

0.9 

0.6 
-2.0 
-14 
-1.3 

0.8 
0.7 

0.8 
0.5 

0.8 
0.6 

1.4 
2.3 
-1.7 

0.3 
0.1 

·0.2 
0.6 

0.2 

0.7 
0.6 
0.1 

-0.1 

0.1 
0.3 

-1.7 
-1.3 
-2.0 
-2.1 

·0.4 
0.2 
I .2 

-3.2 

0.0 

May 
2014-
Jun. 
2014 

0.2 
0.5 

-0.7 
0.0 

0.6 

'1. i 
-0.7 
-5.8 
-1.0 

0.6 
0.8 
0.2 
0.2 
0.2 
1.2 

1.3 
0.2 
0.3 

1.6 

3.0 
-2.0 
-1.7 

0.1 
3.3 
3.3 
3.4 
3.2 
34 
2.1 

-0.4 
0.2 

-2.6 

0.1 
0.1 

0.0 
0.5 
0.2 
0.2 

0.7 
0.2 
0.3 
0.6 

-0.8 

-0.1 
-i. I 

-0.7 

0.9 
0.3 
0.0 
0.8 
3.4 

-0.6 

39



Table 2, Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers 11.,1•1-1u1: U.S. 
category, June 2014 - Continued 

[1982-84=100 unless otherwise noted] 

average, detailed expenditure 

I 
Unadjusted percent 

Seasonally adjusted percent change 

Expenditure category 

Tools, hardware. outdoor equipment and suppiies2
• . , 

Tools, hardware and supplies'· 2
.• "I 

Ho~~~dk:o:p~:~:~~~=~d supplies2 

: : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : I 
Household cleaning products 1 · 

2 
.. 

Household paper products ·i • 2 ..• 

Misce!laneous household products 1 
• 

Apparel .. 

Men's and boys' apparel ... 

Men's apparel.. 

Men's suits. spoii coats, and outerwear.. 

Men's furnishings .. 

Men's shirts and sweaters2 
.. 

Men's pants and shorts .. 
Boys' apparel .. 

Women's and giris' apparel.. 

Women's apparel.. 
Women's outerwear .. 

Women's dresses._ 

Women's suits and separates2 
.. 

Women's underwear, nightwear, sportswear and 
accessories2

. 

Girls' apparel.. 

Footwear. .. 

Men's footwear 1
• 

Boys' and girls' footwear.. 
Women's footwear_. . . . . . . . . . . . I 

Infants' and toddlers' apparel.. 
Jewe!ry and watches6 

... 

Watches 1
·

6 
.. 

Jewe!ry6
,. 

Transportation commodities less motor fuel9 
.. 

New vehicles .. 

New cars and trucks2
· 

3 

New cars3 
.. 

New trucks3 · n. 
Used cars and trucks .. 

Motor vehicle parts and equipment'1• 

Tires1
. 

Vehicle accessrn·ies other than tires 1
· 

2 

Vehic!e parts and equipment other than 
tires 1

· 
3 
.. 

Motor oil, cooiant, and flu!ds 1
• 

3 
... 

Medical care commodities .. 
Medicinal drugs.1

• 
8 
.. 

Prescription drugs ... 

Nonprescription drugs 1 · 

Medical equipment and supplies 1 
· 

5 

Recreation commodlties9 
.. 

Video and audio products0 .. 

Televisions .. 

Other video equipment1 · 
2 
.. 

Audio equipment. 

Audio discs, tapes and other media 1• 
2 

See footnotes at end of table. 

I ..... I 

Relative 
importance 

May 
2014 

0]04 

0.185 
0.367 
0.843 
o.::;32 
0.248 
0.263 
3.434 

0.872 
0.686 
0.115 
0.190 
0.202 
0.172 
0.186 
1.505 
1.271 
0.105 
0.155 
0.606 

0.396 

0.234 
0.709 
0.215 
o.·155 
0.329 
0.134 
0.214 
0.046 
0.168 

5.721 
3.509 

1.675 

0.430 
0284 
0.145 

1.708 
1.632 
1.284 
0.348 
0.075 
2.030 
0.312 
0.150 
0.031 
0.070 

0 045 

Jun. 
2013· 
Jun. 
2014 

-1.5 
-1.4 

·1.5 
·1.1 
·2.3 
-0.5 
-0.2 

0.9 
-0.4 

·1.7 
-4.7 
-0.9 
-2.6 
0.4 
4.6 
3.5 
3.8 

16.4 
4.1 
1.5 

5.0 
1.7 

·1 .2 
2.5 
3.9 

-5.8 

1. 1 

·3.5 
-0.8 
-4.5 
-0.2 

0.0 
0.0 

-0.4 

0.6 
0.1 

·1.2 
·2.6 
1.4 

1.2 
2.9 

3.0 
4.1 

-1.0 
1. 1 

-2.3 
·6.7 

·15.0 
, 1.4 

·2.4 
2.4 

change 

I 
I 

May 
2014· 
Jun. 
2014 

-0.4 

·1.0 
-3.2 
-0.6 
1.6 

1.0 
·2.8 
-1.B 

1.8 
i .9 
1.7 

-0.2 
-0.4 
-0.4 
-0.4 
-0.5 

0.4 
-0.3 
-0.8 
07 

0.7 

0.6 
0.5 
0.6 
0.7 
0.0 

-0.4 

-0.2 

·1.5 
-2.4 

-0.7 
-14 

O.i 

Mai·. 
2014· 
Apr. 
2014 

-0.9 
-0.7 

·0.9 
-0.2 
-0.9 
0.7 
0.0 
0.0 

-0.4 

·1.0 
·2.2 
-0.4 

·2.8 
1.9 
2.8 
0.4 

-0.5 

0.3 
-4.1 
-1.0 

1.7 
5.1 

·0.2 
1.2 

1.1 
·1.2 
1.2 

, 1.4 

·1.5 
-1.4 

0.3 
0.3 
0.3 
0.1 
0.6 
0.5 
0.1 
0.1 
0.1 

0.3 

·0.4 
0.3 
0.3 
0.3 
0.6 
0.4 
0.0 

-0.5 

·1.8 
3.6 

·0.4 

0.7 

Apr. 
2014-
May 
2014 

·04 
·0.3 
-0.6 
·0.1 
-0.2 
-0.i 

0.1 
0.3 
0.2 

-0.2 
-OA 
0.3 

·0.9 

0.5 
0.5 
0.5 
0.5 
2.0 
0.7 

-0.4 

1.8 
0.6 
0.4 

·0.1 
3.0 

-0.6 
·0.6 
-0.1 

·0.6 
·0.2 
0.0 
0.2 
0.2 
0.1 
0.3 

-0.1 
-0.2 
-0.2 
-0.3 

-0.5 

0.8 
0.5 
0.3 
0.7 
0.1 

0.2 
·0.3 
·1 .0 
·1.9 
·04 
0.4 

-0.7 

May 
20i4-
Jun. 
2014 

-0.1 
-0.1 
-0.i 
·0.1 
·0.1 
·0.1 
0.0 

0.5 
0.5 
0.9 
0.8 
1. 1 
1 .1 
1.4 
0.3 

0.8 
1.2 
6.0 
1.1 
0.8 

·0.8 
·1.5 
0.1 
1.6 
2.2 

·1.6 
-0.7 

0.9 
1.9 
0.9 

-04 
-0.3 
-0.3 

·0.2 
-0.4 

·0.4 
·0.3 

·0.8 
0.7 

0.7 
0.6 
0.7 
0.6 
1.0 
0.0 

-0.4 
-0.2 
-1.3 
-2.i 
-0.7 
-0.9 
O.i 

40



Table 2. Consumer Price Index !or All Urban Consumers {CPl-U): U.S. city average, by detailed expenditure 
category, June 2014 - Continued 

'1982-84-100 unless otherwise noted] ' -

I 
i 

Expenditure category 

Pets and pet products 1 •. · ........ • • .... • .. • I 
Pet food'· 2

· 
3 

.. 

Purchase of pets, pet supplies. accessories 1 · 2 · :o • I 
Sporting goods 1 . 

Sports vehicles including bicycles~. 

Sports equipment. .. 

Photographic equipment and supplies .. 

Film and photographic supplies 1 
· 

2
· 

3 

Photographic equlpment2
· 

3 
.. 

Recreational reading materials 1 
.• 

Newspapers and n1agazines1
· 

2 

Recreationai books 1 
· 2 .. 

Other recreational goods2
. 

Toys ... 

Toys, .garnes:! hobbies and playground 
equipment-~'·--·························· 

Sewing machines, fabl"ic and supplies 1· 
2 
... 

Music instruments and accessories2 
.. 

Education and communication commodities9 
.. 

Educational books and supplies .. 

College textbooks 1, 
3

· 
12 

.• 

Information technology commod!ties9 
..• 

Persona! computers and peripheral equipment4
. 

Computer software and accessories 1 
· '~. 

Te!eohone hardware, calculators, and other 
co.nsumer intormation items 1 

• 
2 

Alcoholic beverages .. 

Alcoholic beverages at home .. 
Bee1·, ale, and other malt beverages at home .. 

Distilled spirits at home 1 • 

Whiskey at home? .. 
Distilled spirits, excluding whiskey, at home 1

· 
3 

Wine at home .. 

Alcoholic beverages away from home~. 

Beer, al~, and other malt beverages away tram 
home·. 2 · 3 .. 

Wine away from home 1 
· 

2
· 

3 
.. 

DistiHed spirits away from home 1
· 

2
· 

3 

Other goods8 
.. 

Tobacco and smoking products 1 • 

Cigarettes 1 
· 

2 
.. 

Tobacco products other than cigarettes"· 2 
•• 

Personal care products 1 . 

Hair, dental, shaving, and misceBaneous personal 
care products'· 2 

.. 

Cosmetics, perfume, bath, nail preparations and 
imolements 1 • 

Miscellaneous personal goods2 
. 

Stationery, stationery supplies. gifl wrap3 
.. 

Infants' equipment 1
· 

3
· 

5 
.. 

Services less energy services .. 

Shetter .. 
Rent of shelter1

:
1 

•• 

Rent ot prima1y residence8 
.. 

See footnotes at end of table. 

Relative 
importance 

May 
2014 

0.647 

0.403 
0.180 
0.217 
0.060 

0.218 
0.121 
0.095 

0.390 
0.286 

0.052 
0.041 
0.625 
0.191 

0.434 
0.294 

0.067 

0.073 
0.994 
0.587 
0.268 
0.073 

0.246 
0.407 

1.601 
0.694 
0.640 
0.049 
0.7i5 

0.362 

0.345 

0.192 

57.001 
31.835 
31.473 

6.911 

---· 

Unadjusted percent 

Jun. 
2013-
Jun. 
2014 

-0.3 
-0.3 
-0.1 
-1.3 
·0.6 
-2.0 

-2.4 

-6.7 

2.1 

4.9 
-1.4 
-5.3 
-6.5 

-3.3 
-1.4 
-0.9 
-3.1 

2.7 
3.0 

-6.2 
-6.3 
-4.2 

-7.7 

0.9 
0.2 
0.8 
0.1 

2.0 
-1.8 
-0.6 
2.0 

1.8 
1.8 

2.0 
2.2 
4.3 
4.5 
1.1 
0.7 

-0.1 

1.5 
-0.6 

0.0 
-1.2 

2.7 
2.8 
2.8 
3.2 

change 

May 
2014· 
Jun. 
2014 

0.3 
0.4 
0.1 
0.2 
0.2 
0.2 

-0.7 
-0.7 
-0.7 
-1.0 

·1.0 
-0.9 
0.0 
0.2 

0.4 
-0.7 
-0.2 
-0.6 
-0.2 
-0.2 
-0.8 
-0.7 

0.8 

-2.7 

-0.1 
-0.3 
-0.5 
-0.8 
0.5 

-1.0 

0.0 
0.2 

0.1 
0.1 
0.1 
0.4 
1.0 
1.0 
1.0 

0.0 

0.3 

·0.4 
-0.1 
-0.3 
1.8 

0.2 
0.2 
0.2 

0.2 

Seasonally adjusted percent change 

Mar. 
2014-
Apr. 
2014 

0.3 
0.4 
0.1 
0.8 
0.8 
0.6 
0.9 

0.2 
1.8 
1.2 
1.6 
0.6 

-1.5 
-2.2 

-1.6 

1.0 
0.3 
0.2 
1.1 
0.8 

-0.1 

·0.2 
-0.1 

0.0 
0.1 

-0.1 
0.1 

-0.2 
-0.4 
-0.1 
-0.3 

0.5 

0.2 
0.3 
0.6 
0.0 
0.1 
0.0 
0.2 
0.1 

-0.6 

0.8 
-0.2 

0.3 
0.7 
0.3 
0.2 
0.2 
0.3 

ApL 
2014-
May 
2014 

05 
0.4 
0.8 

-1.2 
-2.2 
-1.1 

-0.2 
-0.6 
-0.9 

0.7 
i.5 

-0.3 
-0.6 

·0.8 

-0.7 
-0.2 
-0.1 
-0.4 

0.4 
0.3 

-0.8 
-0.7 

-0.3 

-1.5 

0.0 
0.2 
0.0 
1.1 

-0.1 
1.0 

-0.1 
0.2 

0.3 
0.3 

0.2 
0.0 
0.2 
0.2 

-0.1 

-0.3 

-1.0 

0.6 
0.1 

-0.3 

0.4 
0.3 
0.3 
0.3 
0.3 

May 
2014-
Jun. 
20i4 

0.3 
0.4 
0.1 
0.2 

0.2 
0.4 

-0.6 
-0.7 
-1.1 

-1.0 
-1.0 

-0.9 

0.1 
0.3 

0.3 
-0.7 
-0.2 
-0.3 

0.1 
-0.2 
-0.5 
-0.2 

0.8 

-2.7 
-0.1 

-0.3 
-0.3 
-1.0 

0.5 
-1.0 
-0.1 

0.2 

0.1 
0.1 
0.1 
0.5 

1.0 
1.0 
1.0 

0.0 

0.3 

-0.4 
0.4 

0.2 
1.8 
O.i 

0.2 
0.2 
0.3 

41



Table 2. Consumer Price Index !or All Urban Consumers (CPl-U): U.S. city average, by detailed expenditure 
category, June 2014 - Continued 

[198?-84=100. unless othervvise noted] -
Unadjusted percent 

Seasonal!y adjusted percent change 
Relative change 

Expenditure category 
importance Jun. May Mar. Apr. May 

May 2013- 2014- 2014- 2014- 2014-
2014 Jun. Jun. I Apr. May Jun. 

20"14 2014 2014 2014 2014 

Lodging away from home2 
•• 0.926 3.1 0.7 0.4 2.0 -1.9 

Housing at school, excluding board8
· 

1(1 0.166 3.2 0.1 0.3 0.2 0.4 
Other lodging away from home including hotels 

and motels .. 0.760 2.9 0.8 0.4 2.5 -2.5 
Owners' equivalent rent of residences8

· 
13 23.635 2.6 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 

Owners' equivalent rent of pr"lmary 
residence8

· 
13 

.. 22.256 2.6 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 
Tenants' and household insurance1

· 
2 

•. 0.362 4.9 -0.2 -0.1 1.2 -0.2 
Water and sewer and trash collection services2 

.. 1.170 3.3 O.i 0.3 0.1 0.3 
Water and sewerage maintenance8 

.. 0.899 3.4 0.1 0.3 0.1 0.4 
Garbage and trash co!lection 1 " 0.271 2.7 0.2 0.5 0.0 0.2 

Household operations 1
· 

2 
.. 0.821 2.8 0.7 0.9 0.3 0.7 

Domestic services 1
· " •• 0.273 2.3 0.0 -0.2 0.1 0.0 

Gardening and !awncare services"'· 2 0.267 3.9 1 .2 2.3 0.0 1.2 
Moving, storage, fre'ight expense7

· .. 0.115 1.5 1.3 0.2 0.3 0.7 
Repair of household items 1 ' I 0.063 1.7 0.0 -0.1 0.7 0.0 I Medical care services .. .... I 5.824 2.6 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.0 
Professional services., 2.974 1.6 0.0 0.2 0.4 -0.1 

Physicians' services8 
.. 1.560 1.1 -0.1 0.3 0.4 -0.3 

Dental services8 
.. 0.790 2.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 

Eyeglasses and eye care 1 0 0.280 2.4 -0.1 0.0 1. I -0.1 
Services by other medical professiona!s 8

· 
6
., 0.343 1.5 0.6 -0.1 04 0.5 

Hospital and related services .. 2.103 5.4 0.0 0.4 0.3 0.2 
Hospital services8 · 14 ... 1.803 5.9 0.0 0.5 0.3 0.2 

Inpatient hospital services8
· 

14, '.'J 6.7 0.1 0.4 0.5 O.i 

Outpatient hospital services8
· 

3
- ';·. 5.3 0.2 0.5 0.2 0.5 

Nursing homes and adult day services8
' " 0.170 2.7 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.2 ... 

Care of invalids and elderly at home 1 " 
I 

0.130 . . . . . . . . . . . I 1.6 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0 
Health insurance 1 -

5 
•. 0.748 -0.7 

""' 
-0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 ..... 

Transportation services .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I 5.592 3.2 0.1 0.7 1.0 0.1 
Leased cars and trucks 12 

.. ' 0.390 -2.4 -0.8 -0.5 0.0 -1.2 
Car and truck rental2 

.. ,. ". ". 0.071 1.8 -0.2 -1.8 -2.3 -2.i 
Motor vehicle maintenance and repalr1 

.• 1.138 1.6 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 
Motor vehicle body work1

• 0.056 3.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 
Motor vehicie maintenance and servicing 1 

• , 0.478 1.0 0.2 0.1 -0.3 0.2 
Motor vehicle repair1

· 
2 

.. 0.573 2.0 0.3 0.1 0.6 0.3 
Motor vehicie insurance .. 2.200 4.9 0.2 0.9 0.6 0.2 
Motor vehicle lees ·i • 2 

• . 0.559 14 0.0 O.i 0.0 0.0 
State moto1· vehicle registration and license 

fees
1
-

8
·

2 
..•...•••.•............................. 0.312 0.9 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 

Parking and oiher tees;·'. 0.229 2.0 -0.2 0.4 0.3 -0.1 
Parking fees and to!ls 1

· 2 · 
3 
.. 2.6 -0.3 0.4 0.2 -0.3 

Automobile service clubs 1 
· 

2, 3 -1.4 0.3 · 1 .2 -0.2 0.3 
Public transportation .. . . . . . . . . . I 1.235 3.5 0.4 1.6 3.7 0.3 

Airline fare .. 0.825 5.3 0.2 2.6 5.8 0.4 
Other intercity transportation .. I 0.152 -0.6 1.8 -0.3 -1.3 0.0 

Intercity bus fare~· 3
-

4 
.. 

Intercity train fare 3
-

4 
.. -i .4 1.0 

Ship fare 1
· 2 · 3 .. -0.2 0.5 0.3 -0.4 0.5 

Intracity transportation 1 • 0.254 0.5 0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.1 
Intracity mass transl\1

' 
3, 9 0.6 O.i 0.0 0.0 0.1 

Recreation services9 
.. 3.702 2.2 0.1 0.3 0.1 0.2 

Vldeo and audio services(.) ... 1.549 2.4 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 

See tootnotes ai end oi" table 

42



Table 2. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers {CPl-U): U.S. 
category, June 2014 - Continued 

[1982-84=100 unless otherwise noted] , 

average, by delailed expenditure 

Unadjusted percent 
Seasonally adjusted percent change 

Expenditure category 

i 

Cable and satellite television and radio 
service 11

. 

I cs n h f V deo dis a d ot er media, including rental o 
video and audio1

· 
2
,,. ..1 

I 
Video discs and other media·1

- 2 · 3 .. 

Rental of video or audio discs and other 
media·· 2 · 3 .. 

Pet services inciuding veterinary2 
•• 

Pet services 1 
· 

2
- 3 __ 

Veterinarian services2
• 

3 
.. 

Photographers and film processing 1 
· 

2 

Photographer fees·1 
· 

2
• 

3 
.. 

Fiim processing 1 
• 

2
· 

3 
.• 

Other recreation se;vices2 .. 

C!ub dues and tees for participant sports and 
group exerdses2 

•• 

Admissions 1 ., 

Admission to movies, theate1·s, and 
concerts' 2• :> •• 

Admission to sporting events 1
· 

2
· :o .• 

Fees fo1· 1essons or instructions··· 6 . 
Education and communication services9 

.. 

Tuition, other school fees, and childcare .. 

College tuition and fees .. 
Elementary and high school tul!ion and fees .. 

Child care and nursery school 10 
.• 

Technical and business school tuition and fees2 
•• 

Postage and delivery services2 
.. 

Postage 1 
•• 

Delivery services 1 
· 

2 
.. 

Telephone services 1 
· 

2 
•• 

Wireless telephone services · 2 

Land·line telephone services1
· 

9 
.. 

Internet seryices and electronic information 
providers'· 2 

... 

Other personal services 1
· 

9 
.. 

Personal care services 1 ., 

Haircuts and other personal care services 1' 2 

Miscellaneous personal services .. 

Legal services6
., 

Funeral expenses6 
.. 

Laundry and dry cleaning services·1· 
2 

Apparel. se,rv1ces other than laundry and dry 
c!eanmg · ~ ................ ,, .................... . 

Financial services 1 
· 

6 
.. 

Checking account and other bank 
services ·r · ::. 3 .. 

Tax preparation and other accounting 

1 Not seasona!!y adjusted. 
2 Indexes on a December i 997:::100 base. 
3 Special index based on a substantially smaller sample. 
4 Indexes on a December 2007=:100 base. 
5 Indexes on a December 2005=100 base. 
6 Indexes on a December i986=100 base. 
7 indexes on a December· 1993:=100 base. 

" 
I 

Relative 
irnportance 

May 
2014 

1.456 

0.093 

0.390 

0.060 

1.702 

0.599 
0.630 

0.206 
6.337 
3.000 
1.776 
0.359 
0.704 
0.038 
0.143 
0.129 
0.014 
2.480 
1.655 
0.825 

0.702 

1 .721 
0.622 
0.622 
1.098 
0.311 
0.170 
0.270 

0.033 
0.222 

Jun. 
2013· 
Jun. 
2014 

2.8 

·3.2 
-6.2 

0.3 
3.4 
3.6 
3.8 
2.0 
1.7 
3.0 
1.8 

i .9 
2.1 

2.3 
3.2 
1.6 
2.1 
3.6 
4.1 
4.1 
2.2 
2.1 
4.0 
4.1 
3.3 
0.2 

·1.5 
3.3 

1.4 
1 .6 
1.5 
1.5 
1.7 
2.3 
1.6 
"1.7 

2.0 
1.0 

-0.4 

3.1 

change 

May Mar. Apr·. May 
2014· 2014· 2014- 2014-
Jun. Apr. May Jun. 
2014 20i4 201' 2014 

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 

0.2 1.1 -0.3 0.2 
-0.i 1.8 -0.5 ·0.1 

0.4 0.3 -0.2 0.4 
0.3 0.1 0.2 0.4 
0.4 04 0.2 0.4 
0.4 0.1 0.1 0.4 

·0.3 0.6 0.4 ·0.3 
0.0 0.2 0.1 0.0 

·0.5 0.9 0.4 ·0.5 
0.2 0.3 0.0 0.2 

0.1 0.0 0.2 0.1 
0.3 0.7 -0.3 0.3 

0.2 0.6 -0.2 0.2 
0.7 0.5 ·0.5 0.7 
0.2 0.1 0.3 0.2 
0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 
0.2 0.3 0.3 0.5 
0.2 0.4 0.3 0.5 
0.4 0.3 0.6 0.4 
0.1 0.1 0.3 0.4 
0.1 0.1 0.3 0.0 
0.0 0.1 0.4 0.3 
0.0 0.2 0.4 0.4 

-0.1 -0.7 0.7 ·0.1 
·0.1 0.1 ·0.1 ·0.1 
-0. 1 0.2 ·0.3 ·0.1 
-0.1 0.0 0,3 ·0.1 

0.2 0.4 0.1 0.2 
0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 
0.1 0.0 0.2 0.1 
0.1 0.0 0.2 0.1 

·0.1 0.0 0.0 -0.1 

0.4 0.1 ·0.3 04 
-0.2 0.1 0.2 ·0.1 
0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 

0.0 0.2 0.1 0.0 
-0.7 0.1 0.2 ·0.7 

0.0 -0.4 0.1 0.0 

-0.8 i .0 04 ·0.8 

43



3 This index series was ca!cu!ated using a Laspeyres estimator. Al! other item stratum index series were calculated using a geometric means 
estimator. 

9 Indexes on a December 2009::::;100 base. 
10 indexes on a December 1990=-100 base. 
11 Indexes on a December i 983=100 base. 
12 Indexes on a December 200i=100 base. 
13 Indexes on a December 1982=100 base. 
14 Indexes on a December 1996=i00 base. 
NOTE: Index applies to a month as a whole, not to any specific date. 

44



Table 3. Consumer Price Index lor All Urban Consumers (CPl-U): U.S. 
June 2014 

11982-84=100. unless otherwise noted] 

Special aggregate indexes 

A!I items less food ... 
All items less shelter. .. 

All items less food and shelter .. 

All items less food, shelter, and energy .. 

Al! items less food, shelter, energy, and used 
cars and trucks .. 

All items less medical care .. 
AH Items less energy ... 

Commodities .. 

Commodities !ess food, energy. and used 
cars and trucks .. 

Commodities less food .. 

Commodities iess food and beverages .. 

Services .. 

Services less rent at shelter1 .. 

Services less medical care services .. 

Durables2 
..• 

Nondurables .. 

Nondurables less food .. 

Nondurables !ess food and beverages .. 

Nondurables !ess food, beverages, and 
appareL. 

Nondurables !ess toad and apparel-.. 

Housing ... 

Education and commun!cation:1 

Education3 
.. 

Communication 3 
.. 

Information and information processing,.3 
.. 

Information technology. hardware and 
services4 

•.. 

Recreation3 
.. 

Video and audio3 
... 

Pets, pet producis and services3 .. 

Pho1ography8
, . 

Food and beverages .. 

Domestically produced farm food .. 

Oti1er services .. 

Apparel !ess tootwear. . 

Fuels and utilities .. 
Household energy., 

Med\cal care .. 

Transportation .. 

Private transportaiion., 

New and used rnotor vehicles'' .. 
Utilities and public transportation ... 

Household furnishings and operations .. 

Other goods and services._ 

Personal care .. 

1 Indexes on a December 1982=100 base, 
'~ Not seasonally adjusted. 
a Indexes on a December i997=100 base. 
4 Indexes on a December 1988=100 base. 

Relative Unadjusted indexes 
impor-

I 
tance 
May Jun. May Jun. 

2014 2013 2014 2014 

! 

86.136 233.018 237.225 237.741 
68.165 224.647 228.124 228.531 
54.301 221.237 224.193 224.700 
44.630 217.627 220.582 220.464 

42.955 22i .570 224.746 224.590 
92.468 224.216 228.333 228 773 
90.329 233.456 238.006 238.112 
39.154 188.423 i 90.Si 8 190.324 

17.788 147.652 147.790 147.337 
25.290 165.250 165.939 i65.683 
24296 162.635 163.283 163.030 
60.846 278.277 284.938 285.998 
29.373 305.0iS 311.695 313.404 

55.022 264.950 271.243 272.363 
9.045 i 12.524 111.086 110.856 

30."1'10 226.071 230.251 230.088 
16.246 215.191 218.293 218.020 
15.252 213.855 217.043 216.774 

ii .Bi 8 273.289 276.855 277.448 
12.8i2 268.583 271.938 272.447 
41.286 228.068 232.744 233.894 

6.962 135.098 137.244 137.279 
3.191 222.158 229.576 229.983 
3.771 82.506 82.470 82.386 
3.628 78.769 78.612 78.529 

i.148 8.535 8.410 8.397 
5.732 i 15.407 116.018 116.037 
1.861 99.88i 100.773 100.597 

1.037 164.446 165.739 166.199 
0.122 77.598 78.046 77.673 

14.858 236.726 242.065 242.027 
6.912 241.054 248.148 247.635 

11.760 327.607 334.024 334,332 
2.725 119.444 122.888 121.076 
5.279 230.506 234.483 240.396 
4.109 199.811 202.578 209.064 
7.532 424.264 434.874 435.352 

16.875 220.044 223.392 223.543 
15.640 214.706 217.700 217.793 

5.752 101.413 "101 .422 IOi.192 
10. 185 215.690 218.806 221.868 
4.173 125.412 123.350 123.534 
3.321 400.347 407.178 407.974 
2.627 215.058 217.697 217.655 

NOTE: Index aopiies to a month as a whoie not to any specific date. 

average, special aggregate Indexes, 

Unadjusted percent Seasonally adjusted percent 
change change 

Jun. May ! Mar. 

I 
Apr. May 

I 
2013- 2014- 2014- 2014- 2014-
Jun. Jun. Apr. 

' 
May Jun. 

2014 2014 2014 ' 2014 2014 I 

2.0 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 
1.7 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.3 
1.6 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 
1.3 -0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 

1.4 -0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 
2.0 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.3 
2.0 0.0 0.3 0.3 o. 1 
1.0 -0.1 OA 0.3 0.5 

-0.2 -0.3 0.1 0.1 0.1 
0.3 -0.2 0.5 0.2 0.7 
0.2 -0.2 0.5 0.2 0.8 
2.8 04 0.1 0.4 0.1 
2.8 0.5 0.0 0.5 () 1 

2.8 OA 0.1 0.4 0.2 
-1.5 -0.2 0.3 -0.1 ·0.2 
1.8 -0.1 0.6 0.3 1.1 
i .3 -0.1 0.7 0.2 1.6 
1.4 -0.1 0.7 0.3 i .7 

1.5 0.2 1. 1 05 1.6 
1 .4 0.2 1.0 0.4 1 .5 
2.6 0.5 0.0 0.3 0.1 
1.6 0.0 0.2 0.1 0.2 
3.5 0.2 04 0.3 0.4 

-0.1 -0.1 0.1 -0.1 0.0 
-0.3 -0.1 0.1 -0.1 -0.1 

-1.6 -0.2 0.2 -0.2 0.0 
0.5 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.1 
0.7 -0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 
1 I 0.3 0.3 04 0.3 
0.1 -0.5 0.8 0,1 -0.4 
2.2 0.0 0.4 OA 0.0 
2.7 -0.2 0.5 0.8 -0. 1 
2.1 0. 1 0.2 0.1 0.2 
1.4 -1.5 0.0 0.3 0.6 
4.3 2.5 -1.6 0.9 -0.3 
4.6 3.2 -2.2 1'1 -0.5 
2.6 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.1 
1.6 0.1 i .1 0.6 1 .0 
1.4 0.0 1.0 0.4 1.0 

-0.2 -0.2 0.3 0.0 -0.4 
2.9 1.4 -0.5 1.0 ·0.1 

-1.5 0.1 0.0 -0.2 0.2 
1.9 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.2 
1.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 -0.1 

45



Table 4. Consumer Price Index lor All Urban Consumers 
[1982-84=100. unless otherwise noted] 

Selected areas, all items June 2014 

Area 

U.S. city average .. 

Region and area size2 

Northeast urban .. 

Size A - More than i ,500,000 .. 

Size 8/C 50,000 to 1,500,000:1 
.. 

Midwest urban ... 

Size A - More than i ,500,000 .. 

Size B/C - 50.000 to 1,500,0003 
.. 

Size D - Nonmetropolitan (!ess than 50,000),. 

South urban .. 

Size A - More than i ,500.000., 

Size B/C - so,ooo to 1,soo,000:1 
.. 

Size D - Nonmetropolitan (!ess 1han 50,000)., 

West urban .. 
Size A - More than 1.500,000 .. 

Size B/C - 50.000 to 1,500.000'·0 
.. 

Size classes 

Pricing 
Schedu!e1 

M 

M 

M 

M 

M 

M 

M 
M 

M 

M 
M 

M 

M 

M 
•M 

M 

M 

M 

Selected local areas5 

Chicago-Gary-Kenosha, IL-IN-Wt.. ···················IM 
Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange County, CA.. 1

1 M 
New York-Northern N.J.-Long Island, NY-NJ-CT-PA ... IM 

i 
Boston··Brockton-Nashua, MA-NH-ME-CT 1 i 

Cleveland-Akron, OH.. ·: ... :::::_•_•_::_ .. ·.· 111
1 Dallas-Fort Worth, TX .. 

Washington-Baltimore. DC-MD-VA-WV6
.. . . . . . i 

I Atlanta. GA... . ........... i 2 
Detroii··Ann Arbo1·-Flint. Ml,, i 2 
Houston-Galveston-Brazoria, TX.. . ................ : : 12 
Miami-Fort Lauderdale, FL.. . . 2 

Philadelphia-Wilmington-Atlantic City, PA-NJ-DE-MD. 2 

San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose, CA ................... I 2 
Seattle-Tacoma-Bremerton, WA .. ................... ! 2 

Percent change to Jun, 20i4 from: i 
Jun. I Apr. J May JI 

2013 2014 i 20i4 

2.1 

1.9 
1.8 

2.2 

1.7 
1.6 
2.0 
1.4 

2.3 

2.5 

2.1 

2.0 

2.3 
2.4 

1.9 

2.1 
2.1 
2.1 

2.0 
1.8 

1.7 

3.0 
1.3 

3.3 

2.4 

1.8 

3.0 
2.0 

0.5 

0.4 
0.4 

0.5 

0.6 
0.6 
0.7 

0.3 

0.4 
0.5 
0.3 
0.4 

0.8 

0.7 

1.0 

0.5 
0.5 
0.5 

0.3 
0.5 
0.5 

1.5 

0.5 

0.6 
-0.3 
0.6 
0.7 
0.4 

0.2 

0.0 
0.0 

-0.1 

0.5 
0.5 
0.5 
0.2 

0.2 
0.3 
0.2 
0.3 

O.i 

0.1 

0.2 

0.2 
0.2 
0.2 

0.4 
0.1 
0.0 

Percent change to May 2014 from· 

May I Mar. I Apr. 
2013 . 2014 2014 

2.i 

2.0 
1.9 

2.3 

1.6 
1.5 
1.8 

1.2 

2.4 

2.4 
2.4 
2.7 

2.3 
2.4 

1.7 

2.1 
2.1 

2.3 

1.8 
"1.7 

1.9 

2.1 
1.7 
1.8 

2.2 

0.7 

0.5 
0.5 
0.4 

0.5 
0.5 
0.6 
0.2 

0.7 
0.6 
0.9 
0.7 

0.9 
0.9 

1.0 

0.6 
0.8 

0.6 

0.4 
0.4 

0.5 

0.1 
0.2 
0.4 
0.4 

0.4 
0.4 
0.6 

0.2 
0.1 

0.2 
0.0 

0.2 
0.2 
0.2 

0.2 

0.6 
0.6 
0.8 

04 
0.4 
0.3 

-0.1 

0.4 
0.5 

1 Foods, fuels. and several other items are priced every month in all areas. Most other goods and services are priced as indicated: M - Every month. 
i - January, March, May, July. September, and November. 2 - February, ApriL June, August, October, and December. 

2 Regions defined as the four Census regions. 
3 Indexes on a December 1996=100 base. 
4 Indexes on a December i 986=100 base. 
5 In addition, the following metropolilan areas are published semiannually and appear in Tables 34 and 39 of the January and July issues of the CPI 

Detailed Report: Anchorage, AK; Cincinnati-Hamilton, OH-KY-IN: Denver-Boulder-Greeley, CO; Honolulu. Hi; Kansas City, MO-KS; 
Milwaukee-Racine. WI; Minneapolis-SL Paul, MN-WI; Phoenix-Mesa, AZ; Pittsburgh, PA: Portland-Salem, OR-WA; St. Louis, MO-tl; San Diego, CA; 
Tampa··St. Petersburg-Clearwater. FL. 

6 Indexes on a Novembe1· 1996=100 base. 
NOTE: Loca! area indexes are byproducts of the nationa! CPI program. Each iocal index has a smaller· sample size than the national index and is, 
therefore, subject to substaniially more sampling and other measurernent error. As a result, iocal area indexes show greater volatHity than the national 
index, although their Jong-term trends are similar·. Therefore. the Bureau of Labor Statistics strongly urges users to consider adopting the national 
average CPI tor use in their escalator clauses. 
NOTE: Index applies to a month as a whoie, not to any specific date. 

46



Table 5. Chained Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (C·CPl·U) and !he Consumer Price Index for 
All Urban Consumers (CPl-U): U.S. cily average, all ilems June 2014 
[Percent changes] 

Month Year 
Unadjusted i-month percent change 

1-----
C-CPHJ' CPl·U 

December 2000 .. 

December 200i. 

December 2002 .. 

Deceinber 2003 .. . 

December 2004 .. . 

December 2005 .. . 

December 2006 .. 

December 2007 .. 

December 2008 .... 

December 2009 .. 

December 20i 0 .. 
December 20i I. 

January 2012" 
February 2012 .. 

March 2012 .. 
April 2012 .. 
May 2012 .. 

June 2012 .. 
July 2012 .. 
August 20i 2 ... 

I 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I 

September 2012 . ., ....... · · · · · · · · j 
October 2012 ....... ,, .... ,, .. ,,,, .......... i 
November 2012 ... 

December 20i 2 .. 

January 2013 .. 
February 2013.,, 

March 2013 .. 
April 2013" 
May 2013 .. 
June 2013 .. 
July 2013 .. 
August 20i 3 ... 

September 20i 3 .. 
October 2013 .. 

November 20i 3 .. 

December 2013 .. 
January 20i4" 
February 2014 .. 

March 2014 .. 
April 2014 .. 

May 2014 .. 
June 2014 .. 

0.5 0.4 
04 0.4 
0.7 0.8 
0.3 0.3 

·0.1 ·0.1 
·0.1 ·0.1 
·0.2 ·0.2 
0.5 0.6 
0.4 0.4 

·0.1 0.0 
·0.5 ·0.5 
·0.3 ·0.3 
0.3 0.3 
0.8 0.8 
0.3 0.3 

·O 1 ·0.1 
0.2 0.2 
0.2 0.2 
0.0 0.0 
0 1 0.1 
0.1 0.1 

·0.3 ·0.3 
·0.2 -0.2 

0.0 0.0 
0.4 0.4 
0.4 0.4 
0.6 0.6 
0.3 0.3 
0.3 0.3 
0.2 0.2 

Unadjusted 12~month percent change 

C·CPl·U' I CPl·U 

2.6 3.4 
1.3 1.6 
2.0 2.4 
1.7 1.9 
3.2 3.3 
2.9 3.4 
2.3 2.5 
3.7 4.i 
0.2 0.1 
2.5 2.7 
i.3 1.5 
2.9 3.0 

2.9 2.9 
2.8 2.9 
2.6 2.7 
2.2 2.3 
1.7 1.7 
1.6 1.7 
1.3 1.4 
1.6 i.7 

1.8 2.0 
1.9 2.2 
1.5 1.8 
1.5 1.7 
1.3 1.6 
1.7 2.0 
1.3 1.5 
0.9 1.1 
1.1 14 
1.5 1.8 
1.7 2.0 
1.3 1.5 
1.0 1.2 
0.8 1.0 
1.1 12 
1.3 1.5 
1.4 1.6 
1.0 1.1 
1.4 1.5 
1.8 2.0 
2.0 2.1 

1.9 2.1 

1 The C-CPl-U is designed io be a closer approximation to a cost-of-living index in that it in lts final form, accounts for any substitution that 
consumers make across item categories in response to changes in relative prices. Since the expenditure data required tor the calculation of the 
C-CPl-U are ava!lab!e oniy with a time lag, the C-CPl-U is being issued first in preliminary form using the latest available expenditure data at thai 
time and is subject to two revisions. 

NOTE: Indexes for 2014 are intial estimates. Indexes for 20'13 are interim adjustments. Data prior to 2013 are final. 
NOTE: Index applies to a month as a whole, not to any specific date. 

47



Table 6. Consumer Price Index !or All Urban Consumers (CPl-U): U.S. city average, by expenditure category, 
June 1-month analysis table 

11982 84-100 unless otherwise notedj - -
I 

One Month I 
I Relative 

I 
Seasonally 

I 
Seasonally 

Standard i Largest (L) or Smallest (S) 
i importance adjusted adjusted 

error, seasonally adjusted 
Expenditure category 

May percent effect on A!I 
median change since:3 

2014 change Items 
price May 2014- May 2014-

change2 Date I Percent 
Jun.20i4 Jun, 2014 1 

I change 

All Items .. 100.000 0.3 0.03 S-Apr.2014 0.3 
Food .. 13.864 0.1 0.007 0.07 S-Jan.20i4 0.1 

Food at home .. 8.216 0.0 ·0.004 0.12 S-Dec.2013 0.0 
Cereals and bakery products .. 1126 ·0.2 -0.002 0.30 S-Feb.2014 -0.4 

Cereals and cereal products .. 0.371 0.2 O.OOi 0.50 L-Mar.2014 1.3 
Flour and prepared flour mixes .. 0.050 0.6 0.000 0.71 L-Feb.2014 1.6 

Breaktas1 cereal4 
.. 0.192 0.8 0.002 0.71 L·Feb.2013 1.2 

Rice, pasta, cornmea!4 
.. 0.129 -i .2 -0.002 0.70 S-Apr.2014 "i .2 

Rice~· 5 ' 6 .. -1.0 0.57 S-Nov.2013 -1.5 
Bakery products .. 0.755 -0.2 -0.001 0.39 - -

Bread5 
.. 0.223 0.0 0.000 0.59 L-Apr.2014 1.3 

V\/hite bread4 6 -0.6 0.85 L-Apr.2014 2.2 

Bread other than white4
• 

6 0.0 0.86 L-Apr.2014 1.3 
Fresh biscuits, rolls, muffins4

· 
5 
... 0.112 ·0.6 -0.001 0.76 S-Apr.2014 ·0.9 

Cakes, cupcakes, and cookies .. 0.185 -0.4 ·0.001 0.70 S-Apr.2014 -0.4 
Cookies4

· 
6 
... -0.3 1.12 S-Apr.2014 ·1.3 

Fresh cakes and cupcakes4
• 

6
., -0.1 0.75 S-Mar.2014 -0.1 

Other bakery products .. 0.235 0.1 0.000 0.76 L-Apr.2014 0.8 
Fresh sweet1·olls, coffeecakes, doughnuts4

· 
c 0.1 0.97 L-Apr.2014 0.8 

Crackers, bread, and cracker products6 
.. 0.0 1.51 S-Mar.2014 · 1.8 

Frozen and refrigerated bakery products, pies, 
tarts, turnovers6 

.. -0.6 0.91 S-Apr.2014 "1.2 
Meats, poultry, fish, and eggs .. 1.9·19 0.2 0.004 0.24 S-Dec.2013 0.2 

Meats, poultry, and fish,, 1.798 0.2 0.004 0.25 S-Dec.2013 0.2 
Meats .. 1.157 0.3 0.004 0.31 S-Jan.20i4 0.3 

Beef and vea!4 
.. 0.528 0.1 0.001 0.44 - -

Uncooked ground beef4 ,. 0.214 0.2 0.000 0.62 L-Apr.2014 2.6 
Uncooked beef roasts·1· 

5 
.. 0.076 -0.7 ·0.001 1.04 S-Jan.2014 ·1.9 

Uncooked beef steaks4
· 

5 
.. 0.192 0.4 0.001 0.83 L·Apr.2014 3.3 

Uncooked other beef and veal~· ' 0.046 0.1 0.000 0.70 S-Sep.2013 ·0.1 
Pork .. 0.371 0.1 0.000 0.50 S-Nov.2013 -0.4 

Bacon, breakfast sausage, and related 
products5 

.. 0.147 ·0.2 0.000 0.72 S-Feb.2014 -0.3 
Bacon and related products6 

.. -2. 1 0.81 S-May 2012 -2.4 

Breakfast sausage and related products5
; 

6 
.. i. i 1 04 S-Apr.2014 0.3 

Ham .. 0.072 0.2 0.000 1.16 S-Apr.2014 0.1 
Ham, excluding canned6 

.• 1.1 1.09 S-Apr'.2014 -0.4 
Pork chops .. 0.064 · 1.5 -0.001 118 S-Feb.2014 ·3.0 
Other pork including roasts and p!cnics5 .. 0.088 2.5 0.002 1.07 L-Apr.2014 6.6 

Other meats .. 0.257 1 1 0.003 0.54 S-Apr.20'14 1.1 
Frankfurters5

., 1.6 l.56 L·Apr.2014 4.5 
Lunchmeats4

- 5 · c .. 0.9 0.62 L·Apr.2014 1.6 
Lamb and organ meats4

· 
6

,. -2.1 1.55 S-Apr.2014 -3.4 

Lamb and mutton4
· 

5, (i ·3.4 1.95 S-Apr.2014 ·6.1 
Poultry .. 0.353 ·0.1 0.000 0.54 S-Apr.2014 ·1.6 

Ch!cken5 
•• 0.285 ·0.2 -0.001 0.67 S-Apr.2014 -LG 

Fresh whole chicken4 6 ·2.7 i .51 S-May 20i2 -4.8 
Fresh and frozen chicken parts' 6 1.5 0.88 L-Aug.20i3 2.6 

Other poultry including turkey0
'. 0.068 0.5 0.000 0.72 S-·Apr.20i4 -1.6 

Fish and seafood~. 0.288 0.1 0.000 0.52 S-Apr.2014 0.0 
Fresh fish and seafood~· 5 .. ... 0.148 0.4 O.OOi 0.82 S-Mar.2014 -0.7 
Processed fish and seafood5 

.. 0 140 0.0 0.000 0.64 S-Feb.2014 ·0.9 

See footnotes at end of table. 

48



Table 6. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers {CPl-U): U.S. city average, by expenditure category, 
June 2014, 1·mon!h analysis table -Continued 
[1982-84~100 unless otherwise noted] 

Expenditure category 

Sheff stable fish and..,._..~.~~..:~ 6 
.. 

Frozen fish and seafood6 
.. 

Eggs .. 

Dairy and related products4 .. 

Milk4
• "·· 

Fresh whole milk4
· 0 ., 

Fresh milk other than who!e4
· 

5
· 

6 

Cheese and related products4 
.. 

Ice cream and related products ... 

Other dairy and related products5 .. 

Fruits and vegetables .. 

Fresh fruits and vegetables .. 

Fresh fruits .. 

Apples .. 

Bananas .. 

Citrus fruits5 
.. 

Oranges, including tangerines6 
.. 

Other fresh truits5 
.. 

Fresh vegetables ... 

Potatoes .. 
Lettuce .. 

Tomatoes4 
•. 

Other fresh vegetabies .. 

Processed fruits and vegetables5 
.. 

Canned fruits and vegetables5 .. 

Canned fru!ts5
• 

6 
.. 

Canned vegetab!es5
• 

6 
.. 

Frozen fruits and vegetab!es5 
.. 

Frozen vegetables8 
.. 

. . . . . . . . I 

Other processed fruits and vegetables including 
dried5 

.. . . . . . . . . . . I 
Dried beans, peas, and lentils'"· 5

· 
6 
•. . . . . . . . . . I 

Nonalcoholic beverages and beverage materials ........ I 

Juices and nonalcoholic drinks5 
.. 

Carbonated drinks .. 

Frozen noncarbonated juices and drinks4
• 

5
., 

Nonfrozen noncarbonated juices and drinks4
-

5 
.. 

Beverage materials including coffee and tea5 
.. 

Coffee .. 
Roasted coffee6 

.. _ 

Instant and freeze dried coffee4
· e 

Other beverage materials including tea5 
... 

Othe1· food at home .. 

Sugar and sweets4 
.. 

Sugar and artificial sweeteners., 
Candy and chewing gum~· 5 

Other sweets5 
.. 

Fats and oils ... 

BuUer and margarine" ... 

Butter6 
.. 

Margarine6 
.. 

Salad dressing,;- 5 .. 

Other lats and oils including peanut butter5
., 

See footnotes at end of table. 

Relat'ive 
importance 

May 
2014 

0.119 

0.870 
0.278 

0.279 
0.117 
0.196 
1.366 
1.061 
0.593 
0.092. 

0.086 

0.166 

0.249 

0.468 

0.080 
0.065 
0.081 
0.242 

0.305 
0.160 

0.088 

0.057 

0.929 
0.679 
0.281 
0.014 
0.384 
0.260 
0.153 

0.098 
2.007 
0.292 
0.054 
0.178 

0.060 
0.242 
0.072 

0.061 
0.109 

Seasonally 
adjusted 
percent 
change 

May 2014-
Jun. 2014 

0.6 
0.0 

-0.1 

·0.4 
-0.8 
-0.8 
-0.4 

0.7 
-0.7 

0.4 
-0.3 
-0.3 

·2.3 
1.4 
0.6 

-7.7 
-7.7 
-1.0 

2.2 
0.8 
7.9 
1.9 
1.1 

-0.3 
-0.9 

02 
-1.8 
0.3 

-0.4 

0.0 
04 
0.0 
0.2 

-0.3 
-1.1 

0.4 
0.0 
0.8 
0.5 
26 

·0.8 
0.1 

0.4 
1.7 

-0.1 

0.9 
0.4 

1.6 

4.1 
-0.5 
0.2 

-0.6 

Seasonally 
adjusted 

effect on All 
Items 

May 2014-
Jun. 20141 

0.000 
·0.004 
-0.002 

0.002 
-0.001 
0.001 

·0.004 
-0.003 
-0.014 

0.001 
0.001 

-0.013 

-0.002 

0.010 
0.001 
0.005 
0.002 
0.003 

-0.001 
-0.001 

0.000 

0.000 

0.000 
0.001 

-0,00i 

0.000 
0.001 
0.000 
0.001 

·0.001 
0.002 
0.001 

0.001 
0.000 
O.OOi 
0.001 

0.001 

One Month 

Standard 
error, 

median 
price 

change2 

0.82 
0.79 
0.76 
0.25 
0.37 
0.56 
0.46 
0.47 
0.89 
0.51 
0.37 
0.44 
0.60 
0.94 
0.73 
1.31 

1.43 
1.10 

0.70 
1.29 
2.10 
1.48 
0.80 
0.47 
0.77 
0.91 
0.88 
0.86 
1.01 

0.80 
1.05 
0.35 

0.45 
0.65 

0.67 
0.69 
0.46 
0.65 

0.69 
0.98 
0.57 
0.25 
0.52 

0.65 
0.85 
0.58 
0.42 
0.67 

0.88 

0.99 
0.83 
0.69 

11 Largest {L) or Smallest (S) 

I seasonally adjusted 

' change since:3 
I 
! 
i Date 

L-Apr.2014 

S-Apr.2014 
S··Jan.2014 

S-May 2013 
S-May 2013 
S-May 2013 

S-Ju!.2013 

S-Jan.2014 

L-Apr.2014 

S·Apr.2014 
S-Jan.2014 

S-Jan.2014 

S-Oct.201 i 
S-Apr.2014 
L-Nov.2013 

S-EVER 
S-Nov.2007 

L-Apr.2014 
S-Apr.2014 
L-Feb.2014 
L-Jan.2013 

L-Nov.20i3 
S-Mar.20i4 

S·Apr.2014 
S-Apr.2014 

S-Apr.2014 

L-Apr.2014 
L-Apr.2014 

S-Apr.2014 

S-Apr.2014 

S-Apr.20i4 

S-Dec.2013 

S-Feb.20i3 
L-Dec.2013 

S-Feb.2014 
L-Mar.2014 

L-Dec.20'12 

L-Apr.2012 
S-Nov.2013 

S-Apr.2014 

L~Mar.2014 

L-Dec.2010 

L-Mar.2014 

L-Feb.2014 

L-Mar.2014 
L-Ma.r,2014 

L-Feb.2011 
S-Apr.2014 
L-Feb.2014 

S-Apr.2014 

I 
Percent 
change 

2.1 
-0.1 
-1.6 
-0.8 
-1.2 
-1.7 

-0.6 

-1.3 
0.0 
0.1 

-0.3 
-0.3 
-2.8 

0.9 
1.4 

-9.5 
-0.2 

1.1 
0.8 

11.2 

2.3 
-09 
-1.1 

-1.6 

-1.8 

0.7 
1.1 

-2.0 
-0.3 
-0.1 

-0.4 
·1.1 
1.8 

-0.4 
0.9 
1.3 

3.3 
-1.0 
-0.2 

0.7 
1.7 
1.5 
1.0 
0.8 
3.2 
5.4 

-1.4 

0.4 
-0.8 

49



Table 6. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPl-U): U.S. 
June 2014, 1-month analysis table - Continued 

[1982·84=100 unless otl1erwlse noted] 

Relative Seasonally 

importance adjusted 
Expenditure category May percent 

2014 change 
May 2014- I Jun. 20i4 ' Peanut buHer4

· 
5, G -0.5 

Other toads ... 1.473 0.0 
Soups .. 0.100 0.2 
Frozen and freeze dried prepared toods4 

.. 0.276 0.5 
Snacks1. .. 0.322 -0.7 

Spices, seasonings, condlments, sauces .. 0.291 0.0 
Salt and other seasonings and spices5

· 
6 
.. 0.6 

Olives, pickles, reHshes4
· 

5, 6 -Li 
Sauces and gravies5

· 
6 -0.7 

Other condiments5 
.. -5.8 

Baby food-'I, '' .. 0.054 -i .0 
Other miscellaneous foods-'!, ' ........ 0.430 0.6 

Prepared sa!ads4
· 

7
· 

6 
.. 0.8 

Food away from home~·., 5.648 0.2 
Full service meals and snacks4 5 2.735 0.2 

Limited service meals and snacks4 ' 2.332 0.2 
Food at employee sites and schools5 

.. 0.206 1.2 
Food at elementary and secondary schoo!s8

• 
6 
.. 1.3 

Food from vending machines and mobile vendors4
· 

5 0.062 0.2 
Other food away from home~ .. 5 0.313 0.3 

Energy .. 9.671 1.6 
Energy commodities .. 5.827 3.0 

Fuel oil and other fuels 4 
.. 0.265 -2.0 

Fuel oli4 
.• 0.170 -1.7 

Propane, kerosene, and firewood 4
· ' 0.095 0.1 

Motor fuel .. 5.562 3.3 
Gasoline (all types) .. 5.475 3.3 

Gasoline, unleaded regu!ar6 
...• 3.4 

Gasoline, unleaded midgrade10
' 

6 
.. 3.2 

Gasoline, unleaded prernium6 
.. 3.4 

Other motor fuels5 
. 0.087 2.1 

Energy services 11
. 3.844 -04 

Electricity 11
• 2.936 0.2 

Utility (piped) gas service 11
. 0.908 -2.6 

All items less food and energy .. 76.465 0.1 
Commodities less f'ood and energy commodities .. 19.463 0.1 

Household furnishings and supplies4
· 

12 
... 3.352 0.0 

Window and floor coverings and other llnens4
' 

5 0.273 0.5 
Floor cover1ngs4

· 
5 
.. 0.046 0.2 

Window coverings/[· 5 
.. 0.054 0.2 

Other linens4
• 

5
,. 0.173 0.7 

Furnlture and bedding4 .. 0.769 0.2 
Bedroom furniture 4 

.• 0.271 0.3 
Uving room, kitchen, and dining roorn furniture 4

· ' 0.361 0.6 
Other furniture5 

.. 0.129 -0.8 

Infants' turniture4
· 

8
· 

6 
.. 

Appliances5 
.. 0.275 -0.1 

Majo1· appliances5 . 0.153 -1, i 
Laundry equipment6 ., -0.7 

Other appliances4
· 

5 
.. 0.119 0.9 

Other household equipment and furnishings 5
,. 0.487 0.3 

Clocks. lamps. and decorator items4 
.. 0-264 0.0 

See footnotes at end of tabie, 

average, by expenditure category, 

One Month 

Seasonally 
Standard Largest (l) or Smallest (S) 

adjusted 
error, seasonally adjusted 

effec1 on A!I 
median change since:3 

ltems 
price 

I 
May 2014-

change2 Date 
Percent 

Jun. 2014 1 change 

0.88 S-Apr.2014 -0.9 
0.000 0.30 S-Apr.20i4 0.0 
0.000 1.07 S-Apr.20i 4 0.0 
0.001 0.64 - -
-0.002 0.78 S-Nov.2013 ·1.7 
0.000 0.69 S·Apr.2014 -1.2 

1.28 S-Apr.2014 -1.0 

1.84 L-Apr.2014 1.5 
1.16 S-Apl'.2014 -1.7 

0.73 S-Nov.2008 -9.6 
-0.00i 0.47 S-Oct.2010 ·1.0 
0.003 0.57 L-Nov.2013 1.7 

0.70 L-Nov.2013 0.8 
O.Oi '1 0.05 - -
0.006 0.07 - -
0.004 0.09 L-Apr.20i4 0.4 
0.002 0.13 L-Jun.20i3 1.2 

0.08 L-Jun2013 1.3 
0.000 0.17 L-Feb.2014 0.5 
0.001 0.11 - -

0.15i 0.14 L-Dec.2013 1.6 
0.168 0.15 L-Jun2013 3.3 
·0.005 0.34 - -
·0.003 0.34 S-Apr.2014 -3.0 
0.000 0.68 L-Feb.2014 10.9 
0.174 0.16 L-Jun.2013 3.6 
0.172 0.16 L-Jun.2013 3.6 

0.39 L-Jun.2013 3.7 
0.40 L-Jun.2013 3.2 

0.37 L-Jun.2013 4.0 
0.002 0.14 L-Jun.2013 2.1 

-0.017 0.25 S-Apr.2014 ·1.9 
0.007 0.33 S-Apr.2014 -2.6 

-0.024 0.19 $-May 2012 ·3.6 

0.099 0.04 S-Feb.2014 0.1 
0.013 0.10 - -
0.001 0.13 L-Jan.2014 0.3 
0.001 0.53 S-Apr.2014 -0.8 
0.000 0.45 - -
0.000 0.54 S-Apr.2014 -0.4 
0.001 0.87 L-Jan.2014 2.2 
0.002 0.27 L-Apr.2014 0.7 
0.001 0.39 L-Apr.2014 0.8 
0.002 0.39 L-Apr.2014 1.0 

-0.001 0.77 S-Nov.2013 ·3.0 

0,000 0.46 L-Mar.2014 -0.i 
-0.002 0.68 L-Feb.2014 0.0 

0.84 L-Mar.2014 -0.7 
0.001 0.52 L-Mar.2014 1.2 
0.002 0.38 L-Mar.20"14 0.5 
0.000 0.61 S-Ap1·.2oi4 0.0 

50



Table (i Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPl·U): U.S. city average, by expenditure category, 
June 1 ·mon!h analysis table - Continued 

[i 982~84:;;;100 unless otherwise noted1 . 
One Month 

Relative Seasonally Seasonally 
Standard Largest (L} or Smallest (S) 

lmpo1·tance adjusted adjusted 
ei-ror, seasonally adiusted 

Expenditure category May percent effect on AH median change since:3 

20!4 change !terns orice 

I 
May 2014-

I 
May 20i4-

change2 Date 
Percent 

Jun. 2014 Jun. 2014 1 change 

Indoor piants and flowers13 
.. 0.106 0.8 0.001 0.72 S-Apr.2014 ·0.9 

Dishes and flatware<1, 5 .. 0.042 3.4 0.001 LOO L-Jan.2013 4.3 

Nonelectric cookware and tableware5 
.. 0.075 ·0.6 0.000 0.52 S-Apr.2014 ·1.5 

Tools, hardware, outdoor equipment and supp!ies5 . 0.704 ·0.1 ·0.001 0.25 L-Feb.2014 0.6 
Tools, hardware and supplies4 · 

5 
.. 0.185 ·0.1 0.000 0.42 L-Feb.2014 1.0 

Outdoor equipment and supp!ies5 
.. 0.367 ·0.1 0.000 032 L.-Mar.20i4 ·0.1 

Housekeeping supplies 4 
•• 0.843 ·0.1 0.000 0.20 - -

Household deaning products4
· 

5 
.. 0.332 -0.i 0.000 0.35 L-Mar.2014 ·0.1 

Household paper products4
· 

5 
.. 0.248 ·0.1 0.000 0.38 - -

Miscellaneous household products4
· 

5 
.. 0.263 0.0 0.000 0.38 S-Apr.2014 0.0 

Apparel .. 3.434 0.5 0.017 0.47 L-Jul.2013 0.6 
Men's and boys' apparel .. 0.872 0.5 0.004 0.90 L-Feb.2014 0.5 

Men's apparel.. 0.686 0.9 0.006 1.08 L-Feb.20i4 i.2 

Men's suits, sport coats, and outerwear_ 0.115 0.8 0.001 2.92 L-Feb.20i4 1.9 
Men's furnishings ... 0.190 1. 1 0.002 1. 13 L·Apr.2013 2.5 

Men's shirts and sweaters5 
.. 0.202 1. 1 0.002 1.68 L-Mar.20i4 1.4 

Men's pants and shorts .. 0.172 1.4 0.002 1.75 L-Apr.2014 1.9 

Boys' apparel.. 0.186 0.3 0.000 1.33 S-Mar.2014 ·0.6 

Women's and girls' apparel.. 1.505 0.8 0.011 0.87 L·Dec.2013 1. 1 

Women's appareL. 1.271 1.2 0.015 0.87 L·Dec.2013 1.2 
Women's outerwear .. 0.105 6.0 0.007 2.44 L-Oct.2012 8.2 
Women's dresses., 0.155 1. 1 0.002 2.82 L-Jan.2014 1.7 
VVomen's suits and separates5 

.. 0.606 0.8 0.005 1. 14 L-Mar.2014 0.8 
Women's underwear. nightwear, sportswear and 

accessories~' .. 0.396 ·0.8 ·0.003 0.97 S-Sep.2013 ·0.9 
Girls' apparel.. 0.234 ·1.5 ·0.004 2.02 S-Nov.2013 ·2.2 

Footwear,, 0.709 0.1 0.001 0.7i S-Apr.2014 -0.2 

Men's footwear",, 0.215 1.6 0.003 1.16 L-Jan.2014 1.9 

Boys' and girls' footwear .. 0.165 2.2 0.004 1.16 S-Apr.2014 1.1 
Women''s footwear ... 0.329 ·LS ·0.005 0.92 S-Jan.2014 -2.1 

Infants' and toddlers' appareL. 0.134 ·0.7 ·0.001 0.88 S-Apr.2013 ·0.7 

Jeweiry and watches9 
.. 0.214 0.9 0.002 0.91 L-Jun.20i3 i. I 

Watches4
· 

8 
.. 0.046 1.9 0.001 1.24 L-Feb.2014 2.1 

Jewelry9 
.. 0.168 0.9 0.001 1 13 L-Jun.20i3 1. 1 

Transportation commodities less motor fuel 12 
.. 5.721 ·0.4 -0.020 0.08 S-Jan.2014 ·04 

New vehicles .. 3.509 ·0.3 ·0.011 0.13 S-Jan,20i4 ·0.3 

New cars and trucks"'' 6 -0.3 0.13 S-Jan.20"14 ·0.3 

New cars6 
.. ·0.2 0.12 S·Oct.2013 ·0.2 

New trucks 14
· 

6 
.. ·0.4 0.13 S-Jan.2014 ·04 

Used cars and trucks .. 1.675 ·04 -0.007 0.06 S-Jan.20i4 ·0.5 
Motor vehicle parts and equipment4 

•. 0430 ·0.3 ·0.001 0.20 S-Aug.2013 ·0.3 

Tires4 
.. 0.284 ·0.8 ·0.002 0.25 S-Jan.2013 ·0.8 

Vehicle accessories other than tires4 5 0.145 0.7 0.001 0.25 L-Nov.2012 0.9 
Vehicle parts and equipment other than 

tires4 -
6 
.. 0.7 0.22 L-Mar.2013 0.7 

Motor oil. coolant, and fluids"· 6 
.. 0.6 0.59 S-Apr.2014 ·0.4 

Medical care commodities .. 1.708 0.7 0.012 0.20 L-Jan.2007 0.8 
Medicina! drugs4

· 
12 

... 1.632 0.6 0.009 0.20 L-Feb.20·14 1.0 
Prescription drugs .. i.284 1.0 0.012 0.21 L-Jan.2007 1.0 
Nonprescription drugs';, 1? 0.348 0.0 0.000 0.47 S-Feb-2014 ·0.3 

Medical equipment and supplies4 12 0.075 ·0.4 0.000 0.39 S-Feb.2014 ·OA 

Recreation commodlties 12 
.. 2.030 -0.2 -0.004 0.17 L-Apr.2014 0.0 

Video and audio products 12
,, 0.3i2 ·1.3 ·0.004 0.29 S-Aor.2012 -l .4 

Sec footnotes at end of 

51



Table 6. Consumer Price Index !or All Urban CoMumers (CPl-U): U.S. 
June 2014, 1 ·month analysis table - Continued 

[1982-84=100, unless otherwise noted] 

averagei 

,__ ___________ Oc.ne Month 

Expenditure category 

Televisions.. 

1 
~~~~~ ~l~:l~~~~;'ment' ' .....••...•.•••••• 

1 Audio discs, tapes and other rnedia4 
1 

Pets and pet products
4

.. .. ...... · .• .· .· .• 1 
Pet food4

· 5 · 
8 
.. 

Purchase of pets, pet supplies, accessories4
· 

5
· 

6 
... i 

Sporting goods4 
.. 

Sports vehicles including bicycles4 
..• 

Sports equipment.. 

Photographic equ·1pment and suppl\es .. 

Film and photographic suppHes4
· 

5
· 

6 

Photographic equipments· 6 
.. 

I . . . . . . . . . . . . . I 

·············•• 1 
Recreational reading materials4 

... 

Newspapers and magazines4 · 5 

Recreational books4
• 

5 
.. 

Other recreational goods5 .. 

Toys .. 

Toys, games,! hobbies and playground 
equ!pmenf' 0 

•• 

Sewing machines, fabric and supplies~· 5 
.. 

Music instruments and accessoriesc. .. 

Education and communication comrnodities 12 .. 

Educational books and supplies .. 

i 
i 
i 

I 
I 
i 

CoHege textbooks4
• 

15
• 

0
. . .... i 

Information technology commodities·12 
.. 

Personal computers and peripheral equipment7 . 

Computer software and accessories4
- '' .. 

Telephone hardware, calculators, and other 
consumer lnf-ormation iterns·1

· 
5 

" " • I 

Alcoholic beverages., ·····I 
Alcoholic beverages at home .. 

Beer, a!e, and other malt beverages at home,. 

Distilled spirits at home4 
.. 

Whiskey at home6 
.. 

Distilled spirits, excluding whiskey. at home4
· 

6 
.. 

Wine at home., 
Alcoholic beverages away from horne4 

.•. 

Beer, ale, and other malt beverages away from 

home"·
5
-E ···-·I 

W'1ne away from home4, 5 · 6 ,. 

Distilled spirits away from home4 

Other goods12 .. 

Tobacco and smoking products4 
•• 

Clgarettes 4
· 

5 
.. 

5 6 

Tobacco products other than cigarettes4
· 

5 

Personal care products4 
•. 

Hair, dental, shaving, and miscellaneous personal 
care products4

· 
5 
.. 

Cosmetics, perfume, bath, naH preparations and 
implements4 

.. 

Miscellaneous personal goods5 .. 

Stationery. staf1onery supplies. g'1ft wrap6 
.. 

See footnotes at end of tabie. 

Relative 
importance 

May 
2014 

0.150 
0.031 
0.070 
0.045 
Q,647 

0.403 
0.180 
0.217 
0.060 

0.218 
0.121 
0.095 
0.390 
0.286 

0.052 
0.041 
0.625 
0.191 

0.434 

0.294 
0.067 

0.073 
0.994 
0587 

0.268 
0.073 

0.246 
0.407 

1.601 
0.694 
0.640 
0.049 

0.715 

0.362 

0.345 

0.192 

Seasona!ly 
adjusted 
percent 
change 

May 20i4-
Jun. 20i4 

-2.1 
-0.7 

·0.9 
0.1 
0.3 
0.4 

0.1 

0.2 
0.2 
0.4 

-0.6 
-0.7 
-1.1 

-1.0 

-1.0 
-0.9 

0.1 
0.3 

0.3 
-0.7 
-0.2 
·0.3 
0.1 

-0.2 
-0.5 
-0.2 

0.8 

-2.7 
-Q_ 1 

·0.3 
-0.3 
-1.0 
0.5 

-1.0 
-0.1 
0.2 

0.1 
0.'1 

0.1 

0.5 
1.0 

1.0 

1.0 

0.0 

0.3 

-0.4 
04 

0.2 

Seasonally 
adjusted 

effect on All 
Items 

May 2014-
Jun. 2014 1 

-0.003 

0.000 
-0.001 
0.000 
0.002 

0.001 

0.000 
0.001 
0.000 

-0.002 
-0.001 

-0.001 

0.000 
0.001 

0.000 
0.000 

-0.002 
0.000 

-0.002 
-0.001 

0.001 

-0.002 
·0.001 
·0.002 
-0.001 
·0.001 

0.000 
0.001 

0.008 
0.007 
0.006 
0.000 
0.000 

0.001 

-0.001 
0.001 

Standard 
error, 

median 
price 

change2 

062 
0.78 

0.56 
0.51 

0.32 
0.33 
0.58 
0.39 
0.47 
0.46 
0.68 
0.66 
0.69 
040 

OAS 
057 
0.53 

0.56 

0.57 
1.16 

0.49 
0.28 
0.38 
0.33 
0.38 
0.46 
0.56 

0.71 
0.16 

0.23 

0.27 

0.35 
0.38 
0.46 
0.40 

0.14 

0.19 
0.32 
0.23 
0.18 
0.15 
0.16 
0.44 
0.42 

0.52 

0.54 
0.55 
0.53 

Largest (L) or Smallest {S} 
seasonally adjusted 

change since: 3 

Date 

S-Apr,2013 

S-Dec.2013 

S-Mar.2014 

L-Apr.2014 

S-Apr.2014 

S-Apr.2014 
L-Api.2014 

L-ApL2014 

L-Apr.2014 

S-Feb.2014 

S-Jan.2013 
S-Feb.2014 

S-EVER 

S-Feb.2006 
S-Oct.2012 
L-Feb.2014 

L-Feb.2014 

L-Feb.2014 
S-Dec.2013 
S-Dec.20i3 
l-Apr.2014 

S-Mar.20i4 

S-Mar.20i4 

L-Apr.2014 

L-Apr.2014 
L-Sep.2013 

S-Dec.2009 

S-Feb.2014 

S-Feb.20!4 

S-Feb.2014 

S-Feb.2004 

L-Mar.2014 

S-Mar.2014 

S-Mar.20"14 
S-Feb.2014 

S-Mar.20i4 
L-Jul.2013 

L-Jul.2013 

L-Juf.2013 

L-Oct.2011 

L-Apr.2014 

L-Mar.2014 

S-Oct.2013 
L-Mar.2014 

L-Aor.2014 

Percent 
change 

-3.0 
-2.7 

-1.4 

0.7 
0.3 

0.1 

0.8 
0.8 
0.6 
·1.9 

-1.4 

-4.1 

-1.1 

-1.1 

0.8 
0.7 

0.7 
-2.0 
-0.2 

0.2 
-0.3 
-0.4 
-0.1 

-0.2 

0.9 

-2.7 
-0.3 
-0.6 
-0.3 

-1.3 

l.3 
-1.1 

0.0 
0.1 

0.1 
0.5 
1.4 

1.4 

1.1 

0.1 

0.3 

-1.5 

0.4 
0.3 

52



Table 6. Consumer Price Index lor Ail Urban Consumers 
June 2014, 1-mon!h analysis table - Continued 

11982-84=100, unless otherwise noted] 

I Relaflve 

Expenditure category 

1

1 importance 
May 
2014 

infants' equlpment4
' 

8
· 

6 
.. 

Services less energy services .. 

Shelter .. 

57.00i 

31.835 

Rent of she!ter16 
.. ......................... I s1.473 

Rent of primary residence11
. 

Lodging away from home'' .. 

Housing at school, excluding board1 
'· 

16 

Other lodging away from home including hotels 
and motels .. 

Owners' equivaien1. rent of residences 11 
· 

16 

Owners' equivalent rent of primary 
residence11

· 
10 

... 

Tenants' and household insurance4
· 

5 
•. 

Water and sewer and trash collection services5
., 

Water and sewerage maintenance1
' 

Garbage and trash col!ection4
· 

14 

Household operations4
· 

5
... . . j 

Domestic services4
-

5
... I 

Gardening and lawncare services4 · 5 '. '. .... ·.·.·.·.·.·_·::::::: 

Moving, storage, freight expense5 .. 

Repair of household items4
· 

5 

Medical care services .. 

Professional services .. 

Physicians' services 11 

Dental services 11
. 

Eyeglasses and eye care4
• 

9 

Services by other medical professionals 11 
· 

9 

Hospital and reiated services .. 

Hospital services 11
· 

17 
.. 

Inpatient hospital services 11
· 

17
· 

6 

Outpatient hospital services 11
· 

9
· 

6 
.. 

Nursing homes and adult day services 1 '· YI 

Care of invalids and elderly at home4
· 

13 

Health insurance4
· 

13 
.•. 

Transportation services .. 

Leased cars and trucks15 
.. 

Car and truck rental5 
.. 

Motor vehicle maintenance and repair". I 
Motor vehicle body work4 •• • • ·• ~:: : : : , 

Motor vehicle maintenance and servicing4 
.. 

Motor vehicle repair""· 5 
.. 

Motor vehicle insurance., 

Motor vehicle fees 4
· 

5 
.. 

State motor vehicle registration and license 
fees 4_ ·11, s .... ., ..................... "'",, .. '", 

Parking and other fees5 .. 

Parking fees and tolls4
· 

5
· 

6 
... 

Automobile service c!ubs4 s. 6 

Public transportation .. 
Airline fare .. 

Other intercity transportation., 
Intercity bus fare~· 7 · 6 , 

Intercity train fare7
· 

6 
... 

See footnotes at end of table 

6.911 

0.926 

0.166 

0.760 
23.635 

22.256 

0.362 

1.170 

0.899 
0.271 
0.821 
0.273 

0.267 

0.115 
0.063 
5.824 

2.974 

1.560 
0.790 

0.280 

0.343 
2.103 

1.803 

0.170 
0.130 
0.748 
5,592 

0.390 
0.071 
1.138 

0.056 

0.478 
0.573 
2.200 
0.559 

0.312 
0.229 

i.235 
0.825 
0.152 

U.S. city average, by expenditure category, 

Seasonally I Seasona!ly 
adjusted adjusted 

~~~~1e9n~ I eff~f!~~ A!I 

May 20i 4- I May 2014-
,Jun. 20i 4 Jun. 2014 1 

1.8 
0.1 0.086 

0.2 0.050 

0.2 0.054 

0.3 0.023 
-i.9 -0.017 

0.4 O.OOi 

-2.5 -0.018 

0.2 0.045 

0.2 
-0.2 

0.3 
04 
0.2 
0.7 
0.0 
1.2 

0.7 

0.0 
0.0 

-0.1 

-0.3 

0.2 
-0. 1 

0.5 
0.2 
0.2 

0.1 
0.5 

0.2 
0.0 

-0.2 

0.1 
-1.2 

-2.i 

0.2 
0.2 

0.2 
0.3 

0.2 
0.0 

0.1 
-0.1 
-0.3 

0.3 
0.3 
0.4 
0.0 

0.042 
-0.001 
0.004 

0.003 
0.000 

0.005 
0.000 
0.003 
0.001 
0.000 

-0.001 

-0.003 
-0.005 
0.002 
0.000 
0.002 
0.004 
0.003 

0.000 

0.000 
-0.002 
0.005 

-0.005 
-0.002 

0.003 
0.000 
0.001 
0.002 

0.005 

0.000 

0.000 
0.000 

0.004 

0.003 
0.000 

One Month 

Standard 
e1-ror, 

median 

( Largest (L) or Smallest (S) 
' seasonally adjusted 

change since:3 

price 

1

, 

change2 Date 
Percent 
change 

0.58 
0.04 

0.05 

0.05 
0.05 
i. 12 
0.07 

1.39 

0.04 

0.04 

0.24 
0.11 

0.14 

O:!S 
0.12 

0.13 

0.07 
0.56 
0.24 
0.08 
008 
0.12 
0.'12 

0.26 
0.10 

0.13 
0.15 

0.28 

0.29 
0.12 
0.09 
0.09 
0.13 

0.43 

1.51 
0.09 

0.13 

0.15 
0.13 

0.21 

0.07 

0,03 

0.17 
020 
0.26 

0.41 

0.56 
0.79 

L-Sep.2008 

S-Dec.20i3 

S-Apr.2014 

S-Apr.2014 

S-Oct.2013 

L-Sep.2013 

S-Oct.2013 

S-Aug.2013 

L+Apr.2014 

L-Ma1·.20i4 

L-Apr.20i4 
L-Apr.2014 

S-Apr.2014 

L-Apr.2014 

L-Jun.2013 

S-Apr.20i4 

S-Nov.2013 
S-Jan.20i4 
S-Feb.2008 
L-Apr.2014 

S-Nov.2013 

L-Feb.2010 

S-Nov.2013 

S-Nov.2013 

S-Nov.2013 
L-Ap1·.20i4 
L-Mar.20i4 

S-Jan.2014 

S-Dec.20i3 

L-Apr.20i4 

L-Apr.2014 
L-Feb.20·14 

S-Apr.2014 

S-Nov.20i3 

L-Jan20i4 

S-Jan.2014 

S-Oct.2005 

L-Jan.2014 

S-Mar.2014 

S-Jan.2014 

L-Mar.2014 

2.1 
0.1 
0.2 

0.2 

-3.1 

-04 

0.3 
04 
0.5 

0.9 
-0.2 

2.3 

0.7 
-0, 1 

0.0 
-0.1 
-0.5 

0.2 
-0.8 

0.5 
-0.1 

-0.3 

-0.3 
0,5 

0.4 

0.1 
-1.4 
-1.8 

0.2 

0.2 
0.1 
0.1 

0.2 

-0.2 
-·t .4 

0.6 
0.3 

-2.2 

1.1 

53



Table 6. Consumer Price Index !or All Urban Consumers 11,;1r-1-ui: U.S. city average, expenditure caleQtOr';, 
June 2014, 1-mon!h analysis table - Continued 
[1982-84~100, unless otherwise noted] 

Expenditure category 

Ship fa1·e·''- 5- 6 .. 

Intracity transportation4 
•• 

Intracity mass transit4· 12
· 

6 

Recreaiion services12 
.. 

Video and audio services12 
.. 

Cable and satellite television and radio 
service 14 

.. 

Video discs and other media, including rental of 
video and audio4

· 
5 

.• 

Video discs and other media4
-

5
-

6 
.. 

Rental of video or audio discs and other 
media·- 5

-
6 
...............•.......•.......... 

Pet services includtng veterinar~,r5 .. 
Pet services~- 5

-
6 
.. 

Veterinarian ser.1ices5
· 

6 
.. 

Photographers and film processing4
• ~; 

Photographer fees4
· 

5
- 6 •. 

Film processing4
· 

5
· 

6 
.. 

Other recreation services5 
.. 

Club dues and fees tor participant sports and 
group exercises5 

.. 

Admissions'"·. 

Admission JC:. movies, theaters, and 
concetis·"'· 6 

......... _,, .,, .. 

Admission to sporting events4
· !:>, 6 .. 

Fees for lessons or instructions4
• 

9
, .. 

Education and communication services 12
, .. 

Tuition, other school fees, and chi!dcare ... 

Col!ege tuition and fees .. 
Elementary and high school tuition and tees, . 

Child care a·nd nursery schoo! 18 
.. 

Technical and business school tuition and fees 5 
.. 

Post-age and deiivery services5 
.. 

Postape~ .. 

Delivery services~- 5 .. 

Telephone services~- 5
,. 

VVireless telephone services4
· 

Land-line telephone services~ 12 
.. 

internet services and electronic information 
providers''- 5 .. 

Other personal services4
· 

12
,, 

Personal care services4 
.. 

Haircuts and other personal care services4 · s 

Miscellaneous personal services .. 

Legal ser.1ices8 
.. 

Funeral expenses9 
.. 

Laundry and dry cleanin~J services4 

Apparel services other than laundry and dry 
cleaning', s_. 

Financial services4
· 

9
,, 

Checking account and other bank 
services·1· 

5 6 
.. 

Tax retum preparation and other accounting 
fees"· 6 

.. 

See footnotes at end of tabie. 

Reiative 
importance 

May 
2014 

0.254 

3.702 
1.549 

1.456 

OD93 

0.390 

0.060 

i.702 

0.599 
0.630 

0.206 
6.337 
3,000 

1.776 
0.359 
0.704 
0.038 
0.143 

0.129 
0.014 
2.480 
1.655 
0.825 

0.702 
1.721 
0.622 
0.622 
1.098 
0.31 i 
0:170 
0.270 

0.033 
0.222 

SeasonaHy 
adjusted 
percent 
change 

May 2014-
Jun. 20i4 

0.5 
O.i 

O.i 
0.2 
0.3 

0.3 

0.2 
·0.1 

0.4 
0.4 

0.4 
0.4 

-0.3 
0.0 

-0.5 

0.2 

0.1 

0.3 

02 
0.7 
0.2 
0.2 
0.5 
0.5 
0.4 
0.4 
0.0 
0.3 
0.4 

·O.i 
-0.1 
-0.1 
-0.1 

0.2 
0.0 
O.i 
0.1 

-0.1 
0.4 

-0.1 
0.0 

0.0 
-0.7 

0.0 

-0.8 

Sea.sonaHy 1· 

adjusted 
effect on Al! I 

Items I 
May 2014: I 
Jun. 2014' 

0.000 

0.009 
0.005 

0.005 

0.000 

0.001 

0.000 

0.003 

0.000 
0.002 

0.000 
0.014 
O.Oi4 
0.009 
0.001 
0.002 
0.000 
0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

-0.002 

·0.001 
-0.001 

0.002 
0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

-0.001 
0.001 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
-0.002 

One Month 

Standard 
error, 

median 
price 

change" 

0.75 
0.03 
0.05 

020 
0.13 

0.12 

0.80 
1,02 

0.38 
0.14 
0.11 

0.13 

0.49 
0.31 
0.39 
0.41 

0.52 

0.53 

0.44 
049 
0:17 
0.07 
0.07 

0.10 
0.06 
0.08 
0.14 

0.02 
0.00 

0.26 
0.10 
0.04 

021 

0.26 
O.i 1 
O.i5 
0.15 
0.09 

0.19 
0.15 
0.09 

0.22 
0.22 

0.04 

0.38 

Largest (L) or Smallest (S) 
seasonally adjusted 

change since: 3 

Date j 

L-Mar.2014 

L-Feb.2014 

L-Feb.2014 

l-Apr.2014 

L-Mar.2014 

L-Mar.2014 

L-Apr.2014 

L-Apr.2014 

l-Mar.2014 

L-Feb.2014 

L-Apr.2014 

l-Feb.2014 
S-Nov.2013 
S-Mar.2014 

S-Nov.20i3 

L-Apr.2014 

S-Apr.2014 

L-Apr.2014 

L-Apr.2014 

L-Feb.20i4 
S-Apr.2014 

L-Api-.2014 

L-Feb.2014 

L-Feb.2014 
S-Apr.2014 

L-Ma1-.20i4 

S-Feb.2014 
S-Apr.2014 

L·Apr.2014 

S-Feb.20i4 

L-Apr.2014 

S-Ocl.2013 
S-Apr.2014 

S-Apr.2014 
S-Feb.2012 

L-Feb.2014-
S-Feb.2014 

S-Sep.2013 

S-Dec.2012 

S-Apr.2014 

S-Dec.2012 

Percent 
change 

1.0 
0.2 

0.3 
0.3 
0.4 

04 

1.1 
1.8 

0.5 
0.4 
0.4 
0.6 

-0.7 

0.0 
·0.6 
0.3 

0.0 
0.7 

0.6 
1.0 
0.1 
0.2 
0.5 

0.7 

0.3 
0.7 

-0.2 
0.1 

·0.7 

0.2 

·0.3 

OA 
0.0 
().0 

0.0 
-0.1 

0.5 
-0.3 

-0.3 
-0.8 

-0.4 

54



Table 6. Consumer Price Index !or All Urban Consumers 
June 2014, 1·monlh analysis !able - Continued 

[1982-84=100 unless otherwise noted] 

Relaflve 
importance 

Expenditure category May 
2014 

Special aggregate indexes 

Al! items less food .. """' 86.136 
All items less shelter .. 68.165 
All items iess food and shelter., 54.301 
A!l items iess food, shelter, and energy .. 44.630 
Al! items less food, shelter, energy. and used cars and 

trucks .. 42.955 
All items less medical care .. 92.468 
All items less energy .. 90.329 
Commodities .. 39.154 

Commodities less food. energy, and used cars and r 

I 
trucks ... . . . . . . . . . I 17.788 

Commodities less food .. . . . . . . . . . I 25.290 

Commodities less food and beverages .. I 24.296 
Services .. 60.846 

Services less rent of shelter16 
.. 29.373 

Services less medical care services .. 55.022 

Durables4 
.. 9.045 

Nondurab!es .. ., . I 30.110 
Nondurables less toed .. 16.246 
Nondurables less food and beverages .. 15.252 

Nondurables less toad, beverages, and apparel .. 11.818 
Nondurables less food and apparel ... 12.812 

Houslng .. 41.286 
Education and commun1catlon 5 .. 6.962 

Education5 
.. 3.191 

Communlcation 5 
.. 3.771 

Information and information processing"' .. 3.628 
Information technology, hardware and services18

, . . . . . . . . I '1.148 

Recreation'' .. .. 5.732 
Video and audio5 .. . . . . . . . . . I i .86i 
Pets, pet products and services5 , .. 

·························••I 

1.037 
Photography5 .. 0.122 

Food and beverages ... 14.858 
Domestically produced farm food .. 6.912 

Other se1vices .. 11.760 
Apparel less footwear. . . , , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I 2.725 
Fuels and utilities .. 5.279 

Household energy .. 4.109 
Medical care. , 7.532 
Transportation .. 16.875 

Private transportation .. 15.640 
New and used motor vehicles5 .. 5.752 

Utilities and public t1·ansportation. i 0.185 

Household furnishings and operations .. 4.173 

Other goods and services .. 3.321 

Personal care .. 2.627 

One Month 

Seasona!iy SeasonaHy 
Standard I Largest (L) or Smallest (S) 

adjusted adjusted 
error. I seasonally adjusted 

percent effect on All 
median , change since: 3 

change Items 
price 

I I May 20i4- May 2014-
change2 Date Percent 

Jun. 2014 Jun, 2014·, I change 

0.3 0.250 O.D4 - -
0.3 0.208 0.04 S-Apr.20i4 0.3 
0.4 0.201 0.05 L-Jun.20i3 0.4 
0.1 0.049 0.05 S-Mar.2014 0.1 

0.1 0.057 0.06 S-Mar.2014 0.1 
0.3 0.246 0.04 S-Apr.2014 0.3 
0.1 0.106 0.04 S-Jan.2014 0.1 
0.5 0.189 0.06 L-Jun.2013 0.6 

0.1 0.021 0.11 
0.7 0.182 0.09 L.-Jun .2013 0.8 
0.8 0.183 0.09 L-Jun.20i3 0.8 
0.1 0.069 0.04 S-Apr.2014 0.1 
0.1 0.030 0.06 S-Apr.2014 0.0 
0.2 0.085 0.04 S-Apr.2014 0.1 

·0,2 -0.019 0.08 S-Dec.2013 -0.2 

1.1 0.325 0.08 L-Jun.2013 i .2 
1.6 0.260 0.13 L-Jun.20i3 1.6 
1.7 0.258 0.14 L-Jun.20i3 1.7 
1.6 0.189 0.09 L-Jun.2013 1.7 
1.5 0.189 0.09 L-Jun.2013 1.5 
0.1 0.041 0.05 S-Apr.2014 0.0 
0.2 0.012 0.07 L-Apr.2014 0.2 
0.4 0.014 O.G7 L-Apr.2014 0.4 
0.0 -0.002 0.09 L·Apr.2014 0.1 

-0.1 -0.002 0.10 
0.0 0.000 0.21 L-Apr.2014 0.2 
0.1 0.006 0.14 L-Apr.2014 0.2 
0.0 0.001 0.13 
0.3 0.003 0.21 S-Apr.2014 0.3 

-04 0.000 0.38 S-Feb.2014 -1.0 
0.0 0.007 O.Q7 S-Sep.2013 0.0 

-0.1 -0.004 0.13 S-Sep.2013 -0.1 
0.2 0.022 0.08 L-Apr.2014 0.2 
0.6 0.017 0.56 L-Dec.2013 0.6 

-0.3 -0.018 0.18 S-Apr.2014 -1.8 
-05 -0.022 0.23 S-Apr.2Di4 -2.2 
0.1 0.011 0.08 S-Dec.2013 0.0 
1.0 0.159 0.08 L-Apr.2014 I.I 
1.0 0.155 0.08 L-Apr.2014 1.0 

-0.4 -0.025 0.09 S-Jan.2014 -0.4 
-0.1 -0.006 0.11 S~Apr.2014 -0.5 
0.2 0.010 0.11 L-Nov.2012 0.4 
0.2 0.005 0.11 

-0.1 -0.002 0.13 S-Dec.2012 -0.1 

1 The 'effect' of an item category is a measure of that \tern's contribution to the All ·items price change. For examp!e. if the Food \ndex had an effect of 
0.40, and ihe All items index rose I .2 percent, then the increase in food prices contributed 0.40 ! 1.2, or 33.3 percent to that All items increase. 
Said another way, had tood prices been unchanged for that month the change in the All items index would have been i .2 percent minus 0.40, or 0.8 
percent. Effects can be negative as well. For example, if the effect of food was a negative 0. 1, and the All items index rose 0.5 percent, the All items 
index actually would have been 0.1 percent higher (or 0.6 percent) had food prices been unchanged. Since food prices fell while prices overall were 
rising, the contribution of food to the All items price change was negative (in this case, -0.i I 0.5. or minus 20 percent). 

2 A statistic's margin of error is often expressed as its point estimate plus or minus two standard errors. For example, if a CPI category rose 0.6 

55



percent, and !ts standard error was 0.'15 percent, the margin of error on this item's i~month percent change would be 0.6 percent, plus or minus 0.3 
percent. 

3 !f the current seasonally adjusted I-month percent change is greater than the previous published I-month percent change, then this column 
identifies the closest prior month with a I ·month percent change as (L)arge as or (L)arger than the current i-month change._ If the current I-month 
percent change is smaller than the previous published I-month percent change, the most recent month with a change as (S)ma!I or (S)maller than 
the current month change is identified. If the current and previous published 1-month percent changes are equal, a dash will appear. Standard 
numerical comparisons are used. For exan1p!e, 0.8o/o is greater than 0.6'Yo, "0.4% is less than -0.2%, and -0.2°/o is less than 0.0°/o. Note that a 
(L)arger change can be a smalle1· decline, for example, a -0,2°;0 change is larger than a ~OAS-;, change, but still represents a decline in the price 
index. Likewise, {S)rnaller changes can be increases, for example, a 0.6%, change is smaller than 0.8%, but still represents an increase in the price 
index. In this context. a -0.2S{i change is considered to be smalle1· than a o.os-;, change. 

4 Not seasonally adjusted. 
5 Indexes on a December 1997=100 base. 
6 Special indexes based on a substantially smaller sample. These series do not contribute to the all items index aggregation and therefore do not 

have a relative importance or effect 
7 Indexes on a December 2007=i00 base. 
8 Indexes on a December 2005=100 base. 
()Indexes on a December i986=i00 base 
10 Indexes on a December 1993=100 base. 
~ 1 This index series was calculated using a Laspeyres estimator. All other item stratum index series were calculated using a geometric means 

estimator. 
12 Indexes on a December 2009=100 base. 
13 Indexes on a December 1990=100 base. 
14 !ndexes on a December 1983=100 base. 
15 Indexes on a December 2001::::100 base. 
16 Indexes on a December 1982=100 base. 
17 Indexes on a December 1996=100 base. 
18 Indexes on a December 1988='100 base. 
NOTE: Index applies to a month as a whole. not to any specific date, 

56



Table 7. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPl·U): U.S. cily average, 
June 2014, 12·mon!h analysis !able 
11982-84~100 unless otherwise noted] 

Twelve Month 
Relative Unadjusted I Unadjusted Standard 

Expenditure category 
irnportance percent I effect on All error, 

May change Items median 
2014 Jun. 2013- \ Jun, 20i 3- price 

Jun. 2014 Jun. 20i4 1 change2 

All items .. 100.000 2.1 0.08 

Food .. 13.864 2.3 0.324 O.i i 
Food at home .. 8.216 2.4 0.198 0.17 

Cereais and bakery products .. 1.126 ·0.3 ·0.004 0.38 

Cereals and cereal products., 0-371 -0.4 ·0.003 0.61 

Flour and prepared flour mixes .. 0.050 ·1.4 -0.001 0.99 

Breaktast cereal .. 0.192 0.0 -0.001 0.85 

Rice, pasta, cornmeal .. 0.129 -1.1 ·0.001 0.97 
Ricet,· 5 .. 0.8 1.33 

Bakery products .. 0 755 -0.2 -0.001 0.50 
Bread~. 0.223 -1.4 ·0.003 1.01 

White bread°' .. ·2.8 1.53 

Bread other than white5 ... -0.1 1.52 
Fresh biscuits. rolls. muffins~ .. 0.112 ·1.6 -0.002 1.'14 

Cakes, cupcakes, and cookies .. 0.185 1.4 0.002 1.10 

Cookies 5 .. 1.3 1.44 

Fresh cakes and cupcakes5 
.. 1.8 1.44 

Other bakery products .. 0.235 0.4 0.001 1 .22 
Fresh sweetrolls, coffeecakes, doughnuts5 

.. -1 2 2.33 

Crackers, bread, and cracker products5 .. 3.0 1.95 

Frozen and refrigerated bakery products, pies, 
tarts, turnovers·5 

.. -0.9 1.33 

Meats, poultry, fish, and eggs .. "-918 7.5 0.138 0.36 

Meats, poultry, and fish .. 1.798 7.5 O.i29 0.38 

Meats .. i.157 9.4 0.103 0,44 

Beef and veal., 0.528 10.4 0.052 0.58 

Uncooked ground beef.. 0.214 11.1 0.022 0.78 
Uncooked beef roasts·1 

•• 0.076 11.0 0.008 i .32 

Uncooked beef steaks4 
•• 0.192 9.4 0.017 1.03 

Uncooked other beet and vea!'1 
.. 0.046 10.7 0.005 i .34 

Pork., 0.371 12.0 0.041 0.76 

Bacon. breakfast sausage, and related 
products4 

.. 0.147 12.2 O.Oi7 0.95 

Bacon and related products5 .. 11.3 ·\ ,63 

Breakfast sausage and related products~' 5 12.4 1.41 

Ham .. 0.072 3.7 0.002 1.88 

Ham, excluding canned5 
... 3.7 1.79 

Pork chops ... 0.064 14.3 0.008 1.36 

Other pork including roasts and picnics"1 
.. 0.088 18.1 0.014 1.65 

Other meats., 0.257 3.9 0.010 0.98 
Frankfurters0

., 7.1 2.37 

Lunchrneais4
· ' 4.0 0.97 

Lamb and organ meats ·3.4 2.07 

Lamb and mutton4
· " .. -13.2 3.91 

Poultry .. 0.353 1.7 0.006 087 
Chicken~ ... 0.285 1.5 0.004 1.02 

Fresh whole ch1cken5 
... 0.9 1.76 

Fresh and frozen chicken parts['. 0.7 1.29 
Other poultry including turkey" ... 0.068 26 0.002 i .55 

Fish and seafood .. 0.288 7.2 0.020 0.85 
Fresh fish and seafood4 ... 0.148 9.1 0.013 1.23 

Processed fish and seafood4 
.. 0.140 5.2 0.007 1.16 

S'nelf stable fish and seafood'' .. 0.5 1.47 

See footnotes at end of tabie 

category, 

Largest (L) or Smaliest (S) 
unadjusted change since: 3 

Date I change 

- -
S-Apt-.2014 1.9 

S-Apr.20i4 1.7 

S-Nov.2010 ·0.3 
S-Feb.2014 ·0.6 
L-Mar.20i4 1.1 

- -
S·Feb.2014 -1. i 

S-Apr.2013 0.5 
S-Apr.2014 ·0.2 

S-Aug.2010 ·2.4 
S-Jul.2010 -3.7 
L-Apr.2014 0.0 
S-Jun.2010 -2.2 

S-Apr.2014 1.1 
S-Apr.2014 0.2 
S-Mar.20i4 1.1 
S-Apr.2014 -0.7 

S-Jan.2000 -3.1 

S-Apr.2014 ·0.8 

S-Nov.2013 -2. i 

S-Apr.2014 6.4 
S-Apr.2014 6.2 

- -
S-Mai·.2014 7.4 
L-Dec.20i 1 i 1.9 
S-Mar.20i4 ?" .0 

S-Mar.2014 7.8 
S-Apr.20"14 9.9 
S-Apr.2014 9A 

S-Apr.20i4 8.9 
S-Apr.2014 9.1 
L-Aug.2004 13.1 

S-Mar.2014 3.2 
S-Mar.2014 3.4 
L-Dec.1990 15.2 

L-EVER -
L-Mar.2012 5.7 
L-Dec.2011 8.0 
L-Mar.2012 4.5 

S·May 2013 -3.5 
S-Mai·.2013 -17.9 
S-Apr.2014 1.3 
S-Nov.201 i 1.2 
S-Jan.20i i ·0.2 
S-Oct.20i 1 0.6 
L-Apr.2013 3.4 
L-Feb.2014 72 
S-Apr.20i4 5.6 
L-Apr.20i2 7.9 
L-Mar.20i 4 1.2 

57



Table 7. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPl-U): U.S. 
June 2014, 12-month analysis table - Continued 

[1982-84=100, unless otherwise noted] 

Expenditure category 

Frozen fish and seafood5
, . 

Eggs .. I 
Dairy and related products .. 

Milk4 .. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I 

Fresh whole mi!k5 
.. 

Fresh milk other than whole'» 5 
.. 

Cheese and related products . 

Ice cream and related products ... 

Other dairy and related products4 
•• 

Fruits and vegetables .. 

Fresh fruits and vegetables .. 
Fresh fruits .. 

Apples .. 

Bananas .. 
Ciirus fruits 4

., 

Oranges, including tangerines5 
.. 

Other fresh fruits 4 
.. 

Fresh vegetables .. 

Potatoes .. 

Lettuce .. 

Tomatoes .. 

Other fresh vegetables .. 

Processed fruits and vegetables4 
•• 

Canned fruits and vegetables4
,. 

Canned fruits4
· 5 .. 

Canned vegetables4
· 

5
., 

Frozen fruits and vegetables4 
.. 

Frozen vegetables5 ... 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I 

Other processed fruits and vegetables including 
dried4 

•• 

Dried beans, peas, and !enti!s4
· 

5 
.. 

Nonaicoholic beverages and beverage materials .. 

Juices and nonalcoholic drinks4 
.. 

Carbonated drinks .. 

Frozen noncarbonated juices and drinks4 
.. 

Nonfrozen noncarbonated juices and drinks4 
..... _ •• i 

Beverage materials including coffee and tea4
_ .. 

Coffee ... 
Roasted coffeefi .. 

Instant and freeze dried coffee5 
.. 

Other beverage materials including tea4 
.• 

Other food at home .. 

Sugar and sweets .. 

Sugar and artificial sweeteners .. 

Candy and chewing gum4 
.. 

Other sweets4 
.• 

Fats and oils .. 
Butter and margarine~ .. 

Butter5
., 

Margarine5 
.. 

Salad dressing4 
.• 

Other fats and oils inciuding peanut butter4 
.. 

Peanut butte1.4· 

Other foods .. 

See footnotes at end of table. 

Relative 
importance 

May 
2014 

0.119 
0.870 
0.278 

0.279 
0.117 
0.196 

1.366 
1.061 
0.593 
0.092 
0.086 
0.166 

0.249 
0.468 
0.080 
0.065 
0.081 
0.242 
0.305 
0.160 

0.088 

0.057 

0.929 
0.679 
0.281 
0.014 
0.384 
0.250 
0.153 

0.098 
2.007 

0.292 
0.054 
0.178 
0.060 
0.242 
0.072 

0.061 
0.109 

1473 

Unadjusted 
percent 
change 

Jun. 2013-
Jun. 20·14 

10.2 
8.6 
3.9 
5.0 
6.1 
4.5 
7.4 

·1.6 
0.9 
3.0 
4.0 
5.8 
3.1 

·0.9 
12.2 

7.5 
5.0 
2.0 
6.6 
4.6 
0.6 
0.4 

·0.3 
0.9 

·0.7 
1.8 

·2.4 
·2.8 

0.2 
4.6 

-1.0 

·0.9 
·0.5 
0.5 

·1.3 
·1.3 

·2.7 
-3.4 

i.2 
0.5 
0.1 

· 1.7 
·3.6 
-1.7 
0.2 

0.0 
5.6 

1:.2 
0.1 

·23 
·2.2 
·3.8 
0.4 

Unadjusted 
effect on All 

Items 
Jun. 2013-
Jun. 2014 1 

0.009 
0.034 
0.014 

0.020 
·0.002 
0.002 
0.039 
0.040 
0.031 
0003 

·0.001 
0.019 

0.010 
0.009 
0.005 
0.003 

0.000 
0.001 

·0.001 
0.002 

·0.002 

0.000 

-0.009 

·0.006 
·0.001 
0.000 

·0.005 
·0.003 
·0.003 

0.000 
0.000 

·0.005 
-0.002 

·0.003 
0.000 

0000 
0.004 

·0.001 
·0.003 

0.005 

Twelve Month 

Standard 1
1 Largest (L) or Smallest (S) 

error, ! unadjusted change since:3 

median 
pnce 

change2 

2.28 
1.14 
0.47 
0.69 
1.03 
0.71 
0.88 
1.19 
0.80 
0.54 
0.67 
0.94 
1.68 
i. i 1 
2.17 
2.90 
1.62 
0.99 
1.79 
2.67 
2. 13 

1.23 
0.69 
1.12 
1.34 
1.20 
1.17 
I .45 

1.16 
2.11 
0.47 
0.56 
0.73 
1.37 
0.86 
0.69 
0.97 

1 .31 
2.43 

0.88 
0.32 
0.75 

0.97 
1.12 

1.17 
0.63 
105 
1.53 
1.48 
1.13 
0.99 
1.26 
0.39 

Date 

L-Aug.2011 

S-Feb.20i4 

S-Apr.2014 

S-Mar.2014 

S-Apr.2014 

S-Mar.2014 

L-Mar.2012 

S-May 2013 
L-Aug.2012 
S-Apr.20i4 

S-Apr.2014 
S-Mar.2014 

L-Jul.2013 

S-Feb.2014 
S-Dec.2013 

L-Apr.2014 

L-Nov.2013 

S-JuL2013 

L-Nov.2013 

L-Apr.2014 

L-Dec.2013 

S-Nov.2013 

S-Nov.2013 
S-Feb.2014 

S-Nov.2013 

L-Mar.2014 

L-Sep.2012 

S-Apr.20·14 

S-Apr.2014 

L-May 2013 

S-Jun.2013 

S-Apr.2014 
L-Jul.2012 

L-Jun.2012 

L·Jul.2012 
L-Jun.2012 

S-Mar.2014 

S-Apr.2014 
S-Jan.2014 

L-Jan.2013 

S-Sep,2013 

L-Mar.2014 

L-Jan.2013 

L-Jan.2012 

L-Aug.201 i 
S-Apr.2014 

L-Apr.2014 

L-Aug.2013 
L-Mar.201..:J 
S-Apr.20·14 

Percent 
change 

104 
5.7 
2.8 
4.8 
6.1 
4.2 
8.7 

·2.3 
1.1 

2.4 
3.1 
5.0 

4.i 

9.7 
4.6 
6.7 
4.6 

4.2 
5.8 
1.8 
0.6 

·1.0 
0.1 

·0.8 
1.2 

·3.9 

1.5 

i0,7 

-2.0 
-2,0 

·0.2 
·0.4 
·2.0 
·1.0 
·0.2 
·3.3 
2.1 
0.3 

·0.5 
·2.2 
-3,0 
-2.3 
0.2 
0.1 
8.0 

16.8 
-1.7 

·0.9 
-2.0 

·3.6 
-0.3 

58



Table 7. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers 
June 2014, 12-month analysis table - Continued 

[1982-84-100 unless otherwise noted] -

I 
Expenditure category 

Soups .. 

Frozen and freeze dried prepared foods .. 

Snacks .. 
Spices, seasonings, condiments, sauces .. 

Salt and other seasonings and spices4
· 

5 

Olives, pickles, re!ishes4
· 

5 
.. 

Sauces and gravies4 5 

Other condiments5 
.. 

Baby food4 
.. 

Other miscellaneous foods 4
., 

Prepared sa!ads6
· 

5 
.. 

Food away from home .. 

Full service meals and snacks~ .. 

Limited service meals and snacks4 
••• 

Food at employee sites and schools4 
.• 

Food at elementary and secondary schools'· 0 

Food tram vending machines and mobHe vendors4 
.. 

Other food away from home4 
•.• 

Energy .. 

Energy commodities .. 
Fuel rnl and other fuels .. . . . . . . . . . . . . I 

Fuel oil.. . . . . . . . . I 
Propane, kerosene, and firewood 13 

••••••••••••••••••••• ·I 
M~~~:~i~I~. (all types).. . ... ·.· .' .'.·.' .· .·.· .' .' .' .': .' .':::::::::::I 

Gasoline, unleaded regular"· .. 

Gasoline. unleaded midgrade9
· 

5
" 

Gasoline, unleaded premiumr" .. 

Other motor fuels 4 
•• 

Energy services10 
.. 

Electricity10 
.. 

Utility (piped) gas serv'1ce·10 .. 

All items less food and energy .. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I 

Commodities less food and energy commodaies .. 

Household furnishings and supplies 11
. 

Window and floor coverings and other linens4
. 

Floor coverings4
., 

Window coverings4 
.. 

Other linens4 
•. 

Furniture and bedding .. 

Bedroom furniture .. 
Living room, kitchen, and dining room furniture 4

. 

Other furniture4
,. 

Infants' furnlture7· 5 

App!iances4 
.• 

Major appliances4 
.. 

Laundry equipment5 
.. 

Other appliances4 
.. 

Other household equipment and furnishings 4
• 

Clocks, lamps, and decorator items .. 

indoor plants and flowern 12 
.. 

Dishes and flatware4 
.. 

Nonelectric cookware and tableware4 
... 

See footnotes al end of table. 

Relative 
importance 

May 
2014 

0.100 
0.276 
0.322 
0.291 

0.054 
0.430 

5.648 
2.735 
2.332 
0.206 

0.062 
0.313 

9.671 
5.827 

' 0.26, 
0.170 

0.095 
5.562 

5.475 

0.087 

3.844 
2.936 
0.908 

76.465 

19.463 
3.352 
0.273 

0.046 

0.054 
0.173 

0.769 
0.271 
0.361 

0.129 

0.275 
0.153 

0.119 
0.487 

0.264 
0.106 
0.042 

0.075 

U.S. city average, by expenditure category, 

Unadjusted 
percent 
change 

Jun. 2013-
Jun.2014 

-1.1 
-0.2 
0.5 

1.4 
3.9 
· 1.1 
2.0 

·3.8 
1.8 
0.1 
1.4 
2.2 

2.2 
2.2 
2.2 
2.0 

-0.8 
3.1 

3.2 
2.3 

4.2 
4.0 
5.5 
2.1 
2.0 

2.0 
2.2 
2.1 
1.6 
4.4 
4.2 

5.1 

1.9 
-0.2 

-2.5 
-2.1 

0.7 
0.2 

-4.1 
-2.5 
-0.4 

-3.3 
-3.9 

-5.4 
-7.9 
-8.6 

·2.1 
-4.8 

·6.9 
i.2 

-6.3 
-4.7 

Unadjusted 
effect on All 

Items 
Jun. 2013-
Jun. 2014 1 

-0.001 
-0.001 
0.002 
0.004 

0.001 
0.000 

0.126 
0.061 
0.051 
0.005 

-0.001 

0.010 

0.275 
0.107 

"-0.0.o 

0.009 
0.006 
0.092 
0.090 

0.001 
0.168 
0.126 

0.042 

1.474 

-0.037 
-0.081 
-0.005 

0.000 
0.000 

-0.006 
-0.017 

-0.001 
-0.011 
-0.005 

-0.016 
-0 013 

-0.003 
-0.023 
-0.018 
0.001 

-0.003 
-0 004 

Twelve Month 

Standard 
error, 

median 
price 

change2 

1.30 
0.82 
1.00 
0.92 
1 .48 
1.57 
1.43 
1.03 
0.79 
0.82 
1.19 
0.17 
0.27 
0.27 
0.67 
0.73 
0.80 
0.43 

0.19 
0.18 
0.60 
0.62 
1.34 
0.19 
0.19 
0.55 
0.53 
0.56 

0.23 
0.42 
0.49 

0.60 

0.09 
0.24 
0.30 
0.93 
1.29 
1.08 
1.37 
0.78 
1.08 
1.03 

2.52 

0.83 
i. i 4 
1.19 
1.15 
1 .17 

1.84 
1.66 
3.26 
1.34 

i Largest (L) or Smallest (S) 
j unadjusted change since;3 

I 
Date 

S-Apr.20i4 
L-Jun.20i3 
S-Apr.2014 
L-Mar.20i4 

L-Mar.2014 

S-Apr.2014 
S-Apr.2014 
S-Apr.20i4 

S~Apr.2014 

S+Oct.2013 

S-Apr.2014 

-
-
-
-
-

L-Apr.20i4 

L-Jan.2012 

S-Mar.20i4 

S-Mar.2014 

S Dec.2013 

S-Apr.2014 
S-Aug.2013 
S-Mar.20i4 
S-Mar.2014 

S-Mar.20i4 

S-Mar.2014 

L-Mar.2014 

S-Jan.20i4 

S-Apr.2014 

L-Mar.20!4 

L-Jan.2012 

L-Apr.2013 

L-Apr.2014 

S-Mar.2014 

L-Feb.2014 
S-Apr.2014 

S-Ju!.20i0 

S-EVER 
S-Dec.2013 

L-Aor.2014 
L-Mar.2014 

L-Apr.2014 

L-Sep.2013 
L-Mar.2014 

S-Oct.2003 

I 
Percent 
change 

-26 
0.0 

-0.6 
1.9 

39 
-1. 1 
-1 .5 

·3.9 
1.2 

-0.2 

0.9 

-
-
-
-
-

-0.2 
3.3 

0.4 
-4.0 

9 "·9 
3.7 
3.9 

-4.6 
-4.7 
-4.9 

-4.1 

5.3 
4.9 

i .8 

-2.0 

0.7 

1.7 
-3.2 

-1.7 

-3.0 
-4.5 

-6.2 

-9.1 

-1.2 
-4.6 
-6.2 

i .5 
-4.1 
-4.7 

59



Table 7. Consumer Price Index !or All Urban Consumers {CPl·U): U.S. 
June 2014, 12-monlh analysis table - Continued 

average, by expenditure category, 

f1982-84=100, unless otherwise noted] 

Expenditure category 

Too!s, hardware, outdoor equipment and supp!ies'1• 

Tools, hardware and supplies4 
•• 

Outdoor equipment and supp!ies4 
••• 

Housekeeping supplies .. 

Household cleaning products4 
... 

Household paper products4 
.. 

Miscellaneous household products4 
•• 

Apparel.. 
Men's and boys' appareL. 

Men's apparel. .. 

Men's suits, sport coats, and outerwear .. 

Men's furnishings .. 

Men's shirts and sweaters4 
•• 

Men's pants and shorts .. 

Boys' apparel .. 

Women's and girls' apparel .. 

Women's apparel .. 

Women's outerwear .. 

Women's dresses .. 

Women's suits and separates"',. 

..... I 
.. 

Women's underwear, nightwear. sportswear and 
accessories4 

•• 

Girls' apparel.. 

Footwear. 
..... I 

I 

Men's footwear .. 

Boys' and girls' footwear ... 

Women's footwear .. 

!nfants' and toddlers' apparel,, 

Jewelry and watches8 
.. 

Watches8 
.. 

Jewelry8 
.. 

Transportation commodities less motor fue1 1 
·
1 
..• 

New vehicles .. 
New cars and trucks4

-
5 
.. 

New cars 5 
.. 

New trucks.13
· 

5 
.. I 

Relative 
importance 

May 
2014 

0.704 
0.185 
0.367 

0.843 
0.332 
0.248 

0.263 

3.434 
0.872 
0.686 

0.115 
0.190 
0.202 

0.172 
0.186 

1.505 
1 .27i 
0.105 
O.i55 
0.606 

0.396 

0.234 

0.709 
0.215 
0.165 
0.329 
0.134 
0.214 
0.046 
0.168 
5.721 

3.509 

Used cars and trucks .. ,..,,1 "L675 

Motor vehicle parts and equipment. 

Tires .. 
Vehicle accessories other than tires~ ... 

Vehicle parts and equipment other than tires5
" 

Motor oil, coolant and fluids5
.. . ... I 

Medical care commodities .. 

l\4ediclnal drugs 1 ' .. 

Prescription drugs .. 

Nonprescription drugs 11 
.. 

Medical equipment and supplies 10 

Recreation commodities 11 
.. 

Video and audio products 11 
.. 

Televisions .. 

Other video equipment" .. 

Audio equipment.. 
Audio discs, tapes and other mediaA .. 

Pets and pet products. 

See footno1es at end of- table 

' 

0.430 
0.284 
0.145 

1.708 
1.632 

1.284 

0.348 
0.075 
2.030 
0.312 

0.150 
0.031 
0.070 
0.045 
0.647 

Unadjusted I Unadjusted 
percent effect on All 
change 1 Items 

Jun. 20i3- I' Jun. 2013-
Jun. 20i4 , Jun. 20141 

-1.5 -0.010 
-1.4 -0.002 

·1.5 ·0.005 
-1.1 -0.010 

-2.3 ·0.008 
·0.5 -0.001 
-0.2 -0.001 
0.9 0.030 

-0.4 -0.004 

-1.7 -0.012 
-4.7 -0.006 
-0.9 
-2.6 

0.4 
4.6 
3.5 
3.8 

16.4 

4.1 
1.5 

5.0 
i.7 

-1.2 
2.5 

3.9 
-5.8 
1.1 

-3.5 
-0.8 
-4.5 

-0.2 

0.0 
0.0 

-0.4 
0.6 
0.1 

-1.2 
-2.6 
i .4 
1.2 
2.9 
2.8 
3.0 
4.1 

-1.0 
-1.1 

-2.3 
-6.7 

-15.0 
-1 .4 
-2.4 

2.4 
-0.3 

-0.002 

-0.005 
0.002 
0.008 

0.050 
0.047 
0.012 

0.007 
0.008 

0.019 
0.004 

-0.008 
0.006 
0.006 

-0.019 

0.003 
-0.012 
-0.001 

·0.010 
·0.007 
0.001 

-0.002 
-0.005 
·0.007 
0.002 

0.048 
0.049 
0,052 

-0.003 
-0.001 
-0.051 
-0.024 
-0.023 
0.000 

-0.002 
0.001 

-0.002 

Twelve Month 

Standard i Largest (L) or Smallest (S) 
error, ! unadjusted change since:3 

median 
price 

change2 

0.58 
0.71 
0.81 
0.44 
0.67 
0.72 

0.79 
1.12 
1.54 
1.77 
5.75 
2.27 
3.39 
3.81 
3.42 

2.28 
2.46 
8.24 

12.36 

2.48 

1.96 
5.18 
1.28 
1.81 
2.69 
1.95 
i .92 
1.99 

3.43 
2.26 
0.21 

0.30 
0.27 
0.25 
0.26 

0.29 
0.37 

0.49 
0.64 
0.57 
0.86 
0.84 
0.88 
1.06 

0.78 
0.84 

0.41 
0.58 
·L06 

2.08 
1.23 
1 .1 9 

0.67 

Date 

S-Jan.201 i 
L-Apr.2014 

S-Nov.2013 

S-Nov.2013 

S-Dec.2013 
S-Dec.2003 

L-Apr.2014 

L-Aug.2013 
L-Mar.20i4 
L-Mar.2014 

S-Sep.2009 
L-Ma1·.2014 
L-Apr.2014 

L-Oct.2013 

S-Mar.2014 
L-Jun20·12 

L-Jun.2012 
L-Mar.1979 

L-Feb.2014 

L-Jan.2014 

S-Mar.2014 

S-Mar.2014 

S-Apr.2014 

L-Sep.2013 

L-Feb2013 

S-EVER 
S-Mar.2014 

S-Jul.2005 
L-Apr.2014 

S-Ju!.2005 

S-Jtil.2013 

S-Jan.2014 
S-Jan.2014 

S-Apr.2014 

S-May 2009 

S-Mar.20i4 

S-Mar.2014 

L-Feb.2014 

l-Apr.2014 
L-Nov.20i2 

l-Oct.2012 

L-Oct.2012 

L-Mar.2012 

S-Apr.2014 
S-Apr.2014 

L-Apr.2014 
S-Sep.2013 
S-Sep.2013 

L-EVER 

S-Apr.2014 

S-Jan.20i4 
L-Jar,,2014 

Percent 
change 

-2.1 

-1.3 
-1.5 
-1.1 
-2.3 

-1,8 

·0.1 
1.8 
0.6 

0.2 
-7.0 

1.2 
-2.4 

6.6 
2.0 
4.4 

4.1 
16.5 
7.8 

2.i 

3.4 
0.5 

-1.2 

2.8 
4.7 

0,7 

-3.8 
-0.3 
-4.5 
-0.2 

0.0 
0.0 

-04 

0.0 
0.1 

-3.4 

1.5 
1 .5 

3.9 
3.0 
3.1 
4.2 

-1.0 

-1 .4 
-2.3 
-6.9 

-i5. i 

-2.4 
~i .3 

-0.1 

60



Table 7. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPl·U): U.S. city average, by expenditure category, 
June i 2-month analysis table - Continued 

[1982-84=100 unless otherwise noted] 

Expenditure category 

Pet food"1 • 
5 

.• 

Purchase of pets, pet supplies, accessories4
· 

5 

Sporting goods .. 

Sports vehicles including bicycles .. 

Sports equiptnent.. 

Photographic equipment and supp!les .. 

Film and photographic supplies4
• 5 

Photographic equipment4
· 

5 
... 

Recreational reading materials ... 

Newspapers and magazines4 
.. 

Recreational books4 
•• 

Other recreational goods4 
.. 

Toys .. 

Toys, games1 hobbies and playground 
equipmenf· 5 

.. 

Sewing machines, fabric and supplies4
., 

Music instruments and accessories4 
.. 

Education and communication commodities 11
. 

Educational books and supplies .. 

College textbooks 14 ' 5 .. 

lnformatlon technology commodi\ies 11 
.• 

Personal computers and peripheral equipment6
. 

Computer software and accessories"' .. 
Telephone hardware, calculators, and other 

consumer information items"' .. 

Alcoholic beverages .. 

Alcoholic beverages at home .. 
Beer, ale, and other malt beverages at home ... 

Distilled spirits at home .. 

Whiskey at home 5 
.. 

Distftled spirits, excluding whiskey. at home 5 
•. 

Wine at home .. . . . . . . . . I 

Alcoholic beverages away from home .. , 

Beer, al~.5 and other malt beverages away from 
home · .. 

Wine away from home4
• 

5 
.. 

Distilled spirits away from home''- 5 

Other goods 11
. 

Tobacco and smoking products .. 

Cigarettes4 
.. 

Tobacco products other than dgarettes~. 

Personal care products .. 

Hair. dental, shaving, and miscellaneous personal 
care products4

_. 

Cosmetics, pertume, bath, nail preparations and 
implements .. 

Miscellaneous personal goods4 
.. 

Stationery, stationery supplies, gift wrap5 .. 

Infants' equipment7
· 

5 
.. 

Services iess energy services .. 

Shelter .. 
Rent of shelter 10

',. 

Rent of primary residence ·io ..•• 

Lodging away from home" .. 

See footnotes at end of· table 

Relative 
importance 

May 
2014 

0.403 
0.180 
0.217 

0.060 

0.218 
0. 121 
0.095 
0.390 
0.286 

0.052 
0041 
0.625 
0.191 

0.434 

0.294 
0.067 

0.073 
0.994 
0.587 
0.268 
0.073 

0.246 
0.407 

1.601 
0.694 
0.640 
0.049 
0.715 

0.362 

0.345 
0.192 

57.001 

31.835 
31.473 

6.9i 1 
0.926 

Unadjusted 
percent 
change 

Jun. 20i3~ 
Jun. 20i4 

-0.3 

-0. 1 
-1.3 
-0.6 
-2.0 
-24 

·6.7 
2.1 
4.9 

-1.4 
-5.3 
-6.5 

-3.3 
-1.4 
-0.9 
-3.1 

2.7 
3.0 

-6.2 
-6.3 
-4.2 

-7.7 
0.9 
0.2 
0.8 
0.1 
2.0 

-1.8 
-0.6 

2.0 

1.8 
1.8 
2.0 
2.2 
4.3 
4.5 
1. 1 

0.7 

-0.1 

1.5 
-0.6 

0.0 
-1.2 

2.7 

2.8 
2.8 
3.2 
3.i 

Unadjusted 
effect on All 

Items 
Jun. 2013-
Jun. 20i4 1 

-0.006 
-0.002 

-0.004 
-0.001 

0.005 

0.006 
-0.001 
-0.024 
-0.021 

-0.001 
0.000 

-0.019 
0.006 

-0.025 
·0.017 
-0.002 

-0.006 
0.009 
0.001 
0.002 
0.000 

-0.001 

0.008 

0.035 
0.032 
0.031 
0.001 
0.005 

-0.001 

0.005 
-0.001 

i .511 

0.890 
0.873 
0.210 
0.037 

Twelve Month 

Standard 
error. 

median 
price 

change2 

0.76 
115 
0.95 
1 13 
1.58 
1.92 
2.36 

2.83 
097 
1.36 
1.38 
1.25 
1.48 

2.14 
2.78 
2.30 
0.69 
1.03 
0.95 
0 93 
1.23 
3.85 

1.61 
0.30 
0.42 
0.49 
0.68 
1.23 
0.73 
0.82 
0.41 

0.60 
0.86 

0.68 
0.35 
0.43 
0.47 
1.17 
0.67 

1.06 

Q 90 

i .02 
1.31 
1.70 
0.10 
0.15 
0.15 
017 
1.35 

I Largest (L) or Smallest (S) 
unadjusted change since:3 

I Date 

l-Feb.2014 
L-Jul.2012 

L-Apr.2014 
L-Apr.2014 

L-Apr.20i4 
L-Jan.2014 

-
S-Mar.2014 

S-Mar.2014 

S-Mar.2014 

S-Jan.2013 

L-Mar.2014 

L-Mar.2014 

L-Mai-.2014 

S-Dec.2013 

S-Apr.2012 
S-Mar.2014 

S-Mar.2014 
S-Mar.2014 

S-Mar.2014 

L-Apr.2014 
L-Oct.2013 

S-Aug.2009 
S-Nov.2010 

S-Nov.2011 

S-Jul.2011 
S-Mar.2014 

S-Feb.2014 
S-EVER 

L-Mar.2014 

L-Jan.2014 

S-Apr.20i4 
L-Apr.2014 
L-Feb.20i4 

L-Aug.20i2 
L-Apr.2011 

L-Apr.2011 
L-Feb.20i4 
S-Mar.2014 

S-Sep.2013 

S-Apr.2014 

L-May 2013 

l-May 2013 

L-Oct.2013 

S-Apr.2014 

L-Mar.2009 

S-Feb.201<1 

I 
Percent 
change 

0.3 
0.3 

-0.4 

0.7 
-1.3 
-i .7 
-

-10.4 

1.6 
3.8 

-1.5 
-3.9 
-5.4 

·2.6 
-4.4 
-1.0 
-3.5 
2.3 

2.7 
-6.9 
-6.3 
-2.4 

-8.3 

0.9 
0.2 
0.6 

-0.2 

1.9 
-

-0.4 

2.0 

1.8 
1.8 
2.0 

2.2 
5.0 
5.1 
1.4 
0.3 

-0.5 

0.9 
-0.5 

0.0 
-0,4 

2.8 

3.2 
1 8 

61



Table 7. Consumer Price Index !or All Urban Consumers (CPl-U): U.S. 
June 2014, 12-month analysis table - Continued 
[1982-84~100. unless othe1wise noted] 

average, by expenditure ca!e~1ory, 

Twelve Month 
Relative 

importance 
May 
2014 

f----------~~ 

Expenditure category 

Houslng at school, excluding board10
· 

15
. 

Other lodging away from home includlng hotels 
and motels .. 

Owners' equivalent rent of residences 10
· 

10 

Owners' equivalent rent of primary 
resldence 10

· 
15 

.. 

Tenants' and household insurance4 
.. 

Water and sewer and trash collection services" .. 

Water and sewerage maintenance10
. 

Garbage and trash collection 18
,. 

Household operations 4 
•• 

Domestic services4 
•• 

Gardening and lawncare services4 
.. 

Moving, storage, freight expense4 
.. 

Repair of household items4 
..•. 

Medical care services .. 

Professional services .. 

Physicians' services 10 
.. 

Dental services 10 
.. 

Eyeglasses and eye care8 
... 

Services by other medical professionals10
· 

8 
.. 

Hospital and related services .. 
Hospital services10 10 .. 

!npaf1ent hospital services 10
• 

16
· 

5 

Outpatient hospital services 10
· 

8
· 

5 
.. 

Nursing homes and adult day services 10
· 

10 

Care ot invalids and elderly at home7 .. 

Health insurance7 .. 

Transportation services .. 

Leased cars and trucks 1'1 •• 

Car and truck rentaf4 
•• 

Motor vehicle maintenance and repair .. 

Motor vehicle body work,. 

Motor vehicle maintenance and servicing., 

Motor vehicle reoair4
. 

Moto1· vehicle insurance .. 

Motor vehicle fees 4 
.. 

State 1flp~or vehicle registration and license 
fees ........................................ . 

Parking and other fees4 
.. 

Parking fees and tol1s4 · 5 .. 

Automobile service ciubs4 · 
6 
.. 

Public transportation .. 

Airline fare .. 

Other intercity transportaiion .. 

Intercity bus tare6
· 

5 
.. 

Intercity train farei:;· s .. 

Ship fare1
'· 

5 
.. 

intracity transportation .. 

Intracity mass transit 1 ~· 5 

Recreation services 11
. 

Video and audio services 11 
.• 

Cable and satellite television and radio 
service 1:;. 

Seo footnotes at end ot table 

0.166 

22.256 
0.362 
1.170 
0.899 
0.271 
0.821 
0273 
0.267 
0.115 
0.063 
5.824 
2.974 

1.560 
0.790 
0.280 
0.343 
2.103 
1.803 

0.170 
0.130 
0.748 
5.592 
0.390 

0.071 
1.138 

0056 
0.478 
0.573 
2.200 
0.559 

0.312 

0.229 

i.235 

0.825 
0.152 

0.254 

3.702 
1.549 

1.456 

Unadjusted 
percent 
change 

Jun. 2013-
Jun. 2014 

3.2 

2.9 
2.6 

2.6 
4.9 

3.3 
3.4 
2.7 
2.8 
2.3 
3.9 
1.5 

1.7 
2.6 
1.6 
1.1 
2.1 
2.4 
\.5 
5.4 
5.9 
6.7 
5.3 
2.7 

1.6 
-0.7 
3.2 

·2.4 
1.8 
1.6 
3.3 
1.0 

2.0 

4.9 
1 .4 

0.9 
2.0 
2.6 

-1.4 

3.5 
5.3 

-0.6 

-0.2 

0.5 
0.0 
2.2 

2.4 

2.8 

Unadjusted 
effect on Al! 

Items 
Jun. 20i 3-
Jun. 20i4 1 

0.005 

0.032 
0.626 

0.589 
0.017 
0.038 
0.031 

0.008 
0.022 
0.006 
0.010 
0.002 
0.001 
0.145 

0.046 
0.018 
0.017 
0.007 
0.005 
0.104 

0.098 

0.004 
0.002 

·0.005 
0.176 

-0.009 
0.001 
0.019 

0.002 
0.005 
0.012 

0.115 
0.008 

0.003 
0.004 

0.043 

0.042 
·0.001 

0.001 

0.083 
0.037 

0.041 

Standard 
error, 

median 
price 

change2 

0.27 

1.66 
0.17 

O.i7 
0.94 
0.83 
1.07 
0.63 
0.39 
0.43 
039 
1.77 

0.93 
0.24 
0.26 
0.43 
0.45 
0.61 
0.38 
039 
0.44 
0.55 
0.88 
040 
0.39 
0.28 
0.34 
1.24 
2.04 
0.30 

0.52 
0.57 
0.44 
0.62 
0.41 

0.59 

0.48 
1.10 
0.82 

0.72 
1.05 
1.85 

1.88 
0.45 
1.80 
0.47 

0.38 

040 

Largest (L) or Smalles1 (S) 
unadjusted change since: 3 

Date 

S-Feb.20i4 

S-Apr.2014 

S-,Jun.2003 

L-Apr.2014 

L-Apr.2009 

S-Oct.2013 

L-Apr.2009 

L-Nov.2013 

S-Mar.2011 
S-Mar.2014 

S-.~pr.2014 

S-Dec.1949 
S-Jul.2012 

S-Apr.2014 

L-Jan.20i4 

S-Mar.20i4 

S-Mar.2014 
S-Mar.20i4 

S-Apr.2014 

S-Apr.20i4 

S-Aug,2011 

L-Sep.2011 

S-Feb.20i4 

S-Feb.2014 

L·Apr.2014 

L-Aug.2009 
L-Apr.2014 

L-Feb.2013 

S-May 2013 

S-Seo.201 i 
S-Sep.201 i 
S-Mar.2010 

L-Nov.20i3 

L-Nov.201 i 

S-Feb.2014 

L-Nov.2013 

L-Nov.20'13 

change 

1.4 

4.5 

3.4 
2.8 
3.4 
2.1 
7.7 

2.5 
04 
2.4 

1.5 
0.6 
2.1 

1.2 
1.7 
4.7 
5.i 
5.7 

5.3 

1.3 
·0.7 

3.2 
-3,3 

1.5 
1.6 
3.4 
1.4 

5.2 
1.4 

2.0 

2.3 
·2.0 
3.7 

7.1 

-0.2 

2.5 

3.0 

62



Table 7. Consumer Price Index !or All Urban Consumers (CPl-U): U.S. average, by ex1pe1odiituire category, 
June 2014, 12-mon!h !able-Continued 

[1982-84 iOO. unless noted] 

T we!ve Month -
Relative Unadjusted Unadjusted Standard i Largest (L) or Smallest (S) 

Expenditure category 
importance percent effect on All error, I unadjusted change since:3 

May change Items median 
' 

I 

2014 Jun. 20i3- Jun. 2013: price 

I 

Date Percent 
Jun.20i4 Jun. 2014 c~,ange2 change 

Video discs and other media, inciuding rental of 
video and audio4 

.. 0.093 -3.2 -0.004 1.66 S-Apr.2014 -3.9 
Video discs and other media4

· 
5 
.. -6.2 2.38 L-Oct.2013 -5.2 

Rental oj ~ideo or audio discs and other 
media·°' .. 0.3 1.00 S-Mar.2014 -0.4 

Pet services including veterinary4
. 0.390 3.4 0.013 0.47 L-Mar.2014 3.5 

Pet services4
· "·. ... " .. '" 3.6 0.86 L-Jan.2012 4.6 

Veterinarian servlces4
· 

5 
.. 3.8 0.52 L-Mar.20i4 3.9 

Photographers and rnm processing4 
.. 0.060 2.0 0.001 1.07 S-Jan.2014 1.8 

Photographer fees4
· 

5 
.. 1.7 0.64 S-Jan.20i4 1.7 

Film processing·\, 5 .. 3.0 1.03 S-Apr-2014 2.7 
Other recreation services4 

.. 1.702 1.8 0.031 0.91 - -
Club dues and fees tor participant sports and 

group exercises4 
. 0.599 1.9 0.011 1.23 L.-Mar.2014 2.0 

Admissions .. 0.630 2.1 0.014 i.50 S-Mar.20i4 i .9 

Admission to movies, theaters. and 
concerts4

· 
5 
.. 2.3 1.21 S-!vlar.20i4 22 

Admission to sporting evenls4
· s . 3.2 1.53 L-Apr.20i4 4.5 

Fees for lessons or instructions3 
.. 0.206 1.6 0.004 I .41 S-Apr.2014 1.2 

Education and communication services 11
. 6.337 2.1 0.128 0.23 L-Aug.2013 2.i 

Tuition, other school fees, and childcare .. 3.000 3.6 0.108 0.34 L-Aug.2013 3.6 
College tuition and fees .. 1.776 4.1 0.071 0.50 L-Aug.2013 4.2 
Elementary and high school tuition and fees. 0.359 4.1 0.015 0.44 L-Jul.2010 4.4 

Child care and nursery schoo1 1". _ 0.704 2.2 0.017 0.43 L-Dec.20i3 2 .. 2 
Technical and business school tuition and fees4 

.. 0.038 2.1 0.001 0.98 L-Dec.20i3 3.0 
Postage and de!ivery services4 

.. 0.143 4.0 0.006 048 - -
Postage .. 0.129 4.1 0.006 0.51 - -
Delivery services4

.,. 0.014 3.3 0.000 0.50 L-Mar.20i4 3.4 
Telephone servlces 4

, •. 2.480 0.2 0.005 0.32 - -
Wireless telephone services~ .. 1.655 -1.5 -0.024 0.39 - -
Land-line telephone servtces 11 0.825 3.3 0.029 0.59 - -

Internet services and electronic information 
providers4 

.. 0.702 1 A 0.010 i.01 L-Dec.2013 i .5 
Other personal servtces n. 1.721 1.6 0.028 0.35 S-Jul.2011 1.5 

Pernonal care services .. 0.622 1.5 0.009 0.58 L-Jan.2014 1.5 
Haircuts and other personal care servtces4 

.. 0.622 1.6 0.009 0.58 L-Jan.20i4 i .5 

Miscellaneous personal services .. 1.098 1.7 0.019 0.40 S-Oct.2009 1.4 
Legal seNices8 

.. 0.311 2.3 0.007 0.75 S-Jan.2013 1.7 
Funera! expenses8 

.. 0.170 1.6 0.003 0.41 S·Feb.2014 1.6 
Laundry and dry cleaning services/, .. 0.270 1.7 0.004 0.44 - -
Apparel services other than laundry and dry 

clea\ling4 
.. 0.033 2.0 0.001 0.99 S-Mar.2014 1.5 

Financial services8 
.. 0.222. 1.0 0.002 1.00 S-Mar.2011 0.9 

Checking account and other bank services4 5 -0.4 3.68 S-Nov.2009 -1.0 

Tax re~u~n preparation and other accounting 
fees·, ............................................ 3. i 0.85 S-Nov.2013 2.5 

Special aggregate indexes 

All items iess food ... 86.136 2.0 i .748 0.09 S-Apr.2014 2.0 
Ail items less shelter ... 68.165 i .7 i .i82 O.iO S-Ap!'.2014 1.6 
All items less tood and shelter,.. 54.301 1.6 0.858 O.i I - -
All items less food, shelter. and energy ... 44.630 1.3 0.584 0.13 - .. 

All items less food, shelter, energy, and used cars and 
trucks .. 42.955 1.4 0.585 0.14 - -

A!I items less medical care .. 92.468 2.0 1.879 0.08 S-Apr.2014 1.9 

See J·ootnotes at end of table, 

63



Table 7. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPl-U): U.S. 
June 2014, 12-month analysis table - Continued 

[1982-84-100 unless otherwise noted1 -

Expenditure category 

All items less energy .. 

Commodities .. 

Commodities less food, energy, and used cars and 
trucks .. 

Commodities less toad .. 
Commodities less food and beverages .. 

Services .. 

Services less rent ot shelter 15 
.. 

Services less medical care services .. 

Durables., 

Nondurables .. 

Nondurab!es less food .. 
Nondurab!es less food and beverages .. 

Nondurables less food. beverages, and appareL. 

Nondurab!es less food and apparel. .. 

Housing .. 

Education and comrnunication·1 
.• 

Education4 
.. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . I 
•• « " " 

Communication" .. 

Information and information processing4 
.. 

Information technology. hardware and servlces17 
.. 

Recreation4 
•. 

Video and audio4 
.. 

Pets, pet products and services4 
.. 

Photography4 
•• 

Food and beverages .. 

Domestlca!ly produced farm food .. 

. I 

Other services .. 

Apparel less footwear .. 

Fuels and utilities .. ·········.·.·.·.·.··••·•··· >•••••1 
Household energy .. 

Medical care .. 

Transportation._ 

Private transportation .. 

New and used motor vehicles4 
.. 

Utilities and public transportation. 

Household furnishings and operations .. 

Other goods and services .. 

Persona! care .. 

Relative Unadjusted 
importance percent 

May change 
2014 Jun. 2013-

! Jun. 2014 

90.329 2.0 

39.154 1.0 

17.788 -0.2 

25.290 0.3 
24.296 0.2 
60.846 2.8 
29.373 2.8 
55.022 2.8 

9.045 "i .5 
30.iiO i.8 
16.246 1.3 
15.252 1 .4 
11.818 i .5 

12.812 1.4 
41.286 2.6 

6.962 1.6 
3.191 3.5 
3.771 -0.1 

3.628 -0.3 

1.148 -1.6 
5.732 0.5 
1 .861 0.7 
i.037 1 .1 
0.122 0.1 

14.858 2.2 
6.912 2.7 

11 .760 2 .1 

2.725 1.4 
5.279 4.3 
4.i09 4.6 
7.532 2.6 

16.875 1.6 
15.640 1.4 

5.752 -0.2 
10.185 29 

4.173 -i.5 
3.321 1.9 
2.627 1.2 

average, expenditure category, 

Unadjusted 
effect on Alt 

Items 
Jun. 2013-
Jun. 2014 1 

1.798 

0.394 

-0035 
0.070 
0.062 
1.678 
0.805 
i.533 

-0.128 

0.522 
0.198 
0.189 
0.160 

0.168 
1.052 
0.109 
0.114 

-0.005 
-0.010 
-0.015 
0.031 
0.013 
0.011 
0.000 
0.333 
0.187 
0,239 

O.D38 
0.221 
0.183 
0.193 
0.261 

0.218 
-0.010 

0.294 
-0.059 

0.064 
0.031 

Twelve Month 

Standard 
error. 

median 
price 

change2 

0.08 
0.13 

0.27 
0.18 
0.19 
0.11 
0.14 
0. 11 
0.17 
0.15 
0.25 
0.27 
0.17 
0.16 
0.14 
0.21 
0.32 

0.27 

0.28 
0.71 
0.31 
0.35 
0.45 

1.17 
0.10 
0.18 
0.20 
1.35 

0.36 
0.39 
0.28 
0.14 
0.14 
0.22 
0.24 
0.24 
0.26 
0.32 

Largest (Li or Smallest (S) 
unadjusted change since:3 

i Date 
Percent 

I change ! 

- -
S-Apr.2014 0.9 

- -
- -

S-Mar.2014 -1.4 

- -
- -
- -

S-Aug.2009 -i .5 

- -
- -
- -
- -

S-Apr.20i4 1.3 

L-Dec.2013 1.6 
L-Dec.2013 3.5 
L-Ocl.2013 -0.1 
L-Apr.2014 -0.3 
L-Dec.2013 -1.6 
L-Apr.2014 0.6 

L-Jan.2014 1.1 
S-Apr.20i4 0.0 
S-Apr-2014 1.8 
S-Apr.20i4 2.1 
L-Mar.2013 2.3 
L-Aug.2013 1.6 

S-Apr.2014 24 
S-Apr2014 1.5 
S-Mar.2014 -1. 1 
S-Jul.2013 -0.2 

L-Mar.2014 3.2 
L-Apr.2014 -1.4 
L-Mar.2014 1.9 
S-Apr.2014 1.2 

1 The 'effect' of an item category is a measure of that i1em's contribution to 1he All items price change. For examp!e, if the Food index had an effect of 
0.40, and the Al! items index rose 1.2 percent, then the increase in food prices contributed 0.40 I i .2, or 33.3 percent. to that All items increase. 
Said another way, had food prices been unchanged for that year the change in the Ail items index would have been 1.2 percenl minus 0.40, or 0.8 
percent. Effects can be negative as well. For examp!e, lf the effect of food was a negative O.i, and the A!I items index rose 0.5 percent, the Ail items 
index actually would have been O,i percent higher (or 0.6 percentj had food prices been unchanged. Since food prices fell while prices overall were 
rising, the contribution of food to the An items price change was negative (in this case, -0. i I 0.5, or minus 20 percent) 

2 A statistic's margin of error is often expressed as its point estimate plus or minus two standard errors. For example. if a CPI categoty rose 2.6 
percent, and its standard error was 0.25 percent, the margin of error on this item's 12-month percent change would be 2.6 percent, plus or minus 
0.5 percent 

:i If the current 12-month percent change is greater than the previous published i2-month percent change, then this column idenilfies the closest prior 
month with a 12-month percent change as (L)arge as or (L)arger than the current 12-month change. If the current 12-month percent change is 
smaHer than the previous published 12-month percent change, the mos! recent month with a change as (S)mall or ($)mailer than the current month 
change is identified. If the current and previous published 12-month percent changes are equal, a dash will appear, Standa1·d numerical comparison 
is used. For example, 2.0~'~ is greater than 0.6'/S. -4.4°/o is less than -2.0~lo. and -2.0":'<> is less than 0.0°1;,. Note that a (L)arger change can be a 
smaller dec!ine, for example, a -0.2'}~ change is !arger than a -0.4u,~ change, but slili represents a deciine in the price indeK Likewise. (S)ma!ler 
changes can be increases. for example, a 0.6<>~ change is smaller than 0.8':1ri, but still represents an increase in the price index, In this context. a 
-0.2S-o change is considered to be smaller than a 0.0'% change 

4 Indexes on a December I 997=·100 base. 

64



5 Special indexes based on a substantially smaHer sample. These series do not contribute to the all items index aggregation and therefore do not 
have a relative importance or effect 

6 indexes on a December 2007=100 base. 
7 !ndexes on a December 2005=1 OD base. 
8 Indexes on a December i 986=1 oo base. 
9 Indexes on a December 1993=100 base. 
10 Th!s index series was calculated using a Laspeyres estimator. All other item stratum index series were calculated using a geometric means 

estimator. 
11 Indexes on a December 2009=100 base. 
12 Indexes on a December I 990=100 base. 
13 Indexes on a December 1983=100 base. 
14 Indexes on a December 2001=100 base. 
15 Indexes on a December 1982=i00 base. 
16 Indexes on a December 1996=i00 base. 
1

·
1 !ndexes on a December 1988=100 base. 

NOTE·. Index applies to a month as a whole, not to any specific date. 

65



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Review Draft Ordinances Meeting Date: 
Regarding the Setting of Property Taxes November4, 2014 
and Ad Valorem Taxes for the City of Work Session 
Prosser for Fiscal Year 2015 
Dei;iartment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 

1 Finance Regina Mauras Toni Yost (509) 786-2332 

Cost of Progosal: Account Number: 
Total Regular Levy= $1,468,460.04 which includes a 1 % 311-10-00 I increase of $13,866.68 
Excess Levy (Fire Levy)= $152,785 

Name and Fund# 
• General Fund No. 

001 
. Amount Budgeted: • Street Fund No. 
I Amounts included in 2015 Proposed Budget 102 
I • 1996 GO Bond 

Fund No. 229 

Reviewed by: Finance De~artment: 

~via. M~ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. 0% Increase 
i. Ordinance Setting Ad Valorem Taxes for the City for Fiscal Year 2015 
ii. Ordinance Setting the Annual Property Tax Levy for the City for Fiscal 

Year2015 
iii. Levy Certification 

2. 1% Increase 
. 

i. Ordinance Setting Ad Valorem Taxes for the City for Fiscal Year 2015 I 
I 

ii. Ordinance Setting the Annual Property Tax Levy for the City for Fiscal 
Year2015 

iii. Levy Certification 

Summarv Statement: 

A public hearing was conducted on September 23, 2014 to receive citizen comment 
, regarding revenue sources and potential property tax increases prior to considering the 
i annual property tax levy and ad valorem taxes. 

Attached are two sets of ordinances addressing property taxes for 2015. The first set 
reflect a 0% increase, while the second set integrates a 1 % increase. 

Following Council review, staff will bring the directed set of ordinances to a future 
m tin for action. The Cit ee g y 
November 30'" each year. 

is re uired b q y law to establish a ro e b p p rty tax levy y 
1 

66



Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Review Draft Ordinances Regarding the Setting of Property Taxes and Ad Valorem 
: Taxes for the City of Prosser for Fiscal Year 2015 

Reviewed by Department 
Director: 

;~~M~ 
I Date: 1 0 "!>I 1..-0 I'/-

Today's Date: 

, October23, 2014 

Reviewed·byCity Attorney: Approved by Mayor: 

=~7 
~? ...:~···''' 

Date: /O-J(-1 
Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

67



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

Ac~ ORDINANCE SETTING AD VALOREM TAXES FOR THE 
CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
2015, SETTING FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE 
ORDINANCE, PROVIDING THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE 
SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDING FOR 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish the amount of taxes to be levied upon the 
real and personal property in the City of Prosser, Benton County, Washington, and fix the 
tax levy for the year 2015; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on September 23, 2014 to 
consider the City of Prosser's revenue sources for the 2014 fiscal year, pursuant to RCW 
84.55.120; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council after hearing and after duly considering all relevant 
evidence and testimony determined that the City of Prosser requires an increase in 
property tax revenue from the previous year, in addition to the increase resulting from the 
addition of new construction and improvements to property, any increase in the value of 
state-assessed property, and any increase in property values resulting from reassessing in 
order to discharge the expected expenses and obligations of the City of Prosser and in its 
best interest; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council authorizes an increase in the regular property tax 
levy, in addition to the increase resulting from the addition of new construction and 
improvements to property and any increase in th.e value of state assessed propert,y' is 
hereby authorized for the levy in the amount <!ii:li'l~IDl which is a percentage increase !f~i&fal! 
from the previous year; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council determined that an excess levy in the amount of 
$152,785.00 would be required and said levy was certified with the Benton County 
Commissioners; 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Prosser City Council authorizes an increase in the regular 
property tax levy, in addition to the increase resulting from the addition of new 
construction and improvements to property and any increase in the value of state assessed 
property, in the amount df$0; which is a percentage increase dfii:~Jlili from the previous 
year. 

68



Section 2. In addition to Section 1 above, the City Council of the City of Prosser 
detennined on September 23, 2014 that an excess levy was required in tbe amount of 
$152, 785 for the Fire Station General Obligation Bond as authorized by a special vote of 
the people and said levy was certified with the Benton County Commissioners. 

Section 3. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby 
declared to be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
ordinance or its application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said 
section, sentence, clause, or phrase be held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after passage and 
publication of an approved summary thereof consisting of the title. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the 
Mayor this day of , 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 

ATTEST: 

Rachel Shaw, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

c - ...-- ·-=
-_.~·::-. --

__ .. c.-···-c::= ___ _ 

City Attorney 

Publication Date ----------

69



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the __ day of ___ , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, 
passed Ordinance No_ A summary of the content of said ordinance, 
consisting of the title, provides as follows: 

Ai"! ORDINANCE SETTING AD VALOREM TAXES FOR THE CITY 
OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015, 
SETTING FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE, 
PROVIDING THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE 
ANOTHER AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY-

The full text ofthis Ordinance will be mailed upon request 

DATED this __ day of ______ , 2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

70



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14------

AN ORDINANCE SETTING THE ANNUAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY 
FOR THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2015, SETTING FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE 
ORDINANCE, PROVIDING THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE 
SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDING FOR 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Prosser has met and considered its budget 
for the calendar year 2014; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Prosser after hearing and after duly 
considering all relevant evidence and testimony presented, determined that the City of Prosser 
requires a resi1lar levy in the amount <1f¥$1~1f~!~~~~~;::i~ which includes an increase in property tax 
revenue of: :Qo/o from the previous year, and amounts resulting from the addition of new 
construction and improvements to property and any increase in the value of state-assessed 
prope1iy, and amounts authorized by law as a result of any aunexations that have occurred and 
refunds made, in order to discharge the expected expenses and obligations of the district and in 
its best interest; and, 

WHEREAS, the. 9ity Council of the City of Prosser determined that an excess levy is 
required in the amount qll;;ji;i)"§2i;7ill\5' for the Fire Station General Obligation Bond as authorized 
by special vote of the people; 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section I. The City Council of the City of Prosser authorizes and sets the 2015 regular 
. . ., )'''i',(i,·'·"";;··:,;;C''0i'-~M ;?"~ 

property tax levy m the amount <l'f?§>:~ilil'~i!l:t'-11!?.¥372 

Section 2. The City Council of the Cit:yofPr<?sser determined September 23, 2014, that 
an excess levy was required in the amount <i,f£C~i~:~)§:;\%~W: for the Fire Station General Obligation 
Bond as authorized by a special vote of the people and said levy was certified with the Benton 
County Commissioners. 

71



Section 3. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby 
declared to be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clanse, or phrase of this ordinance 
or its application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, sentence, 
clause, or phrase be held unconstitlitional or invalid. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after passage and publication of 
an approved summary thereof consisting of the title. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the Mayor 
this __ day of , 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 
ATTEST: 

Rachel Shaw, City Clerk 

City Attorney 

Publication Date __________ _ 

72



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the ___ day of _____ , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 
Ordinance No. A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the 
title, provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE SETTING THE ANNUAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 
THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON FOR THE FISCAL YEAR2015, 
SETTING FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINAt'\JCE, 
PROVIDING THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE 
ANOTHER AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this __ day of ______ , 2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

73



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
LEVY CERTIFICATION 

In accordance with RCW 84.52.020, I, Regina Mauras, Finance Director for the City of 

Prosser, do hereby certify to the Benton County legislative authority that the City Council 

of the City of Prosser requests that the following levy amounts be collected in 2015 as 

provided in the City Council's ordinance, which was adopted on _____ after a 

public hearing was held on September 23, 2014. 

Regular Levy: $1,454,593. (Administrative Refunds - $14,070.67 inclnded) 

Excess Levy: $152,785 (Fire) 

---·-·--------
Regina Mauras Date 
Finance Director 

74



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

AN ORDINANCE SETTING AD V ALOREM TAXES FOR THE 
CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
2015, SETTING FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE 
ORDINAl"!CE, PROVIDING THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE 
SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDING FOR 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish the amount of taxes to be levied upon the 
real and personal property in the City of Prosser, Benton County, Washington, and fix the 
tax levy for the year 2014; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on September 23, 2014 to 
consider the City of Prosser' s revenue sources for the 2014 fiscal year, pursuant to RCW 
84.55.120; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council after hearing and after duly considering all relevant 
evidence and testimony determined that the City of Prosser requires an increase in 
property tax revenue from the previous year, in addition to the increase resulting from the 
addition of new construction and improvements to property, any increase in the value of 
state-assessed property, and any increase in property values resulting from reassessing in 
order to discharge the expected expenses and obligations of the City of Prosser and in its 
best interest; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council authorizes an increase in the regular property tax 
levy, in addition to the increase resulting from the addition of new construction and 
improvements to property and any increase in the vafoe. of state assessed property, is 
hereby authorized for the levy in the amount o'ii1!$*\iJ!31~l4\ii~~; which is a percentage 
increase ~:llSlil'ld from the previous year; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council determined that an excess levy in the amount of 
$152,785 would be required and said levy was certified with the Benton County 
Commissioners; 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Prosser City Council authorizes an increase in the regular 
property tax levy, in addition to the increase resulting from the addition of new 
construction and improverne~ts to property and any increase in the value of ;state assessed 
property, in the amount o1\i;$!~~~$".~(ii~? which is a percentage increase Qi)ll~li,'Wi from the 
prev10us year. 

75



Section 2. In addition to Section 1 above, the City Co1mcil of the City of Prosser 
determined on September 23, 2014 that an excess levy was required in the amount of 
$152,785 for the Fire Station General Obligation Bond as authorized by a special vote of 
the people and said levy was certified with the Benton County Commissioners. 

Section 3. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby 
declared to be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
ordinance or its application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said 
section, sentence, clause, or phrase be held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after passage and 
publication of an approved summary thereof consisting of the title. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the 
Mayor this day of , 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 

ATTEST: 

Rachel Shaw, City Clerk 

City Attorney 

Publication Date. _________ _ 

76



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the __ day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, 
passed Ordinance No. A summary of the content of said ordinance, 
consisting of the title, provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE SETTING AD VALOREM TAXES FOR THE CITY 
OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015, 
SETTING FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE, 
PROVIDING THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE 
ANOTHER AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this __ day of ______ , 2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

77



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-

AN ORDINANCE SETTING THE ANNUAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY 
FOR THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2015, SETTING FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE 
ORDINANCE, PROVIDING THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE 
SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDING FOR 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Prosser has met and considered its budget 
for the calendar year 2014; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Prosser after hearing and after duly 
considering all relevant evidence andte~timony presented, determined that the City of Prosser 
requires a regular levy in the amount ~111!\t:L,~l~~i~J which includes an increase in property tax 
revenue j;l~;i~iWi> from the previous . year, and amounts resulting from the addition of new 
construction and improvements to property and any increase in the value of state-assessed 
property, and amounts authorized by law as a result of any annexations that have occurred and 
refunds made, in order to discharge the expected expenses and obligations of the district and in 
its best interest; and, 

WHEREAS, the, City Council of the City of Prosser determined that an excess levy is 
required in the amount .i!l~~~f~~z,(~ for the Fire Station General Obligation Bond as authorized 
by special vote of the people; 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Co\ll1cilof th~ City of Prosser authorizes and sets the 2014 regular 
property tax levy in the amount ~.~Ji~l~~-J 

Section 2. The City Council of the City of Prosser determined September 23, 2014, that 
an excess levy was required in the amount ~jm"f4\itl~~ for the Fire Station General Obligation 
Bond as authorized by a special vote of the people and said levy was certified with the Benton 
County Commissioners. 

78



Section 3. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby 
declared to be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance 
or its application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, sentence, 
clause, or phrase be held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after passage and publication of 
an approved summary thereof consisting of the title. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the Mayor 
this __ day of , 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 
ATTEST: 

Rachel Shaw, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

Publication Date -----------

79



On the 
Ordinance No. 

SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 

----- A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the 
title, provides as follows: 

~"!ORDINANCE SETTING THE ANNUAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 
THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015, 
SETTING FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE, 
PROVIDING THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE 
ANOTHER AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this __ day of ______ , 2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

80



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
LEVY CERTIFICATION 

In accordance with RCW 84.52.020, I, Regina Mauras, Finance Director for the City of 

Prosser, do hereby certify to the Benton County legislative authority that the City Council 

of the City of Prosser requests that the following levy amounts be collected in 2015 as 

provided in the City Council's ordinance, which was adopted on __ _ after a 

public hearing was held on September 23, 2014. 

Regular Levy: 

I Excess Levy: 

Regina Mauras 
Finance Director 

I $1,468,460 

I $157,500 

Date 

Prosser Admin Refunds -
$14,070.67 included 

------j 

· Fire 

81



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Review a Proposed I Meeting Date: 
Amendment to the 2014 Budget for the November 4, 2014 
Criminal Justice Fund, Transportation Work Session 
Benefit District Fund (103) and for the 
Water Fund 403 . 
Department: 
Finance 

Cost of Proposal: 
n/a 

Amount Budgeted: 
n/a 

Director: Contact Person: 
Regina Mauras I Toni Yost 

I Phone'Number: 
(509) 786-2332 

Account Number: 
n/a 

Name.and Fund# 
I Water Fund (403) 

Transportation 
Benefit District (103) 

, Reviewed by Finance Department: 

~ma-. }-\QID.~ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Ordinance 14-__ 

Summarv Statement: 

Attached is a proposed budget amendment for the 2014 Budget which impacts three 
separate funds. A summary has been prepared below to outline the need for the 
amendments. 

Transportation Benefit District Fund (103): 
In the 2014 Adopted Budget, $80,000 was allocated for the annual chip seal program. 
The actual costs of the project are $89,245, therefore it is necessary to amend the 
budget to allow for the additional expenditure. The additional revenue associated with 
this project will be provided by the Prosser Transportation Benefit District. 

Criminal Justice Fund (148): 
The Council is currently considering the acquisition of certain property related to the 
construction of a public safety building. It is necessary to amend the 2014 Budget to 
allow for the expenditure of funds related to this purchase. 

Water Fund (403): 
In preparing the 2014 budget engineer estimates indicated that water project costs for 
2014 would be $1, 152,510. This information incorporated into the water project budgets 
in the 2014 Adopted Budget. Current expenditures and updated engineer estimates 

.

1 

indicate that the water project costs are anticipated to be $1,917,511. Therefore, it is 
necessary to amend the budget to allow for the additional expenditures. The additional 

, revenue associated with these projects will be received from USDA or DWSRF. 
I 

82



Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Review a Proposed Amendment to the 2014 Budget for the Criminal Justice Fund, 

Reviewed by Department Reviewed by City Attorney: Approved by Mayor: 
Director: 

tdu~ ~ 1'ttjrM ~ 
·~ 

Date: Ji)J r )J f Date: IO 3 l U)l't Date: J l)-J (~14 
Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: I 

~~porto<ioo '"""' o;,.,;ct F ""' ( 1 03) .od "* fu• W'"' Food (403). 

October 29, 2014 

! 

83



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE .NO. 14·~-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET ADOPTED BY 
ORDINANCE 13-2859 AND. AS AMENDED BY ORDINANCE 14-2871; 
ORDINANCE 14-2883; ORDINANCE 14c2891; ORJ)INANCE 14-29()4; 
ORDINANCE 14-2905; ORDINANCE 14-2906; AND ORDINANCE,: 14-2907 
AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET FOR THE WATER FUND (403), 
TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT DISTRICT FUND (103), AND CRIMINAL. 
JUSTICE FUND (148) FOR UNANTICPATED.CASH AND RESERVED 
CASH Ai""ID ALSO PROVIDE FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF THOSE 
FUNDS AND DECLARES AN EMERGENCY. THE ORDJ:NANCE 
AMENDS THE 2.014 BUDGET FOR THE ABOVE FUNDS ATTHE FUND 
LEVEL AND FINDS THAT THE THIS AMEMDMENT TO THE 2014 
BUDGET IS IN THE BEST INTERST OF THE CITY. THE ORDINANCE 
ALSO AUTHORIZES THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO MAKE ALL 
ADJUSTJY(ENTS TO THE 2014 BUDGET NECESSARY TO 
ACCOMPLISH THE PURPOSE ... OF THIS. . ORDINANCE. THE . 
ORDINANCE ALSO DECLARES THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
ORDINANCE ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND SETS 
FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND 
PROVIDES FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

WHEREAS, the City has received funds from USDA for the North Prosser Water 
Improvement project and the revenues and expenditures associated with the project are budgeted 
in the Water Fund (403); and 

WHEREAS, the City has received funds from DWSRF for to the Disinfection, Filtration, 
and Source Improvements project and the revenues and expenditures associated with the project 
are budgeted in the Water Fund ( 403 ); and 

WHEREAS, it is projected that project costs and. the associated reimbursements from 
these two projects will cause the budget in the Water Fund (403) to exceed its appropriated 1imit; 
and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the budget for the Water Fund ( 403) to allow for 
the expenditure of these project related costs; and 

WHEREAS, the City receives funds from the Prosser Transportation Benefit District to 
do the annual Chip Seal Program; and 

WHEREAS, it was expected that the chip seal program for 2014 would cost $80,000-but 
the actual projects costs are $89,244.93; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the budget for the Transportatio~ Benefit District 

84



Fund (103) to allow for the expenditure of funds related to the chip seal project; and 
f,. 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the budget for the Criminal Justice Fund to allow 
for the acquisition of property related to the construction of a public safety building; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 35A.33.090, a public emergency exists which could not 
have been reasonably foreseen at the time of the filing of the 2014 Budget which requires the 
receipt and expenditure of money not provided for in the annual budget and is not one of the 
emergencies specifically enumerated in RCW 35A.33.080; and 

WHEREAS, the facts constituting an emergency are enumerated as follows: 

I. The adopted 2014 budget was an estimate of revenues and expenditures; and 
2. The City was not aware of the additional projects costs during the budget process; 

and 
3. Prudent fiscal management requires immediate amendment of the budget; and 
4. The funds need to be available to pay projected related costs ; and 
5. It is in the best interest of the city of Prosser to amend the budget; and 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated herein. 

Section 2. The 2014 Budget Adopted by Ordinance Number 13-2859, and amended by 
Ordinance Number 14-2871, Ordinance Number 14-2883, Ordinance 14-2891, Ordinance 14-
2904, Ordinance 14 - 2905, Ordinance 14-2906, and Ordinance 14-2907 is hereby amended as 
follows: 

Fl.Tl'<TI N 0. FUND REVENUE EXPENDITURE 

103 Transportation Benefit District $89,750 $94,250 
148 Criminal Justice $152,566 $233,166 
403 Water Fund $4,013,757 $4,356,824 

Section 3. The Finance Director is hereby authorized to make all adjustments to the 
City's Budget to accomplish the purposes of this Ordinance in accordance with RCW Chapter 
35A.33. 

Section 4. An emergency is declared to exist and the recitals set forth above are hereby 
adopted as findings in support of such emergency. 

Section 5. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to 
be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance or its 
application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, 
the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, subsection, sentence, clause, 

85



or phrase be held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 6. Since this budget amendment is being approved in accordance with RCW 
35A.33.090, its passage requires the affirmative vote of 5 Council Members. This ordinance 
shall take effect five ( 5) days after passage and publication of an approved summary thereof 
consisting of the title. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this day of ---
---------' 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

Approved as to f~:,ro:;? · ·· ·-) 

~~ / =- / 
CITITA;;, HOW ARD SAXTON 

Date of Publication: -------

86



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the __ day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 
Ordinance No. . A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the 
title, provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET ADOPTED BY 
ORDINANCE 13-2859 AND AS AMENDED BY ORDINANCE 14-2871; 
ORDINANCE 14-2883; ORDINANCE 14-2891; ORDINANCE 14-2904; 
ORDINANCE 14-2905; ORDINANCE 14-2906; AND ORDINANCE 14-2907 
AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET FOR THE WATER FUND (403), 
TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT DISTRICT FUND (103), AND CRIMINAL 
JUSTICE FUND (148) FOR UNANTICPATED CASH AND RESERVED 
CASH AND ALSO PROVIDE FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF THOSE FUNDS 
AND DECLARES AN EMERGENCY. THE ORDINANCE AMENDS THE 
2014 BUDGET FOR THE ABOVE FUNDS AT THE FUND LEVEL AND 
FINDS THAT THE THIS AMEMDMENT TO THE 2014 BUDGET IS IN THE 
BEST INTERST OF THE CITY. THE ORDINANCE ALSO AUTHORIZES 
THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO MAKE ALL ADJUSTMENTS TO THE 2014 
BUDGET NECESSARY TO ACCOMPLISH THE PURPOSE OF THIS 
ORDINANCE. THE ORDINANCE ALSO DECLARES THAT THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE 
ANOTHER AND SETS FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE 
ORDINANCE AND PROVIDES FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this __ day of ______ , 2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

87



 601 7th Street, Prosser, WA  99350 (509)786-2332 
 
 

Quarterly Financial Report - September 2014 
 
This quarterly report provides a summary of budget to actual comparisons of revenues and 
expenditures for each fund through the third quarter of 2014 (July - September 2014).  At this 
point in the year we can expect to see that revenues and expenditures should be approximately 
75% or less.  Larger expenditures or seasonal programs can be the exception. 
 
The information in this report is unaudited and prepared on a cash basis.  Accordingly, 
adjustments may need to be made in accordance with the Budgeting, Accounting and Reporting 
System (BARS) in preparation of the annual financial reports. 
 
General Fund: 
 
General Fund Revenues: 
 
Through the third quarter of 2014, the financial condition and economic trends are relatively 
positive for the City of Prosser.  The City has experienced a slowdown of Building Permits 
through the third quarter.   
 
          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
During the third quarter there were no new building permits.  Upcoming projects for the next 
year consist of: 
 
 Catholic Charities 
 Zirkle – Kitchen & Storage Room 
 ShopKo 
 14 Hands - Expansion 

 
 
 

Construction & Permit 
Activity       

   
2014 2013 

% Change 
   

Jan - Sep Jan - Sep 
Building Permits 

 
157 204       -23.0% 

      Permit Valuation 
 

 5,277,563   10,661,762 -49.5% 

      Permit Fees 
 

      67,373        115,518 -41.6% 

      

88



 
 
 

 
 
This table shows the actual revenues collected through September 2014 and compares this information 
with the Adopted 2014 Budget. 
 
General Fund Revenues 

    

Revenues Category   
 September 2014   

YTD Actual   2014 Budget  % Received 

Property Tax 
 

   577,560         998,328  57.98% 
Sales Tax 

 
   872,073      1,072,500  81.4% 

Utility Tax 
 

1,302,579      1,722,951  75.6% 
Other Tax 

 
     59,509           58,700  101.0% 

Building Permits 
 

     35,258           66,000  53.5% 
Franchise Fees 

 
     23,914           31,000  77.2% 

General Business Registration 
 

     32,354           35,000  92.5% 
Other Licenses & Permits 

 
     15,926           19,850  80.3% 

Intergov't Revenue 
 

     70,148         102,615  68.4% 
Charges for Services 

 
   177,107         243,078  72.9% 

Fines & Penalties 
 

    81,048         103,500  78.3% 
Miscellaneous and Other Revenue 

 
  111,812         142,910  78.3% 

Total 9/30/2014 Revenues 
 

3,359,288      4,596,432  73.1% 
Unaudited. 

     
 
Property Tax:  Property tax revenues are generally received during the second and fourth 
quarters of the year.  The City of Prosser has received 57.9% of the anticipated budget amount, 
or $577,560.  This is an increase of 5.1% over the third quarter of 2013.  Property tax revenue is 
the third largest revenue source for Prosser’s General Fund. 
 
The five top property taxpayers are: 
 

 Zirkle Fruit Company 
 Conagra Foods Lamb Weston Inc 
 Kenyon Zero Storage Inc 
 Tree Top Inc. 

 
Sales Tax: The sales tax base is the selling price of tangible personal property and selected food 
and services.  The current sales tax rate for the City of Prosser is 8.3%.  For every $100.00 in 
applicable sales in Prosser, the consumer pays $8.30.  Of the $8.30 in sales tax paid, the City 
receives approximately $1.80 and the remaining $6.50 is distributed to the state and county. 
 
Retail sales and use tax is the second largest revenue source for Prosser’s General Fund.  
Revenue from sales tax increased by 22.3% for the third quarter of 2014 compared to the third 
quarter of 2013.   
 
 

89



 
 
 
 
Sales tax collections fluctuate from quarter to quarter due to seasonal activity.  The City 
generally receives more sales tax revenue in the second half of the year.  This is because of the 
combination of construction improvements both privately and publically, seasonal activities and 
inflation. 
 
 
The chart below displays the quarterly sales and use tax collected since 2010.   

 
 

 
First Second Third Fourth Total 

2010 223,042  222,159  263,746  262,167  971,113  
2011 256,484  237,984  350,511  250,729  1,095,708  
2012 224,186  246,105  262,982  252,478  985,752  
2013 252,377  263,111  294,785  315,114  1,125,387  
2014 278,364  281,606  312,102  268,934 1)  1,141,006  

*Unaudited 
1) Forecasted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

200,000 

400,000 

600,000 

800,000 

1,000,000 

1,200,000 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

223,042  256,484  224,186  252,377  278,364  

222,159  237,984  246,105  263,111  281,606  

263,746  
350,511  

262,982  
294,785  

312,102  

262,167  

250,729  

252,478  

315,114  268,934 Forecasted  

Sales Tax by Quarter 

First Second Third Fourth 

90



 
 
 
 
Utility Taxes:  The City collects both internal and external utility taxes.  Internal taxes are paid 
by the City’s utility and garbage funds to the General Fund.  External taxes are paid by 
providers of telephone, electric, gas, cell phone, and cable services in the City.   
 
As you can see by the chart below, water and sewer spike in 2012.  This was due to a rate 
increase and adjustments made for the 2011 year in 2012.  This distorts the graph adversely.   
Current receipts of Utility Tax are $1,302,579, or 75.6% of the 2014 Budgeted Amount of 
$1,722,951. Utility taxes are the largest revenue source for Prosser’s General Fund. 
 
The following table reflects utility tax revenue received since 2010.  

 
  Unaudited 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 -    

 100,000  

 200,000  

 300,000  

 400,000  

 500,000  

 600,000  

Electric Water Sewer Garbage  Gas  Cable Telephone Cell Phone 

Utility Tax Revenue Comparision 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 -Projected 

91



 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund Expenditures: 
 
Total General Fund expenditures through the 3rd quarter of 2014 total $3,164,232, 69.2% of the 
budgeted amount of $4,572,228.  
 
It is expected that Insurance Premiums will be $32,767 more than was budgeted for the 2014 
year.  This is due to a change in when the insurance company invoices the City and when we are 
expected to pay the annual payment.  The insurance company is amending the coverage period 
from August through September to be January through December. As part of this transition, and 
additional coverage period from September through December was invoiced to ensure the City 
had adequate coverage during until the new coverage period began.  
 
This table shows the actual expenditures paid through September 2014 and compares this information 
with the Adopted 2014 Budget.   
        

General Fund Expenditures 
   

Expenditure Category  Sept 2014 YTD Actual   2014 Budget        % Expended 
Legislative          91,674          128,010  71.6% 

Judicial          61,919          105,000  59.0% 
Financial Services        312,658          440,670  71.0% 
Records Services          68,109            96,405  70.6% 
Election Services            5,679              5,500  103.3% 
Legal Services          22,143            30,000  73.8% 
Labor Relations          17,591            23,600  74.5% 
Custodial Services          95,084          193,093  49.2% 
Information Technology          52,873          100,635  52.5% 
Law Enforcement    1,006,322       1,419,195  70.9% 
Fire Services        212,806          318,948  66.7% 
Dispatch Services          69,945            90,000  77.7% 
Detention/Correction          53,900          120,000  44.9% 
Protective Inspections        116,828          148,380  78.7% 
Planning & Economic Development          106,415          192,978  55.1% 
Senior Center          13,289            24,047  55.3% 
Education & Recreation          61,924            81,325  76.1% 
Libraries Services & Facility        148,547          201,735  73.6% 
Swimming Pools        195,703          227,072  86.2% 
General Parks        174,044          256,479  67.9% 
Non-Departmental        148,165          180,656  82.0% 
Capital Outlay (Fox Sander)                   -              15,000  0.0% 
Transfers        128,614          173,500  74.1% 

Total 9/30/2014 Expenditures    3,164,232       4,572,228  69.2% 
Unaudited.  √  

   
 
 
 
 

92



 
 
 
                     This chart depicts the General Fund Expenditures by Expenditure. 
 

 
                                        Unaudited 
 
Salaries and Benefits are on average 50% of the General Fund Expenditures.  Of this, overtime 
represents 3%.  For the 3rd quarter, salaries and benefits are $1,739,253, or 55% of the 2014 3rd 
quarter expenditures to date. 
 
For the 3rd quarter, overtime expenditures are $53,748.  This exceeds the 2014 budget of 
$43,719 by $10,029.  This is due to the Police Departments overtime increased due to staff 
scheduling and staff shortages.   
 
Aquatic Center Activity: 
During the 2014 season, the Aquatic Center saw 31,431 visitors this year.  This was a decrease 
of 9,063 visitors from 2013.  The Revenues and Expenditures were also down from 2013 as you 
can see in the following graphs.  A more detailed reporting of PAC activities is being prepared 
and will come in the PAC Annual Report.  

 

 -    
 500,000  

 1,000,000  
 1,500,000  
 2,000,000  
 2,500,000  
 3,000,000  
 3,500,000  
 4,000,000  
 4,500,000  
 5,000,000  

2014 Bud 2013 2012 2011 
Other 368,700  469,090  346,051  986,295  
M&O 1,840,397  1,844,835  1,579,019  1,406,607  
Salaries 2,340,381  2,334,277  2,393,326  2,326,891  

Expenditures by Type 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

5,299 
5,111 

5,065 

24,068 29,007 
40,494 

31,431 

Aquatic Center 
2014 - Annual Visitor Count 

93



 
 
 

 
 
WATER FUNDS 
The water revenues for the 3rd quarter of 2014 are 75.3% of what was budgeted for the year.  
This is consistent with prior periods as you can see in the chart below.  In addition, there was a 
rate increase of 4%.  The rate increase was incorporated to capture the addition costs associated 
with future projects and the hiring of an additional staff member. 
 
During 2014, some Water Fund Projects are being accounted for in the Operating Fund (403) 
which distorts the actual operations by inflating the financial data.  These are separated out for 
comparative purposes and analysis herein.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0  

$50,000  

$100,000  

$150,000  

$200,000  

$250,000  

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
Revenue $40,997  $34,279  $34,523  $99,692  $134,432  $141,081  $135,575  
Expenditures $107,520  $93,429  $93,165  $162,903  $197,358  $227,392  $195,843  

Aquatic Center 
2014 - Revenues/Expenditures 

94



 
 
 
 

           Unaudited 
 
 
 

Quarterly Charges for Services  – Water Revenue (only) 
    

 
First Second Third Fourth Total 

2010 373,083  380,783  531,766  466,128  1,751,761  
2011 332,827  371,063  527,066  441,153  1,672,110  
2012 298,050  356,043  555,629  504,546  1,714,268  
2013 330,875  395,384  554,567  498,684  1,779,510  
2014 377,569  420,280  618,427  

 
1,416,275  

 
            Unaudited 
 
 

Irrigation revenues are $247,918 through the 3rd Quarter of 2014.  This is 77.6% of what was 
budgeted.   
 
Operating Expenses for the Water Fund are 77.2% or $1,853,720 of the 2014 Budget of 
$2,414,314.  Expenditure items that have not been realized include Insurance premium of 
$18,412.      
 
Project Revenues were budgeted at $1,000,000, actual receipts are $1,489,579, while 
expenditures were budgeted at $1,192,510 and actual expenditures through the 3rd Quarter are 
$1,576,660.   
 
Budget amendments need to be completed to capture the changes in the Projects.  Collectively 
these projects are distorting the operating budget significantly. 
 
 

0 

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,500,000 

2,000,000 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

373,083  332,827  298,050  330,875  377,569  

380,783  371,063  356,043  395,384  420,280  

531,766  527,066  555,629  554,567  618,427  

466,128  441,153  504,546  498,684  

Water Revenue by Quarter 

First Second Third Fourth 

95



 
 
SEWER FUNDS 
The sewer fund revenues for the 3rd quarter of 2014 are about 83% of what was budgeted for 
the year.  This is consistent with prior periods as you can see in the chart below.  In addition, 
there was a rate increase of 2% rate.  The rate increase was incorporated to capture the addition 
costs associated with future projects. 
  

 
                                 Unaudited 
   
                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Unaudited 
 
 
The Sewer Fund expenditures through the 3rd quarter of 2014 total $1,131,560, or 63.1% of the 
budgeted amount of $1,794,507.  Part of the annual expenditures that have yet to be realized 
include insurance premium of $25,821.   
 
GARBAGE FUND: 
The Garbage Fund revenues for the 2014 3rd Quarter are $697,020, or 71.4% of the 2014 
Budget of $976,111.  The Garbage Revenue is in the range of 3rd quarter of 2013 cash receipts. 
 
The Expenditures of the Garbage Fund appear to be low compared to budget for the 3rd quarter 
of 2014 as they are at 64.6% of the budgeted amount.   
 
 
 

0 

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,500,000 

2,000,000 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

417,767  445,251  458,632  422,772  479,438  

416,715  408,304  435,609  451,733  499,893  

442,087  480,039  480,333  494,498  
567,281  

523,982  495,987  570,499  581,022  

Sewer Revenue by Quarter 

First Second Third Fourth 

Quarterly Charges for Services - Sewer Revenues (Only) 
   

 
First Second Third Fourth 

2010 417,767  416,715  442,087  523,982  
2011 445,251  408,304  480,039  495,987  
2012 458,632  435,609  480,333  570,499  
2013 422,772  451,733  494,498  581,022  
2014 479,438  499,893  567,281  

 

96



 
OTHER FUNDS: 
The following table provides the Fund Activity for each fund through the 3rd Quarter of 2014.  It 
shows the beginning fund balance, revenues, expenditures, compared to the 2014 Budget for 
each fund.  
 
 

                 unaudited 

97



City of <Prosser 
2015 Budget 

Summary of Council Discussion 

This memo summarizes information discussed and direction given by the City Council at 
previous budget workshops and lays out remaining decision points still needed for the 2015 

Budget. 

The 2015 Proposed Budget was presented to Council. There was no public comments on 
October ih, on the 14th or the 28th in regards to the 2015 Proposed Budget. 

October 28th 

• Property Tax: 
o Final Property Tax Assessment has been received indicating that an additional 

$35,906 will be received in Property Tax Revenues. 
o Budget Impact/Status: 

• An increase of $35,906 in revenues will be included in the 2015 Adopted Budget. 

• Legislative: 
o Proposed 2015 includes the hiring of a new City Administrator with a start date of 

November 1st. 

o Several Council members voiced that a start date should be in January of 2016 in 
order for the City Administrator's start date to coincide with the election of a new 
mayor. 

o The City Administrator Position needs to be moved to "Executive''. 
o Budget Impact/Status: 

• Council agreed to NOT fund this position until 2016. 

• Non-Union Staff: 
o A comprehensive Salary Study was completed earlier in the year which indicated 

that four ( 4) positions salary structure is under-funded. 
o A 10% increase was considered for the 2015 Proposed Budget, which would put these 

positions closer to the mid-range of this study. 
o There was enough council support to bring this item forward in ongoing budget 

discussions. 
o Budget Impact/Status: 

• Council decided to leave this item in the 2015 budget. 

98



City of <Prosser 

• Transfer to Street Funds: 
o Question was raised on the dire condition of the Street Fund. 

• In the Department Manager Budget a request was made for a one-time only 
transfer to the Street Fund to assist with Hime only expenditures. 

• There was conversation in regards to adding the $10,000 transfer from the General 
Fund to the Street Fund. 

o Budget Impact/Status: 
• Council agreed to Amend the Proposed Budget to include a one-time only 

transfer to the Street Fund for $10,000. 

• Property Tax: 
o Final Property Tax Assessment has been received on Oct.27, 2014 indicating that an 

additional $13,649 will be received in Property Tax Revenues. 
o Budget Impact/Status: 

• An increase of $13,649 in revenues will be included in the 2015 Adopted Budget. 
There has been no appropriation of these revised revenues. 

99



• Water Rates: 

City of Prosser 
2015 Budget 

Summary of Council Discussion 

o Proposed 2015 Budget includes a 4% Rate Increase. 
• Several Council members voiced concern about the amount of the increase. 

o Status: 
• Council requested to see the 4% rate increase resemble "Alternate 2" as presented 

by Toni Yost. 
• Council is interested in seeing options for the rate to be set affecting the "Base" 

component of rate rather than the "Consumption" component. 

• Irrigation: 
o Question was raised about why the irrigation rates are being increased. 
o Council members expressed concern that there is now "Surplus" funds from Irrigation 

Services. Council and staff discussed smaller or no increases and establishing a reserve 
fund for possible improvements and expansion of system to more paying users with 
current and future smaller surpluses. 

o Status: 
• Irrigation Rate Increase will be removed from the 2015 Proposed Budget. 

Reducing Revenues by $13,980. 
• An Irrigation Reserve will be set up through the Budget Cycle transferring $40,740, 

(the accumulated Surplus as of year ended 2013) from the Water Operating Fund 
Balance. 

• Sewer Rates: 
o Proposed 2015 Budget includes a 4.5% Rate Increase to cover additional personnel and 

needed equipment. 
• Several Council members voiced concern about the amount of the increase and 

recognized the need of additional personnel. 
o Status: 

• Council requested to see if the rate can be less than the recommended rate of 4.5% 
while still increasing staff. Toni Yost is to check with Ted Pooler and options will 
be provided at November 4'h meeting. 

• Council is interested in seeing options for the rate to be set affecting the 
"Consumption" component of rate rather than the "Base" component. 

No other concerns were brought up by council at this meeting. 

Regina Mauras, Finance Director 

100


	11-4-2014 Work Session City Council Mtg Agenda
	Item 4a
	Item 5a
	Item 5b
	Item 5c
	Item 5d
	Item 5e
	Item 5f



